
1 
 

TOWN OF ALGOMA 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

TOWN BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, September 18, 2024 – 6:00 p.m. 

15 N. Oakwood Road, Oshkosh, WI 54904 
 
 

AGENDA 

The Board may discuss and act on the following: 
 
1. Call to Order.  
 A. Pledge of Allegiance.  
 B. Roll Call. 
  
2. Town agenda was posted at the following locations: Town of Algoma Municipal Building, Service Oil 

Co., and town website at www.townofalgoma.org on September 13, 2024. 
 

3. Review and approve the minutes of the following meeting: 
A. Monthly Town Board Meeting dated August 21, 2024  

 
4.  Review and approve September 2024 disbursements. 

 
5. Public Forum (All speakers must sign up before the meeting and the Town’s policy is available on 
     the back table). 
 
6. Economic Development Update. 

 
7. Committee Reports.  

A. Fire Department. 
B. Planning Commission.     
C. Parks Committee.  

 
8. Administrator Report 

A. Budget Update. 
B. Major Projects Update. 

i. Bellhaven Lane Iron Enhanced Sand Filter 
ii. Leonard Point Road Storm Detention Pond 

iii. Leonard Point Road Reconstruction 
iv. Leonard Point Road & STH 21 Roundabout 

C. TID #1 Update 
D. Safe Routes to School Update 
E. Town Hall Playground Equipment Update 

 
9.   Town Chairman Report. 

A. Road Maintenance Update. 
 
 



2 
 

10. Clerk/Treasurer Report. 
A. Elections: absentees and training. 
B. WMCA Conference. 
C. Revaluation update and important dates. 

 
11. Monthly Financial Statements and Financial Report.  
 
12. Business.  

A. Discussion and possible action re: Ordinance 2024-02 An Ordinance Amending to Chapter 15 of 
the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Algoma: Citations  

B. Discussion and possible action: 2025 Emergency Medical Service with City of Oshkosh 
C. Discussion and possible action: Contracts with Jeff Foust Excavating, Inc for 2024-2025 snow 

plowing services 
D. Discussion and possible action: Winnebago Count Sheriff Joint Powers Agreement. 
E. Discussion and possible action re: Developer’s Agreement for Town of Algoma TID #1 with OSMS 

Real Estate, LLC and Algoma Sanitary District #1.  
 
 

 
13. Adjourn.  
 
The Town Board meets regularly on the THIRD WEDNESDAY OF EACH MONTH AT 6:00 p.m. (unless 
otherwise noted) at the Municipal Building (Town Hall), 15 N. Oakwood Road.  ALL MEETINGS ARE OPEN 
TO THE PUBLIC. 
NOTE: It is possible that members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be present at 
the above scheduled meeting to gather information about a subject over which they have decision-
making responsibility.  No action will be taken by any governmental body at the above-stated meeting 
other than the governmental body specifically referred to above in this notice.   
NOTE: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals 
through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to request this service, call the 
Town Hall office at 920-235-3789. 



Draft 
Town Board 

1 
 

TOWN OF ALGOMA  
WINNEBAGO COUNTY, WISCONSIN  

August 21, 2024 

The public hearing for sanitary district addition started at 6pm. The purpose of the hearing is to add 
property identified as parcel 002-0210, owned by Jack Merrill and located at 4730 County Rd. E, to the 
Algoma Sanitary District #1. Kevin Mraz, Sanitary District Utility Director, was present and explained the 
situation and noted that the Sanitary District is in support of the addition. 

There was no further discussion, so the hearing ended, and the regular board meeting started. 

The following were present: Chairman Joel Rasmussen, Supervisors Mike Brooks, Petey Clark, and Dan 
Martin. 

The following Supervisors were absent (excused): Teresa Van Aacken. 

The following were also present: Administrator Maggie Mahoney and Clerk/Treasurer Katherine 
Reinbold. 

The agenda was posted on August 19, 2024. 

On a motion by Supervisors Martin/Brooks, passed on a voice vote (Clark abstained), the Board 
approved the minutes of the Monthly Town Board meeting dated July 17, 2024 and the minutes of the 
Special Board Meeting dated August 14, 2024. 

On a motion by Supervisors Clark/Martin, passed on a voice vote, the Board approved the August 2024 
disbursements. 

Tricia Rathermel, President and CEO of the Greater Oshkosh Economic Development Corporation 
(GOEDC) reported the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation released their plans for 2025. 
There is a Vibrant Spaces grant available for 50% matching funds. 

The board members had the fire report for their review. Administrator Mahoney commented on the 
great turnout at the car show. 

The Planning Commission met on August 14. They met to discuss the certified survey map (CSM) to join 
2 lots. The commission recommends the approval of the CSM conditioned on one of the two current 
structures getting removed. 

The Parks Committee did not meet.  

Administrator Mahoney reported the sand filter project in Bellhaven has been delayed due to rain. The 
contractor for the project is aware that buses need to get in there. There are no major updates currently 
for the Leonard Point Road storm detention pond. Leonard Point Road reconstruction has officially been 
pushed back to 2027. The push was made by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) due 
to the roundabout construction on STH 21 and Leonard Point Road. Attended a meeting regarding 



Draft 
Town Board 

2 
 

bridge and culvert rehabilitation on WIS 91. TID #1 update, still working on the developer’s agreement. 
There has been concern of the roof leaking in the meeting room, but it has not been leaking now for 
some time. Doesn’t make sense to fix and is proposing to reallocate a portion of those funds to an online 
payment portal, which is under new business. 

Chairman Rasmussen reported that chip sealing on Nelson Rd and Addie Pkwy needs to be finished, and 
notices will be sent to residents. The property at 1394 Conrad Street has no driveway culvert and all the 
water runs to a bad spot on the road. The Town will work with the property owner to cut a ditch and 
install a culvert. 

Clerk/Treasurer Reinbold reported the turnout for the August 13 election had a 38% voter turnout 
between absentee and in person; it was a good day overall. The November 5 election is right around the 
corner, and we will be gearing up for that. Clerk/Treasurer Reinbold has some professional development 
coming up; Wisconsin Municipal Clerks Association (WMCA) Conference and some accounting classes. 

The monthly financial statements and report were presented. 

On a motion by Supervisors Brooks/Clark, passed on a voice vote, the Town Board approved the petition 
to add property identified as parcel 002-0210, owned by Jack Merrill and located at 4730 County Rd. E, 
to the Algoma Sanitary District #1. 
 
On a motion by Supervisors Clark/Martin, passed on a voice vote, the Town Board approved a Transient 
Merchant Permit for Gailan Group LLC roofing company, pending a background check and approval from 
the Administrator. 
 
Attorney Tyler Pluff from Town Counsel, spoke on our current sex offender ordinance. It is more 
restrictive than the State and we can’t be. Supervisor Brooks noted there is still a want of restrictions for 
the lesser offenders from residents. On a motion by Supervisors Clark/Books, passed on a voice vote, the 
Town Board approved Ordinance 2024-01 An Ordinance Repealing Chapter 274 of the Code of 
Ordinances for the Town of Algoma, Relating to Sex Offenders, but we will consider an ordinance in the 
future that could possibly have restrictions for the lesser offenders. 
  
Attorney Pluff also spoke on enforcement of the Town Municipal Code. The Town could use the circuit 
court for nuisance properties or code violations. On a motion by Supervisors Clark/Martin, passed on a 
voice vote, the Town Board directed Town staff to move forward with enforcement of Town Municipal 
Code based on the memorandum from Attorney Tyler Pluff. 
 
There was discussion about burning in the Town of Algoma. Administrator Mahoney suggested we figure 
out our code enforcement first, mail out another postcard this fall, and then we can follow up on 
amending the burning ordinance. There was no action taken. 

On a motion by Supervisors Clark/Martin, passed on a voice vote, the Town Board approved the 
Certified Survey Map by petitioner Darryl Lehman, Martinson & Eisele, on behalf of Robert K. Balda, to 
combine parcels 002001310 and 002001301 into one parcel with the condition of removal of one of the 
two existing principal structures within one year. 
 



Draft 
Town Board 

3 
 

On a motion by Supervisors Clark/Brooks, passed on a voice vote, the Town Board approved the updated 
fee schedule. 
 
On a motion by Supervisors Brooks/Clark, passed on a voice vote, the Town Board approved the 
purchase and implementation of the HeyGov for $9,600, contingent upon review of any required 
agreement by legal counsel; and to approve reallocation of $9,600 in the General Fund for the Town Hall 
Roof Repair for this purchase. 
 
On a motion by Supervisors Brooks/Martin, passed on a voice vote, the Town Board approved the 
certificate for payment #1 to Northeast Asphalt, Inc. in the amount of $61,454.40 for the Bellhaven Lane 
Iron Enhanced Sand Filter Project. 
 
On a motion by Supervisors Martin/Brooks, passed on a voice vote, the Town Board approved the 
Resolution for Inclusion Under Group Life Insurance. 

Administrator Mahoney discussed the 2025-2029 Capital Improvement Plan. This will be updated 
annually. It is not a project cost tool, it is a planning and reporting tool. 

On a motion by Supervisors Brooks/Martin, passed by roll call vote (Brooks-Y, Clark-Yes, 
Rasmussen-Y, Martin-Y), the Town Board entered into closed session at 7:21pm for board 
consideration of the following items: Pursuant to WI Statutes 19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the 
purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reason require a closed session. Re: OSMS Developer 
Agreement.  
 

On a motion by Supervisors Brooks/Clark, passed by roll call vote (Brooks-Y, Clark-Yes, Rasmussen-Y, 
Martin-Y), the Town Board reconvened in open session at 7:46 p.m. for discussion and take action on all 
matters discussed in the above listed closed session. 

There was no further discussion and no action taken. 

On a motion by Supervisors Martin/Brooks, the Town Board adjourned at 7:46 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted,  
Katherine Reinbold 



Town of Algoma Fire 
Department 
Monthly Report  Prepared by 
August 2024    Kevin Sawicki – Fire Chief 

 

Contents 
Grants ............................................................................................................................................................ 2 

Trucks and Equipment .................................................................................................................................. 2 

Vehicles ..................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Truck Committee ...................................................................................................................................... 2 

New Members........................................................................................................................................... 2 

First Drill: August 5th, 2024 ........................................................................................................................ 2 

Second Drill: August 19th, 2024 ................................................................................................................. 2 

Upcoming Events ...................................................................................................................................... 2 

Incidents ........................................................................................................................................................ 3 

Overall Incident Summary ........................................................................................................................ 3 

 

  



   
 Town of Algoma 

Fire Department 
Monthly Report  

August 2024 
 

  2 

Grants 
ARPA/Spirit Funds received from Winnebago County for portable radios.  The radios are at Bay Comm 
being programmed.  No new updates. 

Trucks and Equipment 
Vehicles 

• Rescue 21 – experiencing more electrical problems when operating the vehicle.  The vehicle is a 
2004 and should be replaced or be refurbished due to age/repairs. 

Truck Committee 
• Engine 21 is currently at Rennert’s Fire Equipment Service undergoing refurbishment.  The 

vehicle will undergo corrosion repair and graphic replacement.  Completion date is set for 
October 2024. 

New Members 
• Mason Miller – Mason is a former member of The Plainfield Fire Department.  Mason recently 

moved to Oshkosh and is eager to help the fire department/community.  He will be starting 
firefighter 1 class this fall/winter. 
 

First Drill: August 5th, 2024 
• Members participated in 911 scenarios.  Skills included vehicle operation, incident command, 

search and rescue, forcible entry, etc.  A local resident provided the training opportunity prior to 
demolition. 
 

Second Drill: August 19th, 2024 
• Members participated in 911 scenarios.  Skills included vehicle operation, incident command, 

search and rescue, forcible entry, etc.  A local resident provided the training opportunity prior to 
demolition. 
 

Upcoming Events 

Event Date 
Training Drills Monday, September 16th @ 6:30pm 

Monday, October 7th @ 6:30pm 
Monthly Department Meeting Wednesday, October 9th @ 7:00pm 
Fire Department Open House Saturday, May 17th, 2025 
Car Show Saturday, August 16th, 2025 
Pancake Breakfast Sunday, October 6th, 2024 



   
 Town of Algoma 

Fire Department 
Monthly Report  

August 2024 
 

  3 

Incidents 
Overall Incident Summary 

 

Call Type Count 
111 – Structure Fire (Mutual Aid Ripon) 1 
300 – Rescue/Emergency Medical Service (EMS) 29 
424 – Carbon Monoxide Incident 1 
  
  
  
Total Calls 31 

 

111 - Structure Fire
3%

300 - Rescue/EMS
91%

424 - CO Incident
6%

Call Type

111 - Structure Fire 300 - Rescue/EMS 424 - CO Incident



 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 

To: Honorable Town Chairperson and Town Supervisors 

From:  Maggie Mahoney, Administrator 

Date:  September 18, 2024 

RE:  Monthly Administrator’s Report 

  

A. Budget Update 
The first budget session with the Board was held on September 16. The first draft of 
the budget was presented and discussed which included departmental operating 
budgets and capital improvement plan. The next budget meeting will be on 
September 30 where the Administrator’s Recommended budget will be presented. 
A revised 2025 Budget Calendar is attached which reflects a correction to the date 
of the November public hearing and date of budget approval.  
 

B. Major Projects Updates 
i. Bellhaven Lane Iron Enhanced Sand Filter  

The storm sewer from the lake to the sand filter is completed. The sand filter is 
planned to be constructed the week of Sept 16, and by the end of that week the 
majority of the project will be completed.  The only remaining items would be 
final restoration of grass and asphalt surfaces.  The schedule of completion of 
these tasks is pending at the time of this memo, but the plan is for the entire 
project to be completed by the end of September.  

ii.  Leonard Point Road Storm Detention Pond 
I met with the property owner on September 3rd to present the draft CSM 
(attached) and discuss Town proceeding with an appraisal. When we have the 
results of the appraisal I will confer with the Board in closed session regarding 
negotiations.  

iii.  Leonard Point Road Reconstruction  
No updates for this project at the time of this memo.  

iv. Leonard Point Road & STH 21 Roundabout 
There are no project updates at the time of this memo.  
  

C. TID #1 Update 
Developer agreement for the OSMS project for consideration under new business.  



The Algoma Sanitary District bid for the watermain will close on Sept 19. Once the 
amount is known staff will work with Ehlers to request and complete the state trust 
fund loan application. That application will be considered by the Board prior to 
submittal, requiring a special board meeting in late September/early October—TBD. 
Upon approval, the application will be submitted for consideration by the state trust 
fund board at one of their October meetings (Oct 1 and Oct 15). With the funding 
secured, the project bid award would be considered at the Oct 16 Town Board 
meeting.  
 
A CSM to combine the four lots into one has been submitted and will likely be 
considered in October.  Site plan submittal pending.  
 

D. Safe Routes to School Update 
The Town and Oakwood Elementary are working with Safe Routes to School (SRTS), 
through East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission, as part of a study 
that evaluates the build environment and active transportation to and from schools, 
which includes the Omro Road and Oakwood Road intersection. SRTS is working 
with a consultant, Traffic Analysis and Design Inc., to collect the data and complete 
the study.  
 

A virtual meeting was held on August 29 with SRTS, the consultant, and 
representatives of other entities in the study (Read Elementary and Bonduel 
Elementary and related entities) with the goal of using this information as case 
studies for other schools in our region choosing to conduct a similar study in the 
future. The consultant will develop a survey for residents and parents later this fall 
to collect data.  
 

The school requested this engagement from SRST after I met with them earlier in the 
year about their safety concerns for this intersection. I expect this study to yield 
recommendations for operations and safety improvements that could be 
considered for future implementation.  
 

E. Town Hall Playground Equipment Update 
Two of the large platform steps are cracking. These parts are under warranty and the 
manufacturer is sending the replacement pieces but the Town has to install. Timing 
and labor to install is pending at the time of this memo.  
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Revised 2025 Budget Calendar dated 8.21.24 
2. Leonard Point Road Wet Detention Pond draft CSM 



Calendar for 2025 Budget Adoption  
Revised 8/21/24 

 
 
Wednesday, June 19, 2024 – Town Board Meeting 

• Town Administrator distributes 2025 Budget Adoption Calendar 

Wednesday, July 17, 2024 – Town Board Meeting 
• Discuss key assumptions for budget such as tax levy, general obligation debt, 

compensation, long-range financial planning for Capital Improvement Plan.  

Thursday, July 18, 2024 – Budget Schedule and Memorandum Distributed 
• Budget documents and memorandum distributed to key staff and contractors to include:  

o Key priorities of the Town Board and overall budget outlook.  
o Budget priorities and spending parameters of the Town Administrator.  
o Instructions and procedures for preparing departmental budgets.  
o Internal meeting schedule with Town Administrator to review budget proposals.  
o Distribute line-item and capital project request forms.  

Wednesday, August 21, 2024 – Town Board Meeting 
• Initial discussion about Capital Improvement Plan.  

Thursday August 22, 2024 – Department and Capital Improvement Plan Requests Due to Town 
Administrator. Internal departmental budget meetings to review/revise requests Aug 23 – Sep 5.   
 
Monday, September 16, 2024 – Budget Meeting 

• First draft of budget presented to the Board, including Departmental Operating 
Budgets, and Capital Improvement Plan.  

Monday, September 30, 2024 – Budget Meeting 
• Administrator’s Recommended budget presented to the Board. 

(IF NEEDED) Monday, October 14, 2024 – Budget Meeting  
• Administrator’s Revised budget presented to the Board.  

Wednesday, October 16, 2024 – Town Board Meeting 
• Administrator’s Final Recommended Budget presented to the Board for endorsement. 

This is the final review by the Board before the budget is published and noticed for the 
public hearing.  

Wednesday, November 20, 2024  
Budget Public Hearing & Special Town Meeting:  
• A Public Hearing in accordance with State Statute is held; staff provides 

comprehensive presentation on proposed budget.  

Town Board Meeting:  
• Town Board adopts the 2025 Fiscal Year Budget by motion.  



LOT 1

OUTLOT 1

OUTLOT 2

McMAHON ASSOCIATES, INC.
1445 McMAHON DRIVE  NEENAH, WI 54956

Mailing: P.O.BOX 1025  NEENAH, WI 54957-1025
PH 920.751.4200  FX 920.751.4284 MCMGRP.COM

McMAHON

·

·

DRAFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: P&Q OSHKOSH LLC DOCUMENT NO. 1561935

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
---------

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-----

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: BRUCE & JOAN DONNER DOCUMENT NO. 1909860

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
---------

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-----

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: P&Q OSHKOSH LLC DOCUMENT NO. 1561935

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
---------

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-----

AutoCAD SHX Text
--------

AutoCAD SHX Text
------

AutoCAD SHX Text
------

AutoCAD SHX Text
--------

AutoCAD SHX Text
------

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEONARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
------

AutoCAD SHX Text
----------

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEONARD'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
------

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-----

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
------

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAMBI

AutoCAD SHX Text
-----

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: JOSEPH CEFALU DOCUMENT NO. 1879240

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
---------

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-----

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-----

AutoCAD SHX Text
CSM 6343

AutoCAD SHX Text
--------

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
------

AutoCAD SHX Text
CSM 697

AutoCAD SHX Text
-------

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-----

AutoCAD SHX Text
CSM 7110

AutoCAD SHX Text
--------

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-----

AutoCAD SHX Text
CSM 4965

AutoCAD SHX Text
--------

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°52'34"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
2528.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
117.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°37'10"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
2531.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
181.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°37'10"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
175.77'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°08'31"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
--

AutoCAD SHX Text
198.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°37'10"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDS DEEDED TO THE TOWN OF ALGOMA PER VOL.984 PG.185 

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD LOCATED CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEONARD POINT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
S59°22'11"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
423.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°52'34"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
423.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
140.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
S59°22'11"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
291.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
385.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
101.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEONARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
---

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTED BY:  %%UAMY M. SEDLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 18 NORTH, RANGE 16 EAST, TOWN OF ALGOMA, WINNEBAGO COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. _____

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF __

AutoCAD SHX Text
asedlar, W:\PROJECTS\A0018\092400270\CADD\Civil3D\Survey Documents\CSM\Leonard Pt Road_Donner CSM_draft.dwg Plot Date: 8/12/2024 12:42 PM, W:\PROJECTS\A0018\092400270\CADD\Civil3D\Survey Documents\CSM\Leonard Pt Road_Donner CSM_draft.dwg Plot Date: 8/12/2024 12:42 PMW:\PROJECTS\A0018\092400270\CADD\Civil3D\Survey Documents\CSM\Leonard Pt Road_Donner CSM_draft.dwg Plot Date: 8/12/2024 12:42 PM Plot Date: 8/12/2024 12:42 PM8/12/2024 12:42 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARINGS ARE REFERENCED TO THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, SECTION 7, WHICH BEARS N00°52'34"E PER THEWISCONSIN COUNTY COORDINATE SYSTEM FOR WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE - FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
(  )

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- 3/4" x 18" ROUND STEEL REBAR WEIGHING 1.5 lbs./lineal ft. SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
- 3/4" STEEL REBAR FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
- 1.315" O.D. IRON PIPE FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
- CERTIFIED LAND CORNER WINNEBAGO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
- SQUARE FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
- RECORDED BEARING   AND/OR DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEANDER CORNER TO THE EAST 1/4 CORNER SEC. 7, T.18N., R.16E. BERNTSEN MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LINE OF THE NE 1/4 - SE 1/4 SEC. 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEANDER CORNER TO THE EAST 1/4 CORNER SEC. 7, T.18N., R.16E. BERNTSEN MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEAST CORNER SEC. 7, T.18N., R.16E. BERNTSEN MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER OF SEC. 7, T.18N., R.16E. BERNTSEN MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE TABLE C1 RADIUS = 492.00' DELTA = 078°59'18" ARC LENGTH = 678.28' CHORD = S38°37'05"E            625.82' TANGENT IN = S00°52'34"W TANGENT OUT = S78°06'44"E C2 RADIUS = 492.00' 492.00' DELTA = 068°12'59" 068°12'59" ARC LENGTH = 585.78' 585.78' CHORD = S44°00'14"E  S44°00'14"E           551.79' C3 RADIUS = 492.00' 492.00' DELTA = 010°46'19" 010°46'19" ARC LENGTH = 92.50' 92.50' CHORD = S04°30'35"E  S04°30'35"E            92.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE OF THE SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: OUTLOT 1 IS TO BE USED FOR STORM WATER DETENTION POND PURPOSES. OUTLOT 2 IS TO BE RESERVED FOR FUTURE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY PURPOSES.



Bank Type Interest Rate Balance Notes

Bank First Checking Analysis 1,045,429.89$          
Money Market 5.56% 695,859.21$             

Special Accounts 5.56%
Parks Money Market 85,786.12$               

ARPA Funds Money Market 216,406.17$             

Tax Accounts (Used for collection)
Tax Account 632.00$                     

Refund Account 11.99$                       

Verve Savings Account NA -$                            
Money Market 1.71% -$                            

Total Cash and Investments 2,044,125.38$          

RECONCILED BANK & INVESTMENT BALANCES
AS OF 08/30/2024

TOWN OF ALGOMA 



Budget Comparison - Detail

2024
2024 Budget

Status Budget
% of

August

Fund: All Funds

1
ACCT

3:18 PM9/12/2024

Actual 2024
Account Number 08/30/2024 Budget

Page:

0.00 358,840.00 -358,840.00 0.00100-00-41102-000-000 GO REFUNDING BONDS LEVY 0.00
337,062.93 1,137,949.00 -800,886.07 29.62100-00-41110-000-000 GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES 337,062.93

0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.00100-00-41150-000-000 MFL TAXES 0.00
69,198.59 0.00 69,198.59 0.00100-00-41802-000-000 LOTTERY CREDIT 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
TAXES 337,062.93 27.14406,261.52 -1,090,727.481,496,989.00
======================================================================================================================================================

36,641.97 243,624.00 -206,982.03 15.04100-00-43410-000-000 STATE SHARED REVENUES 0.00
42,104.70 33,000.00 9,104.70 127.59100-00-43420-000-000 2% FIRE DUES 0.00

263.97 270.00 -6.03 97.77100-00-43430-000-000 EXEMPT COMPUTER 0.00
3,290.83 3,290.83 0.00 100.00100-00-43440-000-000 PERSONAL PROPERTY AID 0.00

107,884.41 106,618.00 1,266.41 101.19100-00-43530-000-000 TRANSPORTATION AIDS 0.00
12,471.47 10,000.00 2,471.47 124.71100-00-43540-000-000 RECYCLING GRANTS 0.00
15,175.31 15,175.00 0.31 100.00100-00-43550-000-000 VIDEO SERV PROVIDER FEE 0.00

6.46 6.49 -0.03 99.54100-00-43650-000-000 FOREST CROPLAND/MGED FOREST 0.00
400.00 7,600.00 -7,200.00 5.26100-00-43750-000-000 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 0.00

0.00 105,700.00 -105,700.00 0.00100-00-43790-000-000 DNR STORMWATER MGMT GRANT 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 0.00 41.55218,239.12 -307,045.20525,284.32
======================================================================================================================================================

100.00 200.00 -100.00 50.00100-00-44100-000-000 BUSINESS/OCCUP LICENSE 0.00
15,635.00 550.00 15,085.00 2,842.73100-00-44110-000-000 LIQUOR & MALT BEVERAGE LICENSE 0.00

260.00 250.00 10.00 104.00100-00-44115-000-000 OPERATORS LICENSES 0.00
100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00100-00-44116-000-000 CIGARETTE LICENSE 0.00
100.00 80.00 20.00 125.00100-00-44117-000-000 SODA WATER LICENSES 0.00
100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00100-00-44120-000-000 OTHER BUSINESS & OCCUP LIC 100.00

45,559.25 61,000.00 -15,440.75 74.69100-00-44125-000-000 CABLE FRANCHISE INCOME 15,166.36
2,145.00 4,000.00 -1,855.00 53.63100-00-44200-000-000 DOG LICENSES 15.00

980.89 1,000.00 -19.11 98.09100-00-44201-000-000 WINNEBAGO CTY DOG LICENSES 0.00
20,800.00 12,000.00 8,800.00 173.33100-00-44300-000-000 BUILDING PERMITS NEW 0.00
10,720.91 10,000.00 720.91 107.21100-00-44301-000-000 BUILDING PERMITS REMODELING 1,097.67

0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.00100-00-44302-000-000 EXTRA INSPECTIONS 0.00
3,200.00 1,000.00 2,200.00 320.00100-00-44310-000-000 CULVERT PERMITS 50.00

69.20 100.00 -30.80 69.20100-00-44311-000-000 OTHER PERMITS 0.00
0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.00100-00-44400-000-000 ZONING PERMITS & FEE'S 0.00
0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.00100-00-44500-000-000 RIGHT OF WAY 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
LICENSES AND PERMITS 16,429.03 110.0299,770.25 9,090.2590,680.00
======================================================================================================================================================

2,220.00 2,500.00 -280.00 88.80100-00-46100-000-000 ASSESSMENT CERTIFICATION' 180.00
-24.06 20.00 -44.06 -120.30100-00-46101-000-000 LIQUOR LIC PUBLICATION FEE 0.00
84.12 9,000.00 -8,915.88 0.93100-00-46310-000-000 SNOW REMOVAL 84.12

1,650.00 0.00 1,650.00 0.00202-00-46330-000-000 PARKLAND FEES 0.00
14,453.39 620,000.00 -605,546.61 2.33100-00-46420-000-000 REFUSE & GARBAGE COLLECTION 14,653.39

3,872.73 5,000.00 -1,127.27 77.45100-00-46435-000-000 RECYCLING - WINN CTY REBATE 507.66
12,375.00 10,000.00 2,375.00 123.75100-00-46720-000-000 PARKLAND FEE INCOME 0.00

950.00 0.00 950.00 0.00100-00-46850-000-000 SITE PLANS FEES 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES 15,425.17 5.5035,581.18 -610,938.82646,520.00
======================================================================================================================================================

23,245.81 2,000.00 21,245.81 1,162.29100-00-48100-000-000 INTEREST GENERAL ACCOUNTS 4,163.06
10,944.30 1,000.00 9,944.30 1,094.43100-00-48101-000-000 ARPA INTEREST 959.77

1.46 0.00 1.46 0.00200-00-48101-000-000 FD SAVINGS INTEREST 0.00
1,951.41 0.00 1,951.41 0.00100-00-48102-000-000 VERVE ACCTS 0.00



Budget Comparison - Detail

2024
2024 Budget

Status Budget
% of

August

Fund: All Funds

2
ACCT

3:18 PM9/12/2024

Actual 2024
Account Number 08/30/2024 Budget

Page:

8,550.00 8,000.00 550.00 106.88100-00-48200-000-000 RENT REVENUE 450.00
4,755.00 3,000.00 1,755.00 158.50100-00-48301-000-000 SALE OF GARB/RECYCLING TOTES 730.00
1,745.00 0.00 1,745.00 0.00200-00-48500-000-000 FD DONATIONS 0.00

359.00 0.00 359.00 0.00100-00-48900-000-000 OTHER MISC. REVENUES 0.00
200.00 0.00 200.00 0.00200-00-48900-000-000 FD PANCAKE BRKFST 0.00

6,180.00 0.00 6,180.00 0.00200-00-48901-000-000 FD CAR SHOW 0.00
1,234.00 0.00 1,234.00 0.00200-00-48903-000-000 FD OPEN HOUSE 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 6,302.83 422.6159,165.98 45,165.9814,000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 445,000.00 -445,000.00 0.00100-00-49200-000-000 TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 0.00 0.000.00 -445,000.00445,000.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

819,018.05 3,218,473.32Total Revenues 375,219.96 25.45-2,399,455.27
======================================================================================================================================================



Budget Comparison - Detail

2024
2024 Budget

Status Budget
% of

August

Fund: All Funds

3
ACCT

3:18 PM9/12/2024

Actual 2024
Account Number 08/30/2024 Budget

Page:

11,250.00 15,452.00 4,202.00 72.81100-00-51100-110-000 TOWN BOARD WAGES 1,300.00
860.74 1,125.00 264.26 76.51100-00-51100-130-000 TOWN BOARD SOC SEC/MEDICARE 99.46

0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00100-00-51100-209-000 ATTORNEY LEGAL FIRE DEPT 0.00
1,435.00 1,400.00 -35.00 102.50100-00-51100-321-000 TOWN BOARD DUES 0.00

85.00 500.00 415.00 17.00100-00-51100-390-000 TOWN BOARD MISC EXP 85.00
9,272.50 15,000.00 5,727.50 61.82100-00-51300-210-000 ATTORNEY LEGAL CONTRACT 1,360.00
1,195.00 2,000.00 805.00 59.75100-00-51300-218-000 ATTORNEY ORD CODIFICATION 0.00

0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00100-00-51400-200-000 GEN GOVT HR/PERSONNEL 0.00
4,321.38 3,000.00 -1,321.38 144.05100-00-51400-310-000 GEN GOVT OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,937.76
2,021.20 2,500.00 478.80 80.85100-00-51400-315-000 GEN GOVT OFFICE EQUIPMENT 233.59

535.52 5,000.00 4,464.48 10.71100-00-51400-320-000 GEN GOVT PUBLISHING & PRINTING 0.00
0.00 800.00 800.00 0.00100-00-51400-330-000 GEN GOVT MILEAGE 0.00

25,800.07 18,000.00 -7,800.07 143.33100-00-51400-342-000 GEN GOVT COMPUTER & WEBSITE MA 4,682.36
748.70 1,000.00 251.30 74.87100-00-51400-390-000 GEN GOVT MISC EXP 249.25

60,796.40 95,254.40 34,458.00 63.83100-00-51410-110-000 ADMINISTRATOR WAGES 8,750.00
5,797.14 7,286.96 1,489.82 79.55100-00-51410-130-000 ADMINISTRATOR SOC SEC/MEDICARE 669.38
4,194.95 6,572.55 2,377.60 63.83100-00-51410-131-000 ADMINISTRATOR WRS 603.75

10,035.77 16,136.64 6,100.87 62.19100-00-51410-132-000 ADMINISTRATOR HEALTH INSURANCE 42.43
13,369.36 1,000.00 -12,369.36 1,336.94100-00-51410-380-000 ADMINISTRATOR DEPT EXPENSES 20.00
17,307.80 20,904.53 3,596.73 82.79100-00-51411-110-000 OFFICE ASST WAGES 3,009.80

2,581.86 1,599.19 -982.67 161.45100-00-51411-130-000 OFFICE ASST SOC SEC/MEDICARE 230.25
45,869.26 69,061.59 23,192.33 66.42100-00-51420-110-000 CLERK TREAS WAGES 5,783.76

5,255.82 5,283.21 27.39 99.48100-00-51420-130-000 CLERK TREAS SOC SEC/MEDICARE 425.03
3,164.99 4,765.24 1,600.25 66.42100-00-51420-131-000 CLERK TREAS  WRS 399.08

28,548.48 22,778.04 -5,770.44 125.33100-00-51420-132-000 CLERK TREAS  HEALTH INSURANCE 3,580.49
2,792.79 2,500.00 -292.79 111.71100-00-51420-380-000 CLERK TREAS DEPT EXPENSES 0.00

752.35 8,000.00 7,247.65 9.40100-00-51420-390-000 CLERK TREAS MISC EXP -241.27
33,352.02 48,296.60 14,944.58 69.06100-00-51421-110-000 DEPUTY CLERK TREAS WAGES 4,360.92

2,496.15 3,722.18 1,226.03 67.06100-00-51421-130-000 DEP CLERK TR  SOC SEC/MEDICARE 330.86
2,332.00 3,332.42 1,000.42 69.98100-00-51421-131-000 DEPUTY CLERK TREAS WRS 309.18

19,507.41 15,593.16 -3,914.25 125.10100-00-51421-132-000 DEPUTY CLERK TREAS HEALTH 2,486.16
375.25 500.00 124.75 75.05100-00-51421-390-000 DEPUTY CLERK TREAS MISC EXP 0.00

4,070.00 12,000.00 7,930.00 33.92100-00-51440-110-000 ELECTIONS WAGES 0.00
2,975.37 5,000.00 2,024.63 59.51100-00-51440-380-000 ELECTIONS DEPT EXPENSES 437.14

15,802.50 16,000.00 197.50 98.77100-00-51510-211-000 AUDITOR AUDIT CONTRACT 420.00
36,960.00 55,440.00 18,480.00 66.67100-00-51530-212-000 ASSMT OF PROP ASSESSOR CONTRAC 4,620.00

60.00 300.00 240.00 20.00100-00-51530-380-000 BOARD OF REVIEW  DEPT EXPENSES 0.00
0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00100-00-51530-390-000 ASSMT OF PROP MISC EXP 0.00

5,544.52 8,000.00 2,455.48 69.31100-00-51600-220-000 TOWN HALL UTILITIES 1,079.61
2,000.00 3,000.00 1,000.00 66.67100-00-51600-221-000 TOWN HALL GRASS/SNOW 400.00
1,870.70 4,000.00 2,129.30 46.77100-00-51600-223-000 TOWN HALL PHONE 233.56
6,067.03 6,000.00 -67.03 101.12100-00-51600-225-000 TOWN HALL JANITORIAL 1,842.79
4,621.33 5,000.00 378.67 92.43100-00-51600-380-000 TOWN HALL DEPT EXPENSES 283.30
3,622.00 10,000.00 6,378.00 36.22100-00-51600-510-000 TOWN HALL PROP/LIAB INSURANCE 3,562.00
2,385.00 5,000.00 2,615.00 47.70100-00-51600-820-000 TOWN HALL IMPROVEMENTS 2,385.00
1,392.93 6,000.00 4,607.07 23.22100-00-51900-313-000 OTHER GEN GOV POSTAGE 0.00

56.50 100.00 43.50 56.50100-00-51900-390-000 OTH GEN GOV MISC EXP 0.00
10,788.17 5,000.00 -5,788.17 215.76100-00-51900-510-000 OTH GEN GOV PROP/LIAB INSURANC 13,179.00

0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00100-00-51900-515-000 OTHER GEN GOV UNEMPLOY. COMP 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
GENERAL GOVERNMENT 69,149.64 76.46414,270.96 127,532.75541,803.71
======================================================================================================================================================

6,666.64 10,000.00 3,333.36 66.67100-00-52200-120-000 FD CHIEF SALARY 833.33



Budget Comparison - Detail

2024
2024 Budget

Status Budget
% of

August

Fund: All Funds

4
ACCT

3:18 PM9/12/2024

Actual 2024
Account Number 08/30/2024 Budget

Page:

3,333.28 5,000.00 1,666.72 66.67100-00-52200-121-000 FD ASST. CHIEF SALARY 416.66
4,000.00 6,000.00 2,000.00 66.67100-00-52200-122-000 FD CAPT SALARY 500.00
1,600.00 2,400.00 800.00 66.67100-00-52200-123-000 FD TREAS & SEC SALARY 200.00
1,280.00 1,200.00 -80.00 106.67100-00-52200-124-000 FD SAFETY/TRNG OFFICER SALARY 150.00
4,786.00 21,500.00 16,714.00 22.26100-00-52200-125-000 FD STAND BY PAY 0.00
7,088.75 13,000.00 5,911.25 54.53100-00-52200-126-000 FD DRILL & FIRE ALLOWANCE 673.75
2,947.06 9,594.00 6,646.94 30.72100-00-52200-130-000 FD SOC SEC/MEDICARE 268.82
1,555.69 1,000.00 -555.69 155.57100-00-52200-215-000 FD TOWN ALLOW TO FD 0.00
5,116.90 6,500.00 1,383.10 78.72100-00-52200-220-000 FD UTILITIES 1,001.22
1,960.00 4,000.00 2,040.00 49.00100-00-52200-221-000 FD GRASS/SNOW 260.00

427.68 3,000.00 2,572.32 14.26100-00-52200-223-000 FD PHONE 53.60
736.56 4,200.00 3,463.44 17.54100-00-52200-224-000 FD COMPUTER & WEBSITE 630.00

5,974.22 9,000.00 3,025.78 66.38100-00-52200-331-000 FD TRAINING 795.74
50.00 0.00 -50.00 0.00200-00-52200-331-000 FIRE DEPT TRAINING 0.00

13,393.34 3,500.00 -9,893.34 382.67100-00-52200-341-000 FD SUPPLIES 261.46
65,996.42 11,000.00 -54,996.42 599.97100-00-52200-360-000 FD VEHICLE MAINT 4,170.28

818.07 10,000.00 9,181.93 8.18100-00-52200-361-000 FD FIRE HALL MAINT 79.87
29,914.16 5,000.00 -24,914.16 598.28100-00-52200-362-000 FD SERVICE/REPAIR EQUIP 581.04

1,510.19 1,500.00 -10.19 100.68100-00-52200-380-000 FD DEPT EXPENSES 0.00
710.72 1,000.00 289.28 71.07100-00-52200-390-000 FD MISC EXP 675.00
637.13 0.00 -637.13 0.00200-00-52200-390-000 FIRE DEPT MISC EXP 0.00
811.26 0.00 -811.26 0.00200-00-52200-402-000 FIRE DEPT FUNDRAISING OTHER 0.00

19,242.83 22,500.00 3,257.17 85.52100-00-52200-510-000 FD PROP/LIAB INSURANCE 24,970.00
174,025.79 4,000.00 -170,025.79 4,350.64100-00-52200-810-000 FD EQUIPMENT 173,220.46

3,335.88 0.00 -3,335.88 0.00200-00-52200-810-000 FIRE DEPT EQUIPMENT 0.00
0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00100-00-52210-000-000 2% FIRE DUES SERVICE AWARD 0.00
0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00100-00-52210-128-000 2% FIRE DUES INSPECT REL TRAIN 0.00

26,172.67 5,500.00 -20,672.67 475.87100-00-52210-322-000 2% FIRE DUES FIRE INSPECT & PU 60.00
0.00 17,000.00 17,000.00 0.00100-00-52210-810-000 2% FIRE DUES DIST EQUIPMENT 0.00

165,827.00 165,827.00 0.00 100.00100-00-52220-000-000 PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION 165,827.00
24,980.40 25,207.20 226.80 99.10100-00-52300-000-000 AMBULANCE 0.00

4,145.00 0.00 -4,145.00 0.00100-00-52302-000-000 FIREHOUSE SUBS GRANT FUNDS 0.00
1,666.64 2,625.00 958.36 63.49100-00-52310-122-000 FIRST RESPONDER CAPT SALARY 208.33

10,125.00 10,000.00 -125.00 101.25100-00-52310-127-000 FIRST RESPONDER CALL ALLOWANCE 1,245.00
902.23 0.00 -902.23 0.00100-00-52310-130-000 FIRST RESPONDER SOC SEC/MEDICA 111.21
480.00 2,000.00 1,520.00 24.00100-00-52310-331-000 FIRST RESPONDER TRAINING 0.00

0.00 200.00 200.00 0.00100-00-52310-390-000 FIRST RESPONDER MISC EXP 0.00
1,389.75 6,000.00 4,610.25 23.16100-00-52310-810-000 FIRST RESPONDER EQUIPMENT 0.00

869.05 1,606.50 737.45 54.10100-00-52400-130-000 BUILDING INSPECTOR SOC SEC/MED 0.00
25,427.18 21,000.00 -4,427.18 121.08100-00-52400-213-000 BUILDING INSPECTOR CONTRACT 13,139.68
16,059.46 1,200.00 -14,859.46 1,338.29100-00-52400-390-000 BUILDING INSPECTOR MISC EXP 13,247.00

======================================================================================================================================================
PUBLIC SAFETY 403,579.45 150.15635,962.95 -212,403.25423,559.70
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00100-00-53100-130-000 PUBLIC WORKS SOC SEC/MEDICARE 0.00
67,395.62 130,000.00 62,604.38 51.84100-00-53101-000-000 GENERAL MAINT LOCAL RDS 24,145.87

154,272.58 155,000.00 727.42 99.53100-00-53102-000-000 HWY & ST. CONST LOCAL RDS 0.00
561.21 1,500.00 938.79 37.41100-00-53103-000-000 TRAFFIC CONTROL 291.65

10,092.00 30,000.00 19,908.00 33.64100-00-53104-000-000 RD INSPECTOR HRLY WAGE 1,595.00
771.97 0.00 -771.97 0.00100-00-53104-130-000 RD INSPECTOR SOC SEC/MEDICARE 122.01
877.98 16,253.00 15,375.02 5.40100-00-53104-390-000 RD INSPECTOR MISC 108.44

3,340.65 20,000.00 16,659.35 16.70100-00-53105-000-000 DRAINAGE & CULVERTS 0.00
63,585.32 120,000.00 56,414.68 52.99100-00-53106-000-000 SNOW REMOVAL EXPENSE 0.00



Budget Comparison - Detail

2024
2024 Budget

Status Budget
% of

August

Fund: All Funds

5
ACCT

3:18 PM9/12/2024

Actual 2024
Account Number 08/30/2024 Budget

Page:

2,700.50 9,000.00 6,299.50 30.01100-00-53107-000-000 SNOW REMOVAL PRIV ROADS 0.00
5,499.76 9,000.00 3,500.24 61.11100-00-53420-000-000 STREET LIGHTING 785.68

0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00100-00-53432-000-000 SIDEWALK MAINT 0.00
11,135.77 5,000.00 -6,135.77 222.72100-00-53440-450-000 STORM WATER  PLANNING 0.00

9,037.47 50,000.00 40,962.53 18.07100-00-53440-451-000 STORM WATER  MANAGEMENT 1,790.47
233,471.02 437,944.00 204,472.98 53.31100-00-53630-000-000 REFUSE & GARBAGE COLLECTION 34,621.35
116,800.53 198,235.00 81,434.47 58.92100-00-53635-000-000 RECYCLING 16,685.79

4,068.30 0.00 -4,068.30 0.00100-00-53635-343-000 RECYCLING    TOTES GARB/RECY 0.00
0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00100-00-53640-000-000 WEED & NUISANCE CONTROL 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
PUBLIC WORKS 80,146.26 57.57683,610.68 503,821.321,187,432.00
======================================================================================================================================================

1,500.00 500.00 -1,000.00 300.00100-00-54100-000-000 PUBLIC HEALTH  ANIMAL CONTRO 0.00
1,178.00 1,200.00 22.00 98.17100-00-54110-000-000 DOG TAX FEES PAID  TO COUNT 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 0.00 157.532,678.00 -978.001,700.00
======================================================================================================================================================

2,712.50 10,000.00 7,287.50 27.13100-00-55200-110-000 PARKS   WAGES 250.00
207.51 0.00 -207.51 0.00100-00-55200-130-000 PARKS   SOC SEC/MEDICARE 19.13

13,761.56 25,000.00 11,238.44 55.05100-00-55200-363-000 PARKS   MAINTENANCE EXP 2,489.50
15,411.05 3,000.00 -12,411.05 513.70100-00-55200-390-000 PARKS   MISC EXP 39.11

1,708.78 5,000.00 3,291.22 34.18100-00-55201-820-000 PARKS   IMPROVEMENTS 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
CULTURE, RECREATION AND EDU. 2,797.74 78.6133,801.40 9,198.6043,000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 7,600.00 7,600.00 0.00100-00-56200-455-000 ECONOMIC DEV WC-IDB 0.00
22,259.17 10,000.00 -12,259.17 222.59100-00-56200-456-000 ECONOMIC DEV T.I.F. 2,567.50

1,425.00 1,800.00 375.00 79.17100-00-56300-110-000 PLANNING COMMISSION WAGES 325.00
12,698.47 50,000.00 37,301.53 25.40100-00-56300-390-000 PLANNING COMMISSION MISC EXP 0.00

5,976.08 5,000.00 -976.08 119.52100-00-56400-452-000 LAND USE/ZONING SURVEYING &FYG 1,718.58
1,093.00 50,000.00 48,907.00 2.19100-00-56400-453-000 LAND USE/ZONING ENGINEERING 234.00

76,053.23 125,000.00 48,946.77 60.84100-00-56400-454-000 LAND USE/ZONING STM WATER POND 65,323.55
======================================================================================================================================================
CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT 70,168.63 47.92119,504.95 129,895.05249,400.00
======================================================================================================================================================

152,933.80 60,000.00 -92,933.80 254.89100-00-57100-000-000 LRP ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCT 3,587.50
0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00100-00-57200-000-000 RESERVE FOR TOWN REVALUATION 0.00

5,994.29 30,000.00 24,005.71 19.98100-00-57301-000-000 BELLHAVEN LANE POND 3,467.05
11,485.52 8,738.00 -2,747.52 131.44100-00-57302-000-000 LEONARD POINT DETENTION POND 3,505.34

0.00 256,000.00 256,000.00 0.00100-00-57400-000-000 FIRE EQUIPMENT 0.00
0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00100-00-57500-000-000 JONES PARK 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
CAPITAL OUTLAY 10,559.89 43.17170,413.61 224,324.39394,738.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 220,000.00 220,000.00 0.00100-00-58100-610-000 GO REFUNDING BOND PRINCIPAL 0.00
265,837.60 102,741.60 -163,096.00 258.74100-00-58200-620-000 OMRO ROAD INTEREST 50,149.80

93,402.40 36,098.40 -57,304.00 258.74100-00-58201-620-000 STORM SEWER INTEREST 17,620.20
======================================================================================================================================================
DEBT SERVICE 67,770.00 100.11359,240.00 -400.00358,840.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

2,419,482.55 3,200,473.41Total Expenses 704,171.61 75.60780,990.86
======================================================================================================================================================

1,618,464.4117,999.91-328,951.65 -8,891.51-1,600,464.50Net Totals



 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 

To: Honorable Town Chairperson and Town Supervisors 

From:  Maggie Mahoney, Administrator 

Date:  September 18, 2024 

RE:  Ordinance No. 2024-02, An Ordinance Amending to Chapter 15 of the Code of 
Ordinances for the Town of Algoma: Citations 

  

SUMMARY:  
At the August 21, 2024 Town Board meeting Town Attorney Pluff provided the attached 
memo on ordinance enforcement and discussed this process with the Board. Per that 
memo:  

Step 1 is to draft an amendment to the citation ordinance to allow for citations to be 
issued by a Town Official.  

Step 2 is the Board approving the amended ordinance. The Board should also 
create/amend its fee schedule in order to allow for correct citation amounts for 
violations.  

Per Step 2, the Board is presented with the amended ordinance for discussion and 
consideration at this meeting.  

Attached is Ordinance 2024-2, which amends and restates two sections of Chapter 15, 
Citations. Also attached is the current code for these same two sections.  

The following is a summary of the changes:  

15-3 Schedule of deposits. Provides adequate language to administer schedule of 
deposits, including naming Winnebago County Circuit Court as entity for cash 
deposits.  

15-4 Issuance and service of citation. Added language makes the ordinance 
compliant with Wis. Stat. Sec. 66.0113 by stating the Town Board may authorize a 
Town official or officials to issue citations on behalf of the Town and also authorizing 
the Town Administrator to issue citations. The authorizations for the Building 
Inspector and Town Road/Drainage Coordinator remain from the current code.  

 

 



 

 

Attorney Pluff will be present at the meeting to discuss with the Board. The Town 
Administrator recommends the ordinance as presented.  

Next steps upon approval of an amended ordinance:  

Review/amendment of the fee schedule will require additional discussion and action, 
to take place a future meeting.  

Coordinate with Winnebago County Clerk of Court in setting up citation intake for the 
Town.  

Town obtains a citation booklet and many begin issuing citations.  

Town Attorney prosecutes the citation in court.  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the amended ordinance as presented. Should the 
Board agree the following motion may be made:  

“Motion to approve Ordinance No. 2024-02, An Ordinance Amending to Chapter 15 of the 
Code of Ordinances for the Town of Algoma: Citations.”  

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Ord No. 2024-2 Amending Chapter 15 – Citations 
2. Current Town Code Chapter 15 sections 15.3 and 15.4 
3. Attorney Pluff memo on citation ordinance dated 8.16.24 



ORDINANCE NO. 2024 – 02 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TO CHAPTER 15 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE TOWN 
OF ALGOMA: CITATIONS 

The Town Board of Supervisors of the Town of Algoma, Winnebago County, Wisconsin, do 
ordain as follows: 

 1.   AUTHORITY/ PURPOSE.  The Town Board of the Town of Algoma, Winnebago County, 
Wisconsin, has the specific authority under s. 66.0113, Wis. stats., to adopt this ordinance. The 
purpose of this ordinance is to authorize the Town Board of the Town of Algoma, or its 
designees, to issue citations for violations of Town of Algoma ordinances, including ordinances 
with statutory counterparts. 

2.  AMENDMENT. Sections 15.3 and 15.4 of the Municipal Code for the Town of Algoma, 
Winnebago County, Wisconsin, are hereby rescinded and restated as follows:  

A. Section 15-3 of the Code of the Town of Algoma is hereby rescinded and restated as 
follows: 

§ 15-3 Schedule of deposits.  

A.   The schedule of cash deposits shall be established by the Town Board for use with 
citations issued under this chapter according to the penalty provisions of this 
Code, a copy of which is on file with the Town Clerk. 

B.    The town board names the following court, clerk of court, or other official to 
whom cash deposits are to be made and requires that receipts shall be given for 
cash deposits: Winnebago County Circuit Court. 

C.  The town board requires that in traffic regulation violation actions, except for 
parking regulation violations, the uniform traffic citation specified in s. 345.11, 
Wis. stats., shall be used by the Town of Algoma in lieu of the citation form 
described in section 15-2. 

D.   The town board requires that in actions for violations of Town of Algoma 
ordinances enacted in accordance with s. 23.33 (11) (am), 23.335 (21) (a), 
or 30.77, Wis. stats., the citation form specified in s. 23.54, Wis. stats., shall be 
used in lieu of the citation form described in section 15-2. 

 
B. Section 15-4 of the Code of the Town of Algoma is hereby rescinded and restated as 

follows: 

§ 15-4  Issuance and service of citation. 

A.    Town of Algoma citations may be issued by the Town Board of the Town 
of Algoma, or the Town Board of the Town of Algoma may designate 



certain Town of Algoma, Winnebago County, or other municipal officials, 
with their written approval, to issue such citations. 

B.    Town of Algoma citations, in addition, may specifically be issued by the 
Town Administrator. This official may also designate a person to issue such 
Ordinances for the Town of Algoma and this official may revoke this 
authority to issue anytime. 

C.    The Town Building Inspector is authorized to issue citations in regard to 
Chapter 135, Article I, of the Town Code relating to building permits, 
Chapter 139 of the Town Code relating to demolition of buildings, 
Chapter 260 of the Town Code relating to public works, and the Uniform 
Dwelling Code as adopted by Chapter 135, Article II, of the Town Code and 
may be amended from time to time. 

D.    The Town Road/Drainage Coordinator may issue such citations with 
respect to violations of Chapter 288, Article II, of the Town Code relating 
to excavations and utilities in Town highways, Chapter 260 of the Town 
Code relating to public works, and any other matters over which he is 
specifically given jurisdiction 

E.    The Town of Algoma Town Board has designated the Town Chair, Town 
Administrator, or any person approved by the Town Board to serve any 
citations for the Town of Algoma upon issuance. Any person specifically 
authorized by the Town Board to issue citations by the Town Board of the 
Town of Algoma may also serve such citations. 

3.  EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance is effective on publication or posting. 

Adopted by the Town Board of Algoma, Winnebago County, Wisconsin on this ______ day of 
________________, 2024 

 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
                                                                                                                        Joel Rasmussen, Town Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Katherine Reinbold 
Municipal Clerk/Treasurer 

https://ecode360.com/30097887#30097887
https://ecode360.com/30097888#30097888
https://ecode360.com/30174051#30174051
https://ecode360.com/30099054#30099054
https://ecode360.com/30097887#30097887
https://ecode360.com/30097890#30097890
https://ecode360.com/30099203#30099203
https://ecode360.com/30099207#30099207
https://ecode360.com/30099054#30099054


[1]

A. 

B. 

[1]

Town of Algoma, WI
Wednesday, September 11, 2024

Chapter 15. Citations

§ 15-3. Schedule of deposits.

The schedule of cash deposits shall be established by the Town Board for use with citations issued
under this chapter according to the penalty provisions of this Code, a copy of which is on file with the
Town Clerk.

Editor's Note: Amended at time of adoption of Code (see Ch. 1, General Provisions, Art. II).

§ 15-4. Issuance of citation.

The Town Building Inspector is authorized to issue citations in regard to Chapter 135, Article I, of
the Town Code relating to building permits, Chapter 139 of the Town Code relating to demolition of
buildings, Chapter 260 of the Town Code relating to public works, and the Uniform Dwelling Code
as adopted by Chapter 135, Article II, of the Town Code and may be amended from time to time.

The Town Road/Drainage Coordinator may issue such citations with respect to violations of Chapter
288, Article II, of the Town Code relating to excavations and utilities in Town highways, Chapter 260
of the Town Code relating to public works, and any other matters over which he is specifically given
jurisdiction.

Editor's Note: Amended at time of adoption of Code (see Ch. 1, General Provisions, Art. II).

9/11/24, 2:15 PM Town of Algoma, WI Schedule of deposits.

https://ecode360.com/print/AL3573?guid=30097550,30097551 1/1

https://ecode360.com/print/30328492#30328492
https://ecode360.com/print/30328493#30328493
https://ecode360.com/print/30312609#30312609
https://ecode360.com/print/30328489#30328489
https://ecode360.com/print/30097887#30097887
https://ecode360.com/print/30097888#30097888
https://ecode360.com/print/30174051#30174051
https://ecode360.com/print/30099054#30099054
https://ecode360.com/print/30097887#30097887
https://ecode360.com/print/30097890#30097890
https://ecode360.com/print/30099203#30099203
https://ecode360.com/print/30099207#30099207
https://ecode360.com/print/30099054#30099054
https://ecode360.com/print/30312609#30312609
https://ecode360.com/print/30328489#30328489


 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

940 E. Evergreen Drive • Kaukauna, WI 54130 

(920) 725-1233 • www.towncounsellawfirm.com 

 

LEGAL MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Town of Algoma Board of Supervisors 
From: Tyler D. Pluff 
Date: August 16, 2024 
Re: Ordinance Enforcement 
 
 
 

 
 Dear Town Board Supervisors:  

 It is my understanding that the Town desires to implement a procedure that would allow for the 

Town to penalize violators of the Town’s ordinances.  Below is a general overview of a procedure available 

to the Town and an outline showing the steps the Town will need to take to move forward if it desires.  

Currently the only method of enforcement available to the Town looks to be through the injunction 

procedure in the courts. However, this method is normally only useful for continuing and obvious violations 

that require an increased response through the court system.  

State statutes allow for a municipality to enforce its ordinances through a citation procedure. The 

requirements for this procedure are outlined in Wis. Stat. Sec. 66.0113. A general citation ordinance would 

allow the Town to issue citations for nuisance properties, failing to obtain proper permits, and other 

violations of Town Ordinances. These monetary fines do not result a court order to halt the activity as an 

injunction would but may become an important step in notifying someone of their violation of Town 

Ordinances.  

In review of the Town’s current ordinances, the Town looks to have previously enacted a version of 

the citation ordinance under Chapter 15. However, the authorization to issue the citations is only given to 

the building inspector and road supervisor for violations of specific codes.  

The Town would therefore benefit by amending Chapter 15 of its ordinances to a general citation 

ordinance compliant with Wis. Stat. Sec. 66.0113. Under the statute, the Town Board may authorize a Town 

official or officials to issue citations on behalf of the Town. Normally this task is assigned to the 

administrator. The Town could also keep the citations available to the building inspector and 

road/drainage coordinator. 

 

http://www.towncounsellawfirm.com/


       Once the Town has proper ordinance in place and an official has the authority to issue the citations, 

the Town must then set up its citation procedure with a Court. While the Town has the option of creating 

its own municipal court, there is also the option of having tickets heard in the circuit court. In this instance, 

given that the Town does not have its own police department, the Town should elect to have its citations 

heard at the same time as other municipalities in the circuit court.  

         The authorized Town offical will mail out citaitons, by certified mail, to violators. The Town will 

need to acquire a citation booklet that contains the information required by the statute and ordinance. The 

citation would have a date on which the violator would be required to appear in court, and a fine amount. 

The appearance in court is the Intake Date. 

         Based on previous emails with the Clerk of Courts, “Intake Hearings” would likely take place on 

Tuesdays at 9:00 a.m.. The Town Attorney would be present at intake, to discuss the citations with violators 

who appear. If not guilty pleas are entered, then the matter would proceed to a potential pretrial 

conference, and then a hearing in front of a circuit court judge. It is important to note that all payments are 

made to the circuit court because there are fees involved with filing citations in the circuit court and the 

remainder is then distributed to the Town.  

                 In summary the following steps would need to completed in order to implement a proper citation 

procedure: 

Step 1:  An amended citation ordinance is drafted that allows for citations to be 

issued by a Town Official 

Step 2: Citation Ordinance Amendment is approved by the Town Board. The Town 

Board should also create/amend its fee schedule in order to allow for correct 

citation amounts for violations 

Step 3:  The Town will need to coordinate with Winnebago County Clerk of Court in 

setting up citation intake for the Town 

Step 4: The Town obtains a citation booklet and may begin issuing citations 

Step 5: The Town Attorney prosecutes the citation in court.  

    

               This memorandum gives a general overview of the process. I will be attending the Town Board 

Meeting in person to answer questions that you may have regarding the process.  

 

 

 



 

                    I look forward to discussing the topic with you further at your meeting.  

 
 

Town Counsel Law & Litigation, LLC 

 

s/ Tyler D. Pluff 

Tyler D. Pluff 
 
 
 

   



 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 

To: Honorable Town Chairperson and Town Supervisors 

From:  Maggie Mahoney, Administrator 

Date:  September 18, 2024 

RE:  2025 Emergency Medical Service with City of Oshkosh   

  

SUMMARY:  
The Town received the attached communication regarding Emergency Medical Service 
rates for 2025 dated 8/29/24. The City followed up with a meeting to discuss the rates on 
9/12/2024 which I attended.  

For the reasons stated in the letter, primarily the addition of a fourth ambulance and using 
a cost recover model, the rates for 2025 (effective January 1, 2025) are estimated to 
increase to either $31.20 per resident or $26.40 per resident if they obtain a SAFER grant.  

The fourth ambulance would go into service on July 1, 2025—so the first year/2025 is 
prorated.  

These are estimates for cost per capita—the final cost will be based on actual revenue and 
expenditures. This will allow the ability to reduce the cost should additional revenues and 
grants be available. Costs could also increase.  

The Town currently has an agreement with the City to provide this service through 
2026, but due to the increase to municipalities they are requesting each municipality 
to decide by October 1, 2024 if they want to retain service in 2025.   

 

Fiscal Impact:  

The Town is billed for service each October and pays the bill in February—so we are able to 
budget for this cost. For example, the 2023 service bill was received in October 2023 and 
paid in February 2024. Meaning, this particular increase for the 2025 service year will be 
included in the 2026 budget. As previously known, rates did increase to $11.40 per capita 
for the 2024 service.  

The Town Board can set a fee to recover costs for ambulance service as long as the fee 
bears a reasonable relationship to the service for which the fee is imposed (Wis. Stat. 



§66.0628). The fee must be reasonable in light of the town’s costs and may not be used to 
raise revenues.   

The following is a summary of the estimated annual cost for EMS service with the City:  

Per capita Per capita Total 
Service Year   Budget Year  amount  w/ grant (no grant / grant)*  

2023   2024   $3.60  NA  $24,980 (actual) 

2024   2025   $11.40  NA  $79,823 

2025   2026   $31.20  $26.40  $218,462 / $184,853 

2026   2027   $37.77  $27.73  $264,465 / $194,165 

*using 7,002 population estimate 

 

Staff recommends continuing service with the City for 2025 for the following reasons:  

The increased costs are due to changing the cost methodology to a cost recovery model 
wherein actual costs will be distributed to all municipalities using the service and not 
subsidized in part by the City. In addition, they are addressing the need for the fourth 
ambulance. Although it is a dramatic increase, it is due to those costs not being addressed 
by the City in the past.  

The municipalities covered by the agreement have looked into alternative services and 
there is currently not another option that is as cost effective that provides this level of 
service.  

The effect of the General Fund is significant and I advise the Board to seriously consider 
implementing a fee to recover at least part, if not all, of the ambulance service costs. We 
will discuss that fee as part of the budget process.  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends continuing Emergency Medical Services in 
2025 with the City of Oshkosh. Should the Town Board agree the following motion may be 
made:  

“Motion to approve continuing Emergency Medical Services in 2025 with the City of 
Oshkosh.”  

 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. 8.29.24 Emergency Medical Service Rates for 2025 
2. 9.12.24 EMS meeting materials 

 















































���������	
���	������	�������	���������	��������������	���	 �����������!"#$%"#$&�'(")*"+	,�$��-	"-./�+��0�	1�%�	 1./�+��0!"#$%"#$&�'(")*2$�	3435647683	3948	:12"9	�����������	���	 �����������!"#$%"#$&�'(")*	;	�//�<$��+/#	=>	1?@A"�+<��	�"�%#$"B	C'3D'35	E1.	.��)�<�'BF-G	343;	E1.	.��)�<�#	:��	A�B�/�	�"�%#$��/'BF-G	:�"H�</�F	343I	:��	A�B�/��"�%#$��/'BF-G	343;	:��	A�B�/�	�"�%#$��/6��/$	.JKEL	M��+/'BF-G	:�"H�</�F	343I	:��	A�B�/�	�"�%#$��/	�-	.JKEL	(��+/	�#�&��F�F'BF-GNOPQ	RSTUVUWPX	YOPZOQ[	\]S	̂UXX	_TZ	̀aO	WQObOT̀P̀U]T	cQ]d	̀]ZPefb	dOÒUTg	PhPVaOZi		jXb][	̀aO	WQ]kOV̀OZ	WOQ	VPWÙPQP̀Ob	c]Q	lmln	PTZ	lmlo	PQO	UTVXSZOZi		paO	WQ]kOV̀OZ	QP̀Ob	c]Q	lmln	UTVXSZO	̀aO	V]b̀b	]c	̀aO	c]SQ̀aPdqSXPTVO	STÙ	c]Q	]TOraPXc	]c	̀aO	eOPQi		paO	QP̀Ob	c]Q	lmlo	ZOd]Tb̀QP̀O	̂aP̀	̀aO	QP̀Ob	̂]SXZqO	WQ]kOV̀OZ	P̀	P	cSXX	eOPQ	]c	b̀PsTg	̀aO	c]SQ̀a	PdqSXPTVO	STÙi		tXOPbO	T]̀O	̀aP̀	̀aObO	PQOWQ]kOV̀U]Tb	c]Q	̀̂ ]	eOPQb	UT̀]	̀aO	cS̀SQO	PTZ	VPT	VaPTgO	qPbOZ	]T	̀aO	UTuP̀U]T	]c	ZUbW]bPqXOb[cSOX[	ÒVi		paO	vbaw]ba	xUQO	NOWPQ̀dOT̀	aPb	PXb]	PWWXUOZ	c]Q	P	xyRj	zjxy{	gQPT̀	̀]	cSTZ	̀aO	WOQb]TTOXV]b̀b	c]Q	̀aO	c]SQ̀a	PdqSXPTVO	STÙi		za]SXZ	̀aP̀	gQPT̀	qO	P̂ PQZOZ[	Ù	̂]SXZ	QOZSVO	̀aO	V]b̀i	tQ]kOV̀U]Tb	c]Q	̀aO	WOQ	VPWÙP	̀aP̀	QOuOV̀	V]b̀b	Uc	̀aO	vbaw]ba	xUQO	NOWPQ̀dOT̀	̂OQO	̀]	QOVOU|OàO	P̂ PQZ	PQO	PXb]	PhPVaOZi		jb	P	VPS̀U]T[	̀aO	V]T_ZOTVO	UT	QOVOU|UTg	̀aO	gQPT̀	ba]SXZ	T]̀	qO|OQe	aUga	PTZ	Ù	̂]SXZ	qO	d]QO	XUwOXe	̀aP̀	̀aO	WQ]kOV̀OZ	V]b̀b	̂Ùa]S̀	̀aO	gQPT̀	̂]SXZ	qO	̀aOVPbOi	pPwO	VPQO[RUwO			}~�����	�������xUQO	�aUOc



����������	
��
�	��
���������������������� !"�#$"�#%&'(")��
***�+�,-./�***�01�
���2�33	
������4��5
3�6	���789:;<=>?@ABC8DEC8DBFABG8���789:;<=>?C8DEC8DFABHCIJ�K2
�
�L�3�
�1�L	�33	
���M��������
��5
��6	�����
��
N�33	
���	
����M2�4�
3J���



Fleet Costs

$709,500

Total Cost of Division Chief of EMS Vehicle Purchased in 2023

Annual Cost for External EMS Training

Total Cost of 3 Ambulances Purchased in 2024

Total Cost of 3 Ambulances Purchased in 2016

$55,358

Vehicles are Replaced on a 9-year Schedule

Total Cost of 3 Ambulances Purchased in 2019

Total Cost of Preventative Maintenance Contracts $26,700

$189,400

Total Cost of Software and Cloud Based Services $38,555

$849,000

$1,045,341

$3,000

Software and Cloud Based Services

EMS Training

Annual Cost of Record Management Software

Annual Cost of Archive for Records Management Software

Annual Cost for Software Integration

Annual Cost for Controlled Substance Tracking Software

Annual Cost for Application Based Software for EMS Protocols

Annual Cost for Crash Recovery Software $830

$4,500

$2,650

$5,700

$875

$24,000

Total Personnel Costs $5,096,380

Cost of Contracting Medical Director

Projected Per Capita Rate for EMS Services Delivered in 2025

Personnel Costs
Total Pay and Benefits for 33 Firefighter/Paramedics assigned to ambulances

Total Pay and Benefits for 3 EMS Coordinators

Total Pay and Benefits for 8 Firefighter/Paramedics to staff 4th ambulance unit for .5 year

Total Pay and Benefits for the Division Chief of EMS

$4,087,672

$429,401

$407,719

$171,588

Medical Direction
$20,000

$20,000

Equipment and Supplies

Total Cost of Purchasing Cardiac Monitors 

10% of Cost of Cardiac Monitors

Total Cost for Medical Direction

Cardiac Monitors are Replaced on a 10-year Schedule

$1,112,930

$111,293

$19,000

$12,000

Cost of Annual Maintenance Contract for Stretchers

Cost of Annual Maintenance Contract for Patient Lifting and Moving Devices

Annual Cost for Durable and Disposable EMS Supplies

Annual Cost for Repair of EMS Equipment

$7,700

Preventative Maintenance Contracts
Total Cost of Equipment & Supplies $312,693



Total Operational Costs

Overhead Costs

Total Costs for EMS System

Total EMS Revenue

Population

Projected Per Capita Cost for Service

PLEASE NOTE THAT THESE ARE PROJECTIONS AND ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITH INCREASES IN EXPENSES OR REVENUE

Total Cost of Vehicles $2,659,199

Total Population of EMS Service Area 93,388

Net Operating Cost $2,913,862.64

Total EMS Revenue $3,633,000

12,822

$3.65

$42,188

$69,940Parts

Labor

Fuel

Diesel Fuel in Gallons

Cost Per Gallon of Fuel

1/9 cost of Vehicles $295,437.01

$31.20

26,143

67,245

Calculated at 3% of Total Operational Costs

Projected Total  for EMS Billing (Net Revenue After Billing Fee)

Projected Total for Funding from the Wisconsin Funding Assistance Program

$3,600,000

$33,000

$178,550.80

Population for the City of Oshkosh

Population for Contracted Municipalities

$6,546,862.64

Calculated at 7% of Total Operational Costs

City Of Oshkosh Administrative Overhead

$5,951,693.31

$416,618.53

Total Cost of Fuel $46,800.30

Total Cost of Fleet $454,365.31

Departmental Overhead 



Fleet Costs

$19,000

$12,000

Cost of Annual Maintenance Contract for Stretchers

Cost of Annual Maintenance Contract for Patient Lifting and Moving Devices

Annual Cost for Durable and Disposable EMS Supplies

Annual Cost for Repair of EMS Equipment

$7,700

Preventative Maintenance Contracts
Total Cost of Equipment & Supplies $312,693

$20,000

Equipment and Supplies

Total Cost of Purchasing Cardiac Monitors 

10% of Cost of Cardiac Monitors

Total Cost for Medical Direction

Cardiac Monitors are Replaced on a 10-year Schedule

$1,112,930

$111,293

Total Personnel Costs $4,688,661

Cost of Contracting Medical Director

Projected Per Capita Rate for EMS Services Delivered in 2025-IF SAFER GRANT IS AWARDED

Personnel Costs
Total Pay and Benefits for 33 Firefighter/Paramedics assigned to ambulances

Total Pay and Benefits for 3 EMS Coordinators

Total Pay and Benefits for 8 Firefighter/Paramedics to staff 4th ambulance unit for .5 year

Total Pay and Benefits for the Division Chief of EMS

$4,087,672

$429,401

$0

$171,588

Medical Direction
$20,000

Total Cost of 3 Ambulances Purchased in 2019

Total Cost of Preventative Maintenance Contracts $26,700

$189,400

Total Cost of Software and Cloud Based Services $38,555

$849,000

$1,045,341

$3,000

Software and Cloud Based Services

EMS Training

Annual Cost of Record Management Software

Annual Cost of Archive for Records Management Software

Annual Cost for Software Integration

Annual Cost for Controlled Substance Tracking Software

Annual Cost for Application Based Software for EMS Protocols

Annual Cost for Crash Recovery Software $830

$4,500

$2,650

$5,700

$875

$24,000

Annual Cost for External EMS Training

Total Cost of 3 Ambulances Purchased in 2024

Total Cost of 3 Ambulances Purchased in 2016

$55,358

Vehicles are Replaced on a 9-year Schedule

$709,500

Total Cost of Division Chief of EMS Vehicle Purchased in 2023



Total Operational Costs

Overhead Costs

Total Costs for EMS System

Total EMS Revenue

Population

Projected Per Capita Cost for Service

PLEASE NOTE THAT THESE ARE PROJECTIONS AND ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITH INCREASES IN EXPENSES OR REVENUE

Calculated at 7% of Total Operational Costs

City Of Oshkosh Administrative Overhead

$5,543,974.31

$388,078.20

Total Cost of Fuel $46,800.30

Total Cost of Fleet $454,365.31

Departmental Overhead 

$295,437.01

$26.40

26,143

67,245

Calculated at 3% of Total Operational Costs

Projected Total  for EMS Billing (Net Revenue After Billing Fee)

Projected Total for Funding from the Wisconsin Funding Assistance Program

$3,600,000

$33,000

$166,319.23

Population for the City of Oshkosh

Population for Contracted Municipalities

$6,098,371.74

Total Cost of Vehicles $2,659,199

Total Population of EMS Service Area 93,388

Net Operating Cost $2,465,371.74

Total EMS Revenue $3,633,000

12,822

$3.65

$42,188

$69,940Parts

Labor

Fuel

Diesel Fuel in Gallons

Cost Per Gallon of Fuel

1/9 cost of Vehicles



Fleet Costs

$19,000

$12,480

Cost of Annual Maintenance Contract for Stretchers

Cost of Annual Maintenance Contract for Patient Lifting and Moving Devices

Annual Cost for Durable and Disposable EMS Supplies

Annual Cost for Repair of EMS Equipment

$7,700

Preventative Maintenance Contracts
Total Cost of Equipment & Supplies $320,749

$20,000

Equipment and Supplies

Total Cost of Purchasing Cardiac Monitors 

10% of Cost of Cardiac Monitors

Total Cost for Medical Direction

Cardiac Monitors are Replaced on a 10-year Schedule

$1,112,930

$111,293

Total Personnel Costs $5,730,101

Cost of Contracting Medical Director

Projected Per Capita Rate for EMS Services Delivered in 2026

Personnel Costs
Total Pay and Benefits for 41 Firefighter/Paramedics assigned to ambulances

Total Pay and Benefits for 3 EMS Coordinators

Total Pay and Benefits for the Division Chief of EMS

$5,123,750

$427,042

$179,309

Medical Direction
$20,000

Total Cost of 3 Ambulances Purchased in 2019

Total Cost of Preventative Maintenance Contracts $26,700

$196,976

Total Cost of Software and Cloud Based Services $38,555

$849,000

$1,045,341

$3,000

Software and Cloud Based Services

EMS Training

Annual Cost of Record Management Software

Annual Cost of Archive for Records Management Software

Annual Cost for Software Integration

Annual Cost for Controlled Substance Tracking Software

Annual Cost for Application Based Software for EMS Protocols

Annual Cost for Crash Recovery Software $830

$4,500

$2,650

$5,700

$875

$24,000

Annual Cost for External EMS Training

Total Cost of 3 Ambulances Purchased in 2024

Total Cost of 3 Ambulances Purchased in 2016

$55,358

Vehicles are Replaced on a 9-year Schedule

$709,500

Total Cost of Division Chief of EMS Vehicle Purchased in 2023



Total Operational Costs

Overhead Costs

Total Costs for EMS System

Total EMS Revenue

Population

Projected Per Capita Cost for Service

PLEASE NOTE THAT THESE ARE PROJECTIONS AND ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITH INCREASES IN EXPENSES OR REVENUE

Calculated at 7% of Total Operational Costs

City Of Oshkosh Administrative Overhead

$6,599,879.61

$461,991.57

Total Cost of Fuel $48,723.60

Total Cost of Fleet $460,774.61

Departmental Overhead 

$295,437.01

$37.77

26,143

67,245

Calculated at 3% of Total Operational Costs

Projected Total  for EMS Billing (Net Revenue After Billing Fee)

Projected Total for Funding from the Wisconsin Funding Assistance Program

$3,700,000

$33,000

$197,996.39

Population for the City of Oshkosh

Population for Contracted Municipalities

$7,259,867.57

Total Cost of Vehicles $2,659,199

Total Population of EMS Service Area 93,388

Net Operating Cost $3,526,867.57

Total EMS Recenue $3,733,000

12,822

$3.80

$43,876

$72,738Parts

Labor

Fuel

Diesel Fuel in Gallons

Cost Per Gallon of Fuel

1/9 cost of Vehicles



Fleet Costs

$709,500

Total Cost of Division Chief of EMS Vehicle Purchased in 2023

Annual Cost for External EMS Training

Total Cost of 3 Ambulances Purchased in 2024

Total Cost of 3 Ambulances Purchased in 2016

$55,358

Vehicles are Replaced on a 9-year Schedule

Total Cost of 3 Ambulances Purchased in 2019

Total Cost of Preventative Maintenance Contracts $26,700

$196,976

Total Cost of Software and Cloud Based Services $38,555

$849,000

$1,045,341

$3,000

Software and Cloud Based Services

EMS Training

Annual Cost of Record Management Software

Annual Cost of Archive for Records Management Software

Annual Cost for Software Integration

Annual Cost for Controlled Substance Tracking Software

Annual Cost for Application Based Software for EMS Protocols

Annual Cost for Crash Recovery Software $830

$4,500

$2,650

$5,700

$875

$24,000

Total Personnel Costs $4,877,968

Cost of Contracting Medical Director

Projected Per Capita Rate for EMS Services Delivered in 2026-IF SAFER GRANT IS AWARDED

Personnel Costs
Total Pay and Benefits for 41 Firefighter/Paramedics assigned to ambulances

Total Pay and Benefits for 3 EMS Coordinators

Total Pay and Benefits for the Division Chief of EMS

$4,271,617

$427,042

$179,309

Medical Direction
$20,000

$20,000

Equipment and Supplies

Total Cost of Purchasing Cardiac Monitors 

10% of Cost of Cardiac Monitors

Total Cost for Medical Direction

Cardiac Monitors are Replaced on a 10-year Schedule

$1,112,930

$111,293

$19,000

$12,480

Cost of Annual Maintenance Contract for Stretchers

Cost of Annual Maintenance Contract for Patient Lifting and Moving Devices

Annual Cost for Durable and Disposable EMS Supplies

Annual Cost for Repair of EMS Equipment

$7,700

Preventative Maintenance Contracts
Total Cost of Equipment & Supplies $320,749



Total Operational Costs

Overhead Costs

Total Costs for EMS System

Total EMS Revenue

Population

Projected Per Capita Cost for Service

PLEASE NOTE THAT THESE ARE PROJECTIONS AND ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITH INCREASES IN EXPENSES OR REVENUE

Total Cost of Vehicles $2,659,199

Total Population of EMS Service Area 93,388

Net Operating Cost $2,589,521.27

Total EMS Recenue $3,733,000

12,822

$3.80

$43,876

$72,738Parts

Labor

Fuel

Diesel Fuel in Gallons

Cost Per Gallon of Fuel

1/9 cost of Vehicles $295,437.01

$27.73

26,143

67,245

Calculated at 3% of Total Operational Costs

Projected Total  for EMS Billing (Net Revenue After Billing Fee)

Projected Total for Funding from the Wisconsin Funding Assistance Program

$3,700,000

$33,000

$172,432.40

Population for the City of Oshkosh

Population for Contracted Municipalities

$6,322,521.27

Calculated at 7% of Total Operational Costs

City Of Oshkosh Administrative Overhead

$5,747,746.61

$402,342.26

Total Cost of Fuel $48,723.60

Total Cost of Fleet $460,774.61

Departmental Overhead 



Contract for EMS Services 
Outside of the City and Impact 

on Need for 4th Ambulance Unit

1



Resources and References

• 2019-Fire Department Staffing and Deployment Study-Matrix Consulting 
Group

• 2020-Standard for the Organization and Deployment of Fire Suppression 
Operations to the Public for Career Departments-NFPA 1710

• 2022-OFD 2022-2027 Strategic Plan

• 2022-Oshkosh EMS Cost Allocation Evaluation-Wisconsin Policy Forum

• 2023-Community Risk Assessment and Standards of Cover-ESCI

• 2023-Fire Service Organizational Culture of Safety (FOCUS) Report

• 2024-City of Oshkosh Strategic Plan 2025-2026

2



Clarifications

• It’s About Data-Driven Decision Making

• It’s About Service and the Promise

• It’s About Feedback and Input

• It’s Not Political or Personal

3



4

May 28, 2024



5



Oshkosh Fire Department

6



7



8



Timeline

• 1976-OFD Begins Providing Ambulance Services

• 1981-OFD Begins Providing Paramedic Level Care

• 2004-OFD Begins Providing Ambulance Service to Townships

• 2005-OFD Places Third Ambulance in Service

• 2020-OFD Discontinues Providing Inter-Facility Transports

• 2024-OFD Service Levels Being Critically Impacted

9/12/2024 MJ VanGompel, Management Analyst 9



9/12/2024 MJ VanGompel, Management Analyst 10



11



779

691

717

649

710711

872

834

739
718

735
718

770

817

655

560

715

742

829

782
760

838

812

772

710
700

738745742

818

893890

838
849

778

877
866

807
824

755

945

878

969

893

865
882

818

899

790

738

807

778

860

892

944

916

866

967

880
899

975

796

836

882874

817

1045

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

Call Volume - All Calls 
January 2019 - July 2024

Incidents Lower NPL Upper NPL Average Linear (Incidents)

Call volume has increased 16.7 % between 2019 and 2024

9/12/2024 12MJ VanGompel, Management Analyst



13



9/12/2024 MJ VanGompel, Management Analyst 14



Unit Hour Utilization for Medic Units

9/12/2024 MJ VanGompel, Management Analyst 15



Impacts On Our Firefighters

EMS OFD Score Average Score Area of Concern

Emotional Exhaustion 55 44 >60

Engagement 62 73 <60

Job Satisfaction 66 74 <60

Resilience 79 82 <60

Intention to Leave Profession 44 38 >60

Compassion Fatigue 40 37 >60

16



Adding a Fourth Ambulance

17



Cost of Staffing a Fourth Ambulance

18



Possible Funding Mechanisms

• SAFER Grant

• Levy Increase

• Referendum

• Full Cost Recovery Model

19



20



Agreement with 10 Municipalities 2022-2026
Letter of Understanding on Billing Methodology 2024

• City of Omro
• Town of Algoma
• Town of Black Wolf
• Town of Nekimi
• Town of Omro
• Town of Poygan
• Town of Rushford
• Town of Winneconne
• Village of Winneconne
• Town of Utica

21



Per Capita Cost Methodology

• 3-EMS Coordinators
• 15-Paramedics
• .5-Division Chief of EMS
• Cross-Staff Paramedic Pay
• Medical Supplies
• Cardiac Monitors
• Medical Director
• Ambulance costs, fuel, repairs
• Preventative Maintenance
• RMS Software

• 3-EMS Coordinators
• 33-Paramedics
• 1-Division Chief of EMS
• Medical Supplies
• Cardiac Monitors
• Medical Director
• Ambulance costs, fuel, repairs
• Preventative Maintenance
• RMS Software

22



23



105

85

95

113

120

100

128

151

94

86

105104103

116

96

73

110

115
117

136

127
124

97

128

132

115

89

117
120121

160

125

99

129

124

143
141

132

125

107

127

116

154

129

122

110

116

146

116

89

119

123

110

136

151

119

115

146
143

111

145

109

117

138

128

112

160

70

80

90

100

110

120

130

140

150

160

170

County Call Volume 2019-July 2024

Call volume has increased 14.9 % between 2019 and 2024

9/12/2024 MJ VanGompel, Management Analyst 24



105

85
95

113

120100

128

151

94
86

105
104

103

116

96

73

110
115

117

136
127

124
97

128

132115

89117120

121

160

125

99129

124

143141

132
125

107

127

116

154

129
122

110

116

146

116

89

119

123

110

136

151
119

115

146

143
111

145

109

117

138128

112

160

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

Call Volume 2019- July 2024

Oshkosh County

Calls to outside of Oshkosh average 17.3% of total call volume

9/12/2024 MJ VanGompel, Management Analyst 25



Community

Response 
Time (90%) 

2023
Response Times 
(90%) YTD 2024

90% OOS Times 
YTD 2024

City of Omro 0:19:40 0:20:10 1:13:10

Town of Algoma 0:12:37 0:14:14 1:07:09

Town of Black Wolf 0:19:59 0:19:21 1:32:26

Town of Nekimi 0:16:34 0:18:06 1:18:48

Town of Omro 0:20:55 0:17:59 1:21:50

Town of Poygan 0:29:09 0:27:46 1:41:05

Town of Rushford 0:24:28 0:23:33 1:28:38

Town of Utica 0:21:13 0:25:44 2:15:33

Town of Winneconne 0:21:09 0:20:19 1:41:50

Village of Winneconne 0:20:43 0:20:49 1:17:41

City of Oshkosh 0:06:50 0:07:03 1:01:24

Response and OOS Times

9/12/2024 MJ VanGompel, Management Analyst 26



Cross Staff Utilization – Out of Service Hours

9/12/2024 MJ VanGompel, Management Analyst 27

133

192

234 229

0

50

100

150

200

250

2021 2022 2023 Projected 2024

2021 2022 2023
7 months 

2024
Projected 
2024

Hours OOS 132:47:29 191:30:17 234:05:11 133:48:26 229:23:02

Rounded OOS 133 192 234 134 229

# incidents 157 207 278 163 279

90% time 1:14:28 1:20:42 1:11:56 1:11:34



28



We’ve Been Here Before

29



Possible Options

• The City of Oshkosh funds the personnel for a 4th Ambulance at an 
initial cost of $782,195.00 annually.

• The contracted municipalities fund the personnel for the 4th

Ambulance at an initial cost of $782,195.00 annually.

• Develop a full-cost billing methodology for expenses to be shared by 
the City of Oshkosh and the contracted municipalities.

• Discontinue providing ambulance services with the contracted 
municipalities

30



31



AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

To: Honorable Town Chairperson and Town Supervisors 

From:  Maggie Mahoney, Administrator 

Date:  September 18, 2024 

RE:  Contracts with Jeff Foust Excavating, Inc for 2024-2025 snow plowing services 

SUMMARY:  
The Town Board is presented for consideration the 2024-2025 season snow removal 
contracts for:  

1. Cul de Sacs and Jones Park – public roads/park.
2. Private Roads  - to be billed to the property owners on the private roads that receive

this service.

Rates are nearly identical to the prior year rates. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommend approval the snow removal contracts as 
presented. Should the Town Board agree the following motion may be made:  

“Motion to approve contracts with Jeff Foust Excavating, Inc for 2024-2025 snow plowing 
services.”  

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 2024-2025 snow removal proposals















 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 

To: Honorable Town Chairperson and Town Supervisors 

From:  Maggie Mahoney, Administrator 

Date:  September 18, 2024 

RE:  Developer’s Agreement for Town of Algoma TID #1 with OSMS Real Estate, LLC and 
Algoma Sanitary District #1 

  

SUMMARY:  
Attached is the final draft developer agreement which has been reviewed and agreed to by 
the other two parties: OSMS Real Estate LLC and the Algoma Sanitary District.  

There are no substantive changes from previous versions presented and discussed with the 
Board; however, additional administrative changes are still be needed, such as updating 
names, titles and exhibits. Staff are requesting the authority from the Board to make those 
changes to the final version.  

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Town Attorney and Administrator recommend approval of the 
developer agreement and request the authority for the two of us and the Town Chair to 
make additional administrative changes. Should the Town Board agree the following motion 
may be made:  

“Motion to approve the TID #1 Developer Agreement of OSMS Real Estate LLC, the Town of 
Algoma, and the Algoma Sanitary District #1, and giving by authority to the Town Attorney 
Administrator and Chair by agreement, to correct any administrative updates, including, 
without limitation, correcting names titles, errors and the like as well as updating exhibits 
prior to final execution by the Town” 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Final draft development agreement with exhibits 



 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 

To: Honorable Town Chairperson and Town Supervisors 

From:  Maggie Mahoney, Administrator 

Date:  September 18, 2024 

RE:  Developer’s Agreement for Town of Algoma TID #1 with OSMS Real Estate, LLC and 
Algoma Sanitary District #1 

  

SUMMARY:  
Attached is the final draft developer agreement which has been reviewed and agreed to by 
the other two parties: OSMS Real Estate LLC and the Algoma Sanitary District.  

There are no substantive changes from previous versions presented and discussed with the 
Board; however, additional administrative changes are still be needed, such as updating 
names, titles and exhibits. Staff are requesting the authority from the Board to make those 
changes to the final version.  

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Town Attorney and Administrator recommend approval of the 
developer agreement and request the authority for the two of us and the Town Chair to 
make additional administrative changes. Should the Town Board agree the following motion 
may be made:  

“Motion to approve the TID #1 Developer Agreement of OSMS Real Estate LLC, the Town of 
Algoma, and the Algoma Sanitary District #1, and giving by authority to the Town Attorney 
Administrator and Chair by agreement, to correct any administrative updates, including, 
without limitation, correcting names titles, errors and the like as well as updating exhibits 
prior to final execution by the Town” 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Final draft development agreement with exhibits 



1 

 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

(TOWN OF ALGOMA TID #1) 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (TOWN OF ALGOMA TID 1) (this 

“Agreement”) is made as of ____________________, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and among 

the TOWN OF ALGOMA, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (the “Town”), OSMS REAL 

ESTATE, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company (the “Developer”), and the ALGOMA 

SANITARY DISTRICT #1 (the “Sanitary District”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Town has, pursuant to the authority granted in Wisconsin Statutes, Sections 

60.23(32) and 66.1105, created a Tax Incremental District, the Town of Algoma, Wisconsin Tax 

Increment District No. 1 (the “TID”), and adopted a Project Plan relating to the TID (as may be 

amended from time to time, the “TID Plan”) attached hereto as Exhibit R.1 to finance certain costs to 

induce development within or around the TID; and 

WHEREAS, in order to achieve the objectives of the TID Plan and to make the land within the 

TID available for development by private enterprises for and in accordance with the uses specified in 

the TID Plan, the Town has determined to provide funding to install certain public municipal drinking 

water infrastructure (the “Water Improvements”) within the TID; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer owns four (4) parcels of real property within the TID described on 

Exhibit R.2 attached hereto (the “Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer desires to combine the parcels via a certified survey map and build 

a new medical clinic facility together with other site improvements on the Property in accordance 

with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Developer's ability to develop the Property as set forth herein requires the 

installation of the Water Improvements as set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, the installation and management of the Water Improvements is under the control 

and jurisdiction of the Sanitary District; and 

WHEREAS, the Town has determined that the proposed development of the Property by 

Developer, as set forth herein, will (i) promote and carry out the development objectives of the Town, 

(ii) further the purposes of the TID Plan, and (iii) not occur at the Property without the assistance of 

the Town. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in 

this Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following 

meanings: 

a. “Facility” means a medical clinic as further depicted on Exhibit 1.d. 

b. “Memorandum” means a short form memorandum of this Agreement recorded in the 



2 

 

 

real estate records against the Property. The parties agree that the form of memorandum 

attached hereto as Exhibit 1.b. is acceptable to all parties. 

c. “Minimum Tax Increment” means an annual Tax Increment generated by the Project 

that is not less than the amounts necessary to pay the Town’s annual debt service payments 

on the Town Loan (the “Town Debt Service Payments”) 

d. “Plans” means final detailed site plan for the Project in form and substance acceptable 

to the Town, which shall include, without limitation, the following: all improvements now 

located or to be located on the Property, the footprint of all improvements and the square 

footage and layout of all improvements, all easements, pathways, exterior boundary lines, 

walkways, parking and circulation areas, adjoining public streets and alleys, utilities, exits and 

entrances, signage, exterior lighting, sidewalks, and landscaping. The Plans shall be 

substantially similar to the conceptual drawings attached hereto as Exhibit 1.d. unless 

otherwise agreed by the Town. 

e. “Project” means the development of the Property, including, but not limited to, the 

construction of the Facility and all improvements as may be required in order to comply with 

applicable laws, rules, regulations, codes and ordinances in the use of the Property and the 

Facility. For avoidance of doubt, the Project does not include the Water Improvements. 

f. “Project Completion” means all of the following have occurred: (i) the substantial 

completion of the Project in accordance with the Plans, (ii) a certificate of occupancy is issued 

by the appropriate governmental authorities for every building constituting the Facility, and 

(iii) completion of the Water Improvements in accordance with the Water Improvements 

Plans, each as determined by the Town in its reasonable discretion. 

g. “Project Completion Deadline” means June 30, 2026. 

h. “Property” is defined in the Recitals above. 

i. “Water Improvements” means the installation of public municipal drinking water 

infrastructure to serve the Project and surrounding parcels, as set forth on the Water 

Improvements Plans attached hereto as Exhibit 1.j. 

j. “Water Improvements Plans” means the final detailed plans for the Sewer and Water 

Improvements as set forth on Exhibit 1.j. 

k. “Tax Increment” for any given calendar year is the amount derived by multiplying the 

Tax Incremental Value for such year by the total interim tax rate in Column C on the Tax Increment 

Worksheet (Form PC-202) filed with the Department of Revenue. 

l. “Tax Increment Base Year Amount” means the equalized value of the Property on 

January 1, 2024. The Base Year Amount is $400,000.00. 

m. “Tax Incremental Value” means the total equalized value of the Property less the Base 

Value. 

n. “TID” is defined in the Recitals above. 



3 

 

 

o. “TID Plan” is defined in the Recitals above. 

2. Developer Obligations. Developer agrees and covenants as follows: 

a. Plans. Developer shall complete the Plans which must be acceptable in all respects to 

the Town. Any revisions to the Plans shall be subject to the Town's review and approval. 

Developer shall provide evidence that the Plans have been approved by all required 

governmental bodies. 

b. Construction of the Project. Developer, at its cost and expense, agrees to construct 

the Project in a good and workmanlike manner and substantially in accordance with the Plans. 

Developer will conform and comply with, and will cause the Project to be in conformance 

and compliance with all applicable federal, state, local and other laws, rules, regulations and 

ordinances, including, without limitation, all zoning and land division laws, rules, regulations 

and ordinances, all building codes and ordinances of the Town, and all environmental laws, 

rules, regulations and ordinances. Developer shall have in effect at all times all permits, 

approvals and licenses as may be required by any governmental authority or non-

governmental entity in connection with the development, construction, management and 

operation of the Project. Developer will not, without the Town's prior written consent, 

materially change the scope of the Project or the Plans. Developer shall at all times during and 

after construction of the Project and during the term of this Agreement, keep and maintain the 

Project in good repair and maintenance, and make or cause to be made from time to time all 

necessary repairs thereto, so as to maintain the Project in operational form, absent ordinary 

war and tear. 

c. Water Improvements - Developer Costs. Developer agrees to pay those costs 

associated with the Water Improvements as noted on Exhibit 2.c. as “Developer costs” 

directly to the Sanitary District when invoiced. Developer agrees to cooperate with reasonable 

requests from the Town and/or Sanitary District relating to the Water Improvements and any 

associated improvements and will enter into such other agreements and contracts as necessary 

and reasonably requested. The Developer shall also pay for one-half (1/2) of the Engineering 

Expenses directly to the Sanitary District when invoiced and as estimated on Exhibit 2.c. The 

Engineering Expenses shall be considered Project Costs (as defined in Wis. Stat. Sec. 

66.1105(2)(f)), and following repayment of the Town Loan, the Engineering Expenses 

incurred by Developer and the Town shall be reimbursed to Developer and the Town on a pro 

rata basis from Increment received, if the TID has not been closed. The Town shall take no 

action to close the TID early, if the Developer has not been reimbursed for its portion of the 

Engineering Expenses.   

d. Developer Guaranty. Developer hereby guaranties that the annual Tax Increment 

generated, which will first be due and payable in 2027, will be sufficient to pay the Town’s 

Debt Service Payment for each year. For example, if the Town’s Debt Service Payment for 

2028 is $100,000 and the Tax Increment for such year is $90,000, the Developer would owe 

the Town an amount equal to the difference between the Town’s Debt Service and the Tax 

Increment (the “Shortfall Payment”), in this example, $10,000.  Developer shall have no 

obligation to guaranty annual Tax Increment following payment in full of the Town Loan.  

Any Shortfall Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days’ notice from the Town to 

Developer of such shortfall. If payment of a Shortfall Payment is not timely made, interest 



4 

 

 

shall accrue at a rate of twelve percent (12%) on any unpaid amounts from the time it is due. 

In addition to any other remedies provided herein, the Town may levy any unpaid Shortfall 

Payment as a special charge assessed against the Property pursuant to Wis. Stat. §66.0627(2) 

or as a special assessment pursuant to Wis. Stat. §66.0703 and to that end, the Developer 

agrees to execute the Waiver of Special Assessment attached hereto as Exhibit 2.d. 

e. Corporate Guaranty. All of the obligations of Developer under this Agreement shall 

be guaranteed by Orthopedic & Sports Medicine Specialists of Green Bay, S.C., by that 

Corporate Guaranty attached hereto as Exhibit 2.e. 

3. Obligations of the Town and Contingency. The Town agrees and covenants as follows: 

a. The Town shall pre-pay the Sanitary District directly for the costs associated with the  

Project noted on Exhibit 2.c. as “Town Costs”, including one-half (1/2) of the Engineering 

Costs.  The Town may, following repayment of the Town Loan, reimburse itself for its one-

half (1/2) of the Engineering Costs at the same time as it reimburses Developer pursuant to 

Section 2(c), above.  

b. The Town’s obligations shall be contingent on its ability to borrow the following funds 

(the “Town Loan”): Up to Five Hundred and Fifty Thousand and NO/100 Dollars 

($550,000.00), amortized over at least twenty (20) years at a fixed rate of no more than six 

percent (6%). The Town Loan shall have no prepayment penalty. This contingency may be 

waived by the Town, at its sole discretion.  It is anticipated that the Town Loan will fund one 

hundred percent of the Project Costs (other than Engineering Costs) that the Town incurs.  To 

the extent that the Town incurs any Project Costs in excess of the amount of the Town Loan 

and its one half (1/2) of Engineering Costs (for purposes hereof, “Additional Project Costs”), 

the Town may reimburse itself for such Additional Project Costs only after Developer has 

been paid its one half (1/2) of the Engineering Costs as provided in Section 2(c), above. The 

Sanitary District’s obligations hereunder shall also be contingent upon the Town securing the 

Town Loan. 

c. The proceeds of the Town Loan shall be spent on Project Costs, and no other purpose.  

d. The Town reserves the right to refinance the Town Loan; provided, however, that the 

Developer’s obligations shall not be increased or expanded. 

e. The Town shall apply all Tax Increment received each year from the Project toward the 

repayment of all Town Debt Service Payments.  Once the Town Loan is paid in full, the Town 

shall apply all Tax Increment received to reimburse Developer and the Town for the 

Engineering Costs, and thereafter to reimburse the Town for any Additional Project Costs. 

4.  Obligations of the Sanitary District. The Sanitary District agrees and covenants as follows: 

a. The Sanitary District shall construct the Water Improvements in a timely, good and 

workmanlike manner in compliance with all applicable laws and substantially in accordance 

with the Water Improvements Plans. The Town,  the Sanitary District and the Developer shall 

enter into such construction contracts and authorizations as necessary for the construction of 

the Water Improvements.. 



5 

 

 

b. If any other parcels connect to the Water Improvements while the TID remains open 

(an “Outside Connection”), the Sanitary District shall charge for such connections pursuant to 

its then-current ordinances and rate file. For reference, a copy of the relevant portion of the 

Sanitary District’s current rate file is attached as Exhibit 4.b. To the extent anything in this 

Agreement conflicts with the Sanitary District’s approved rate file, the rate file shall control. 

While the TID remains open, the Sanitary District shall not retain any funds received from 

special assessment which are attributable to the initial cost of construction of the Water 

Improvements. The Sanitary District shall transfer such funds to the TID, where they will be 

used to offset Project Costs. After the TID is closed, the Sanitary District shall transfer such 

funds to the Town. 

5. Conditions Precedent to the Town's Obligations. 

a. General Conditions. In addition to all other conditions and requirements set forth in 

this Agreement, all of the obligations of the Town under this Agreement are conditioned upon 

the satisfaction of each and every one of the following conditions: 

i. Developer shall provide the Town with, with respect to each entity constituting 

Developer (A) evidence that such entity constituting Developer is authorized to enter 

into this Agreement and that the persons signing this Agreement on behalf of Developer 

are authorized to so sign this Agreement and to bind Developer to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, (B) a certified copy of its organizational documents, (C) 

a certificate of status issued by the Wisconsin Department  of  Financial  Institutions  

or  the  applicable  jurisdiction,  and (D) resolutions or consents of its board of 

directors, partners or members, as the case may be, approving this Agreement and the 

transactions which are the subject of this Agreement. 

ii. The Developer shall provide evidence that the Memorandum has been recorded 

against the Property. 

iii. No uncured default, or event which with the giving of notice or lapse of time 

or both would be a default, shall exist under this Agreement. Developer shall not be in 

default (beyond any applicable period of grace) of any of its obligations under any 

other agreement or instrument with respect to the Project to which Developer is a party 

or an obligor. 

All submissions given to the Town to satisfy the conditions contained in this Section 4 must 

be satisfactory in form and content to the Town, in its reasonable discretion. 

6. Additional Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Developer. Developer represents 

and warrants to the Town and agrees and covenants with the Town as of the Effective Date: 

a. All copies of documents, contracts and agreements which Developer has furnished to 

the Town are true and correct in all material respects. 

b. Developer has paid, and will pay when due, all federal, state and local taxes, and will 

promptly prepare and file returns for accrued taxes prior to any taxes becoming delinquent. 

c. Developer will pay for all work performed and materials furnished for the Project. 



6 

 

 

d. No statement of fact by Developer contained in this Agreement and no statement of 

fact furnished or to be furnished by Developer to the Town pursuant to this Agreement 

contains or will contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omits or will omit to state a 

material fact necessary in order to make the statements herein or therein contained not 

misleading at the time when made. 

e. Developer is duly formed and validly existing and has the power and all necessary 

licenses, permits and franchises to own its assets and properties and to carry on its business. 

Developer is duly licensed or qualified to do business and in good standing in the State of 

Wisconsin and all other jurisdictions in which failure to do so would have a material adverse 

effect on its business or financial condition. 

f. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement have been duly authorized 

by all necessary action of Developer and constitute the valid and binding obligations of 

Developer enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject only to applicable bankruptcy, 

insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, general principles of equity, and other similar laws 

of general application affecting the enforceability of creditors' rights generally. 

g. The execution, delivery, and performance of Developer's obligations pursuant to this 

Agreement will not violate or conflict with Developer's organizational documents or any 

indenture, instrument or agreement by which Developer is bound, nor will the execution, 

delivery, or performance of Developer's obligations pursuant to this Agreement violate or 

conflict with any law applicable to Developer or the Project. 

h. There is no litigation or proceeding pending or threatened against or affecting 

Developer or the Project that would adversely affect the Project or Developer or the 

enforceability of this Agreement, the ability of Developer to complete the Project or the ability 

of Developer to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

i. No default, or event which with the giving of notice or lapse of time or both would be 

a default, exists under this Agreement, and Developer is not in default (beyond any applicable 

period of grace) of any of its obligations under any other agreement or instrument entered into 

in connection with the Project. 

j. Developer agrees to pay timely all generally applicable property taxes assessed and 

levied in connection with the Property under applicable property tax laws, rules, rates, 

regulations and ordinances in effect from time to time. Nothing in this Agreement shall impair 

any statutory rights of the Town and other taxing authorities with respect to the assessment, 

levy, priority, collection and/or enforcement of property taxes. 

The representations and warranties contained herein shall be true and correct at all times as required 

by this Agreement. Developer shall comply with all covenants contained herein at all times during 

the term of this Agreement. 

7. Default. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a 

default (“Default”) hereunder: 

a. Any representation or warranty made by Developer in this Agreement, or any 

document or financial statement delivered by Developer pursuant to this Agreement, shall 



7 

 

 

prove to have been false in any material respect as of the time when made or given; or 

b. Developer shall breach or fail to perform timely or observe timely any of its covenants 

or obligations under this Agreement, and such failure shall continue for thirty (30) days 

following notice thereof from the Town to Developer (or such longer period of time as is 

necessary to cure the default as long as Developer has commenced the cure of the default 

within the 30-day period, is diligently pursuing the cure of the default and as long as the 

default is cured not later than sixty (60) days following the notice thereof from the Town); or 

c. Construction of the Project shall be abandoned for more than thirty (30) consecutive 

days (subject to the force majeure provisions below) or if any portion of the Project shall be 

damaged by fire or other casualty and not repaired, rebuilt or replaced within a reasonable 

time thereafter; or 

d. Developer shall: (i) become insolvent or generally not pay, or be unable to pay, or 

admit in writing its/his inability to pay, its/his debts as they mature; or (ii) make a general 

assignment for the benefit of creditors or to an agent authorized to liquidate any substantial 

amount of its/his assets; or (iii) become the subject of an “order for relief” within the meaning 

of the United States Bankruptcy Code, or file a petition in bankruptcy, for reorganization or 

to effect a plan or other arrangement with creditors; or (iv) have a petition or application filed 

against it/him in bankruptcy or any similar proceeding, or have such a proceeding commenced 

against it/him, and such petition, application or proceeding shall remain undismissed for a 

period of ninety (90) days or Developer or Guarantor shall file an answer to such a petition 

or application, admitting the material allegations thereof; or (v) apply to a court for the 

appointment of a receiver or custodian for any of its/his assets or properties, or have a receiver 

or custodian appointed for any of its/his assets or properties, with or without consent, and such 

receiver shall not be discharged within ninety (90) days after its/his appointment; or (vi) adopt 

a plan of complete liquidation of its/his assets; or 

e. If Developer shall dissolve or shall cease to exist without transferring the Property as 

permitted by Section 8, below; or 

f. A default shall occur on any other indebtedness of or loan to Developer, or a default 

shall occur under any mortgage or other lien or encumbrance affecting the Property. 

Upon the occurrence of any Default, the Town at its option, may pursue any or all of the rights and 

remedies available to it at law and/or in equity and/or under this Agreement and/or under any of the 

other agreements contemplated herein. 

8. Transfers; Assignment. 

a. Transfer of the Property. Developer shall not, directly or indirectly, sell, assign, 

transfer, convey, mortgage or encumber the Property or a portion thereof during the term of 

this Agreement unless it first obtains the prior written consent of the Town, which consent 

shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; provided, however, that if no 

Default exists, Developer may transfer the Property to an entity controlled by or under 

common control with Developer without such consent upon reasonable prior written notice 

to the Town but without releasing Developer's liabilities hereunder. 



8 

 

 

b. Assignment of Development Agreement. Prior to the completion of the Project, 

Developer shall not assign this Agreement to any other party without the prior written consent 

of the Town, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; 

provided, however, that if no Default exists, Developer may assign this Agreement to an entity 

controlled by or under common control with Developer without such consent simultaneously 

with the transfer of the Property to such entity. Following completion of the Project, 

Developer may assign this Agreement to a purchaser of the Property, provided, that such 

purchaser specifically assumes the obligations of Developer hereunder. The provisions of this 

Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the 

parties. 

9. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue, 

unless terminated earlier as provided herein, until the termination of the TID. 

10. Notices. All notices hereunder must be in writing and must be sent by United States registered 

or certified mail (postage prepaid) or by an independent overnight courier service, addressed to the 

addresses specified below: 

Notices to Developer: 

OSMS Real Estate, LLC 

2223 Lime Kiln Rd., Ste. 1 

Green Bay, WI 54311 

Attn:   

Notices to the Town: 

Town of Algoma  

15 N. Oakwood Rd. Oshkosh, WI 54904 

Attn: Town Administrator 

 

Notices to the District: 

Town of Algoma Sanitary District #1  

3477 Miller Dr. 

Oshkosh, WI 54904 

Attn: 

Notices given by mail are deemed delivered within (3) three business days after the party sending the 

notice deposits the notice in the United States Post Office. Notices delivered by courier are deemed 

delivered on the next business day after the party delivering the notice timely deposits the Notice with 

the courier for overnight (next day) delivery. 

11. Force Majeure. For the purposes of any provisions of the Agreement, a party shall not be 

considered in breach or default of its obligations in the event of delay in the performance of such 

obligations due to causes beyond its reasonable control and without its fault or negligence, including, 

but not restricted to, acts of God, acts of public enemy, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine 

restrictions, strikes, embargoes, unavailable materials, and unusually severe weather; it being the 



9 

 

 

parties’ purpose and intent of this provision that in the event of the occurrence of any such delay, the 

time or times of performance of any of the obligations of such party shall be equitably extended for 

the period of the delay. 

12. Joint and Several Obligations. In the event Developer is made up of more than one person or 

entity, each shall each be jointly and severally liable for the performance of all obligations of 

Developer under this Agreement, and the Town may bring suit against either of them, jointly or 

severally, or against both of them. 

13. Miscellaneous. 

a. No Personal Liability. Under no circumstances shall any supervisor, officer, official, 

director, attorney, employee or agent of the Town or District have any personal liability 

arising out of this Agreement, and no party shall seek or claim any such personal liability. 

b. Waiver; Amendment. No waiver, amendment, or variation in the terms of this 

Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed by all parties, and then only to the extent 

specifically set forth in writing. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to or has the 

effect of releasing Developer from compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

ordinances in addition to compliance with all terms, conditions and covenants contained in 

this Agreement. 

c. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the documents executed pursuant to this 

Agreement contain the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter 

hereof. There are no restrictions, promises, warranties, covenants or undertakings other than 

those expressly set forth in this Agreement and the documents executed in connection with this 

Agreement. This Agreement and the documents executed in connection herewith supersede 

all prior negotiations, agreements and undertakings between the parties with respect to the 

subject matter hereof. 

d. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended solely for the benefit of the 

parties, and no other party (other than successors and permitted assigns) shall have any rights 

or interest in any provision of this Agreement, or as a result of any action or inaction of the 

Town in connection therewith. Without limiting the foregoing, no approvals given pursuant 

to this Agreement by a party, or any person acting on behalf of any of them, shall be available 

for use by any contractor or other person in any dispute relating to the Project. 

e. Severability. If any covenant, condition, provision, term or agreement of this 

Agreement is, to any extent, held invalid or unenforceable, the remaining portion thereof and 

all other covenants, conditions, provisions, terms, and agreements of this Agreement will not 

be affected by such holding, and will remain valid and in force to the fullest extent by law. 

f. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by, and must be interpreted under, the 

internal laws of the State of Wisconsin. 

g. Recording. Recording of this Agreement is prohibited except for the Memorandum. 

h. Time is of the Essence; Deadlines. Time is of the essence with respect to this 

performance of every provision of this Agreement in which time of performance is a factor. In 



10 

 

 

the event a deadline herein falls on a non-business day, the deadline shall be deemed to fall 

on the next business day. 

i. Relationship of Parties. This Agreement does not create the relationship of principal 

and agent, or of partnership, joint venture, or of any association or relationship between the 

Town and Developer. 

j. Captions and Interpretation. The captions of the articles and sections of this 

Agreement are to assist the parties in reading this Agreement and are not a part of the terms of 

this Agreement. Whenever required by the context of this Agreement, the singular includes 

the plural and the plural includes the singular. 

k. Counterparts/Electronic Signature. This Agreement may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which counterparts 

collectively shall constitute one instrument representing the agreement among the parties. 

Facsimile signatures and PDF email signatures shall constitute originals for all purposes. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 

Effective Date first printed above. 

DEVELOPER: 

 

OSMS REAL ESTATE, LLC, 

a Wisconsin limited liability company 

 

By:   

Name: Sandy Fragale 

Title: 

 

THE TOWN: 

 

TOWN OF ALGOMA 

 

By:   

Joel Rasmussen, Town Chair 

 

Attest:   

        Katherine Reinbold, Town Clerk/Treasurer 

 

THE DISTRICT: 

 

TOWN OF ALGOMA SANITARY DISTRICT #1 

 

By:   

Charles Hayes, President 

 

Attest:   

            Kevin Mraz, Utility Director 



 

 

EXHIBIT R.1 

TOWN OF ALGOMA 

TID #1 PLAN 



 

 

EXHIBIT R.2 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

NEED LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS, Town of Algoma, Winnebago County, Wisconsin. 

PIN: 002-141406; 002-1415; 002-1416 & 002-025924 



 

 

EXHIBIT 1.b. 

FORM OF MEMORANDUM 



 

 

EXHIBIT 1.d. 

FACILITY PLANS 

[ATTACH TO THIS COVER PAGE] 



 

 

EXHIBIT 1.j. 

WATER IMPROVEMENT PLANS 



 

 

EXHIBIT 2.c. 

WATER IMPROVEMENTS COSTS 



 

 

EXHIBIT 2.d. 

WAIVER OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 



 

 

EXHIBIT 2.e. 

CORPORATE GUARANTY OF DEVELOPER 

  



 

 

EXHIBIT 4.b. 

RELEVANT PORTIONS OF SANITARY DISTRICT’S RATE FILE 

 

 



1 

Document Number 

MEMORANDUM OF 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

(TID 1) 

Document Name 

 

 

 

 THIS MEMORANDUM OF DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT (TID 1) (this “Memorandum”) is made and 

entered into as of the __________ day of _______________, 2024, 

by and between the TOWN OF ALGOMA, a Wisconsin 

municipal corporation (the “Town”), OSMS REAL ESTATE 

LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company (the “Developer”) 

and ALGOMA SANITARY DISTRICT #1 (the “Sanitary 

District”). All are referred to herein, collectively, as the “Parties”. 

 WHEREAS, Developer is the owner of certain real 

property located in the Town of Algoma, Wisconsin described on 

Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a certain 

Development Agreement (TID 1) dated as of the date hereof (as 

may be amended from time to time, the “Development 

Agreement”) with respect to the Property; and  

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to place this Memorandum 

of record in the real estate records for Winnebago County, 

Wisconsin to provide notice to third parties of the Development 

Agreement. 

 

 

Name and Return Address 

 

Town of Algoma 

15 N. Oakwood Rd. 

Oshkosh, WI 54904 

Attn:  Town Clerk/Treasurer 

 

See Exhibit A attached  

Parcel Identification Number (PIN) 

 

This is not homestead property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 

of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Development Agreement.  Notice is hereby given that the Parties have entered into the 

Development Agreement affecting the Property.  Until termination of the Development 

Agreement, the Development Agreement runs with the land and is binding upon, benefits and 

burdens the Property, Developer and any subsequent owner and/or mortgagee of all or any 

portion of the Property and each of their successors an assigns.  The Development Agreement 

imposes certain obligations, liabilities and restrictions on the owners and/or mortgagees of all or 

any portion of the Property.  The term of the Development Agreement commenced as of the date 

hereof and terminates as provided therein. 

2. Miscellaneous. 

a. The terms, conditions and other provisions of the Development Agreement are set 

forth in the Development Agreement, express reference to which is made for greater particularity 



2 

as to the terms, conditions and provisions thereof.  A copy of the Development Agreement is 

available upon request from the Town at the offices of the Town Clerk/Treasurer 15 N. Oakwood 

Road, Oshkosh WI 54904. 

b. This Memorandum is not a complete summary of the Development Agreement.  

Provisions in this Memorandum shall not be used to interpret the provisions of the Development 

Agreement.  In the event of conflict between this Memorandum and the unrecorded 

Development Agreement, the unrecorded Development Agreement shall control. 

c. This Memorandum may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall 

be deemed an original but all of which counterparts collectively shall constitute one instrument 

representing the agreement among the Parties. 

[Signature Pages Follow] 



Developer Signature Page to Memorandum 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Memorandum as of the date 

first set forth above. 

 

DEVELOPER: 

 

OSMS REAL ESTATE, LLC, 

a Wisconsin limited liability company 

 

By:    

Name: Sandy Fragale 

Title: 

 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 

    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF ___________ ) 

 

 Personally came before me this _______ day of ________________________, 2024, 

Sandy Fragale, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument, and who 

acknowledged to me that they executed the foregoing instrument as the ________________ of 

OSMS Real Estate, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company. 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      Print Name:________________________________ 

      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

      My commission:____________________________ 



Town Signature Page to Memorandum 

THE TOWN: 

 

TOWN OF ALGOMA 

 

By:    

 Joel Rasmussen, Town Chair 

 

Attest:   

        Katherine Reinbold, Town Clerk/Treasurer 

 

 
 

STATE OF WISCONSIN  ) 

     ) ss. 

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ) 

 

 Personally came before me this _____ day of ___________________________, 2024, 

Joel Rasmussen and Katherine Reinbold, to me known to be the persons who executed the 

foregoing instrument, and who acknowledged to me that they executed the foregoing instrument 

as Chairperson and Clerk/Treasurer, respectively, of the Town of Algoma, Wisconsin, by its 

authority. 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      Print Name:________________________________ 

      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

My commission:____________________________ 

 

 



Sanitary District Signature Page to Memorandum 

 

 

THE DISTRICT: 

 

TOWN OF ALGOMA SANITARY DISTRICT #1 

 

By:    

 Charles Hayes, President 

 

Attest:   

       Kevin Mraz, Utility Director 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN  ) 

     ) ss. 

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ) 

 

 Personally came before me this _______ day of ________________________, 2024, 

Charles Hayes and Kevin Mraz, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing 

instrument, and who acknowledged to me that they executed the foregoing instrument as the 

President and Utility Director of the Algoma Sanitary District #1. 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      Print Name:________________________________ 

      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 

      My commission:____________________________ 

 

 

 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

 

 



PROJECT GENERAL NOTES
A. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, WHICH INCLUDE,

BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, THE OWNER - CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT, THE
PROJECT MANUAL (WHICH INCLUDES GENERAL AND SUPPLEMENTARY
CONDITIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS), DRAWINGS OF ALL DISCIPLINES AND ALL
ADDENDA, MODIFICATIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS ISSUED BY THE ARCHITECT /
ENGINEER.

B. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS SHALL BE ISSUED TO ALL SUBCONTRACTORS BY THE
GENERAL CONTRACTOR IN COMPLETE SETS IN ORDER TO ACHIEVE THE FULL
EXTENT AND COMPLETE COORDINATION OF ALL WORK.  CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING AND CORRELATING QUANTITIES AND
DIMENSIONS.

C. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS. NOTIFY
ARCHITECT/ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES OR CONDITIONS REQUIRING
INFORMATION OR CLARIFICATION BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.

D. FIELD VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AND DIMENSIONS. NOTIFY ARCHITECT /
ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES OR CONDITIONS REQUIRING INFORMATION
OR CLARIFICATION BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.

E. DETAILS SHOWN ARE INTENDED TO BE INDICATIVE OF THE PROFILES AND TYPE
OF DETAILING REQUIRED THROUGHOUT THE WORK. DETAILS NOT SHOWN ARE
SIMILAR IN CHARACTER TO DETAILS SHOWN. WHERE SPECIFIC DIMENSIONS,
DETAILS OR DESIGN INTENT CANNOT BE DETERMINED, NOTIFY ARCHITECT /
ENGINEER BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.

F. ALL MANUFACTURED ARTICLES, MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT SHALL BE APPLIED,
INSTALLED, CONNECTED, ERECTED, CLEANED AND CONDITIONED ACCORDING TO
MANUFACTURERS' INSTRUCTIONS. IN CASE OF DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN
MANUFACTURERS' INSTRUCTIONS AND THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, NOTIFY
ARCHITECT / ENGINEER BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.

G. LARGE-SCALE, MORE SPECIFIC DETAILS TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER
SMALLER-SCALE, LESS SPECIFIC DETAILS AND INFORMATION. MORE STRINGENT
REQUIREMENTS FOR CODE, PRODUCTS AND INSTALLATION TAKE PRECEDENCE
OVER LESS STRINGENT REQUIREMENTS. NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER OF ANY
DISCREPANCIES OR CONDITIONS REQUIRING INFORMATION OR CLARIFICATION
BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.

H. PROVIDE CONTINUOUS SEALANT AROUND ALL MATERIALS AT ALL INTERIOR AND
EXTERIOR WALL PENETRATIONS. REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS FOR APPROPRIATE
SEALANT.

I. ALL DISSIMILAR METALS SHALL BE EFFECTIVELY ISOLATED FROM EACH OTHER
TO AVOID GALVANIC CORROSION.

J. SEAL ALL OPENINGS IN WALLS, FLOORS, CEILINGS, AND ROOFS, AROUND DUCTS,
PIPES, VENTS, TRAPS, CONDUIT AND ALL OTHER PENETRATIONS WITH FIRE
STOPPING AS SPECIFIED AND REQUIRED BY CODES. IF FIRE STOPPING IS NOT
REQUIRED AT PENETRATIONS PER CODE, SEAL WITH CONTINUOUS SEALANT.

K. PROVIDE TEMPORARY WALLS, ENCLOSURES, DUST SHIELDS AND WALK-OFF MATS
AS REQUIRED TO SEPARATE DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION FROM EXISTING
BUILDING.

L. PROVIDE BRACING AND SHORING AS REQUIRED TO PROTECT EXISTING
STRUCTURE TO REMAIN. PROVIDE SECURE AND WEATHERPROOF ENCLOSURE OF
TEMPORARY OPENINGS IN EXTERIOR WALLS. PROTECT ALL BUILDING
COMPONENTS FROM DAMAGE DURING DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION.

M. RESTORE ALL EXISTING AREAS AFFECTED BY DEMOLITION AND RELATED NEW
CONSTRUCTION TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO
WALLS, FLOORS, AND CEILINGS AND THEIR ASSOCIATED FINISHES.

N. PROVIDE SOLID WALL BACKING WITH METAL OR FIRE-RETARDANT WOOD
BLOCKING BEHIND DOOR HARDWARE SUCH AS WALL STOPS, BUMPERS, HOLD
OPENS, ETC. AND AT ALL ITEMS REQUIRING FASTENING THROUGH GYP BD. TO
BLOCKING

O. RENDERED IMAGES MAY NOT BE AN ACCURATE REPRESENTATION OF BUILDING
CONDITIONS, REFER TO PLANS AND DETAILS CONTAINED WITHIN FOR SCOPE OF
WORK.

SHEET INDEX
SHEET # SHEET TITLE

GENERAL

G1-10 TITLE SHEET, SHEET INDEX, PROJECT GENERAL NOTES

G1-11 MOUNTING HEIGHTS, ABBREVIATIONS AND SYMBOLS

G1-21 CODE DATA AND CODE DATA PLAN

ARCHITECTURAL

A1-01 WALL TYPES AND NOTES

A1-20 BASEMENT PLAN

A1-21 FIRST FLOOR PLAN

A1-22 FIRST FLOOR DIMENSION PLAN

A1-31 FIRST FLOOR REFLECTED CEILING PLAN

A1-41 FIRST FLOOR FINISH PLAN

A1-49 FINISH SCHEDULES

A1-71 ROOF PLAN

A2-11 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A3-21 WALL SECTIONS

A3-22 WALL SECTIONS

A3-31 WALL DETAILS

A4-11 DOOR SCHEDULE, DOOR AND FRAME TYPES

A4-21 DOOR AND WINDOW DETAILS

A5-11 ENLARGED FLOOR PLANS

A6-11 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A6-12 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A6-13 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A6-21 INTERIOR DETAILS

A7-11 ENLARGED VERTICAL CIRCULATION - STAIR A

A7-12 ENLARGED VERTICAL CIRCULATION - STAIR B

STRUCTURAL

S1-00 STRUCTURAL NOTES

S1-01 SPECIAL INSPECTIONS (PER IBC 2018)

S1-05 STRUCTURAL SCHEDULES

S1-11 FOUNDATION PLAN

S1-21 DRAIN TILE PLAN

S1-31 BASEMENT SLAB PLAN

S1-32 FIRST FLOOR SLAB PLAN

S2-11 FOUNDATION & SLAB DETAILS

S3-21 FIRST FLOOR FRAMING PLAN

S4-11 LOW ROOF FRAMING PLAN

S4-12 HIGH ROOF FRAMING PLAN

S5-00 SHEAR WALL PLAN

S5-11 STRUCTURAL FRAMING ELEVATIONS

S6-11 FLOOR FRAMING DETAILS

S6-21 ROOF FRAMING DETAILS

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

) 
4
0
5
-9

9
1
9

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

ABBREVIATIONS LIST

MATERIAL KEY

DRAWING STANDARDS

DRAWING SYMBOLS KEY

ROOM NAME

###

xxx"
xxx

ANCHOR BOLT

AMERICANS W/ DISABILITIES

ACT

ADJACENT

ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR

ALTERNATE

ALUMINUM

BARRIER FREE

BLOCKING

BOTTOM OF

BEARING

CAPACITY

CATCH BASIN

CHAMFER

CONTROL JOINT

CENTERLINE

CLEAR(ANCE)

CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT

COLUMN

CONCRETE

CONTRACTOR

COMPRESSIBLE

DIAMETER

DIMENSION

DOOR

DETAIL

ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR

ELEVATION

ELECTRIC WATER COOLER

EXCAVATE

EXISTING

EXPANSION

EXPANSION BOLT

EXPANSION JOINT

EXTERIOR

AB

ADA

ADJ

AFF

ALT

ALUM

BFREE

BLKG

BO

BRG

CAP

CB

CHFR

CJ

CL

CLR

CMU

COL

CONC

CONTR

CPRS

DIA

DIM

DR

DTL

EC

EL

EWC

EXCV

EXST

EXP

EXP BLT

EXP JT

EXT

WD

DOOR NUMBERS - REFER 

TO DOOR SCHEDULE

PLAN NOTES

WALL TYPES

ELEVATION REFERENCE

ROOM NAME AND NUMBER 

AS NOTED -REFER TO ROOM

FINISH SCHEDULE

3
X

AX.X

X

AX.X

X

AX.X

X

AX.X

CA CT
FLOORING MATERIAL

CHANGE

INTERIOR ELEVATION REFERENCE -

REFER TO SHEET NUMBER INDICATED IN

BOTTOM OF SYMBOL

DETAIL REFERENCE - REFER TO SHEET

NUMBER INDICATED IN BOTTOM OF SYMBOL

BUILDING SECTION REFERENCE

REFER TO SHEET NUMBER INDICATED

IN BOTTOM OF SYMBOL

WALL SECTION REFERENCE - REFER TO

SHEET NUMBER INDICATED  IN BOTTOM

OF SYMBOL

FD
FDN
FE
FEC
FF
FLR

GALV
GCONTR

GRD
GYP

HB
HC

HM
HPT

INT

JST
JT

LB
LBR
LP
LVR

MSRY
MH
MIR
MLDG
MO
MR
MTD

NTS

O/C

FLOOR DRAIN

FOUNDATION
FIRE EXTINGUISHER
FIRE EXTINGUISHER CABINET

FINISHED FLOOR
FLOOR

GAS
GALVANIZED
GENERAL CONTRACTOR

GRADE(ING)
GYPSUM BOARD

HOSE BIB
HVAC CONTRACTOR

HOLLOW METAL
HIGH POINT

INTERIOR

JOIST
JOINT

LOAD BEARING
LUMBER
LIGHT POLE
LOUVER

MASONRY
MANHOLE

MIRROR
MOLDING
MASONRY OPENING

MOISTURE RESISTANCE
MOUNTED

NOT TO SCALE

ON CENTER

MFGR MANUFACTURER

NIC NOT IN CONTRACT

HDCP HANDICAP

OPENING
OPTIONAL

ORIENTED STAND BOARD

PARTITION

PRECAST CONCRETE
PLUMBING CONTRACTOR
PLATE
PROPERTY LINE
PLASTIC LAMINATE

PLASTER

RISER
RADIUS
ROOF DRAIN
REQUIRED
ROUGH OPENING

SANITARY SEWER

SOLID CORE
STORM DRAIN

SHEATHING
SIMILAR TO
STAINLESS STEEL

SOUND TRANSMISSION CLASS
STANDARD

STORM SEWER
SYMMETRICAL

TREAD
TOP AND BOTTOM

TELEPHONE
TONGUE AND GROVE
THICKENSS
TOP OF

TYPICAL

UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE
VARIES
VAPOR BARRIER

WOOD

OPNG
OPT
OSB

PART
PC
PLBR
PLT
PL
PLAM
PLAS

R
RAD
RD
REQD
RO

SAN
SC

SD
SHTG

SIM
SS
STC

STD

STR

SYM

T
T&B
TEL
T&G
THK
TO
TYP

UNO
VAR
VB

FAR FLOOR AREA RATIO

G

STEELSTL

B

X

AX.X

EARTH

CONCRETE

THERMAL BATT INSULATION

RIGID INSULATION

CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT

STEEL

PLYWOOD

ROUGH WOOD

GRANULAR FILL

INSULATED STUD WALL

STUD WALL

CEILING TILE

GYPSUM BOARDE.I.F.S.

STONE VENEER

FINISHED WOOD

GRAVEL

G1-10

TITLE SHEET, SHEET

INDEX, PROJECT

GENERAL NOTES

ER

MM/DD/YY

TL

200 31067 G1-10

NEW BUILDING

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

OSMS CLINIC
OSHKOSH        WISCONSIN



MOUNTING HEIGHTS AND STANDARDS

WALL-MOUNT LAVATORY 
(WITH KNEE AND TOE 

CLEARANCES)

*T
S

H

MIN

8"

M
IN9
"

*K
C

H

MAX.
6" MIN

11"

25" MAX

17" MIN

KNEE 
CLEARANCE 
AREA

TOE 
CLEARANCE 

AREA

18 1/4" MIN.

WATER CLOSET
REAR WALL

WATER CLOSET
SIDE WALL

24" MIN 12" MIN

*WCC

*G
B

H

24" MIN

42" MAX

7"-9"

1
8
" 

M
IN

1
 1

/2
" 

M
IN

*G
B

H

*V
B

H
1

8
" 

M
IN

12" MAX 42" MIN

*VBC

54" MIN

OPERABLE PARTS OF 
DISPENSERS AND SANITARY 
PRODUCT RECEPTACLES 
SHALL BE LOCATED WITHIN 
HATCHED AREA (ONLY 
APPLICABLE FOR ADULT 
RESTROOMS)

60" CLEAR FLOOR SPACE

*W
C

S 4
8
" 

M
A

X

*T
P

H

MIRROR

24" MIN

3
6
" 

M
IN

S
U

R
F

A
C

E
 O

F
 M

IR
R

O
R

4
0

" 
M

A
X

 T
O

 R
E

F
L
E

C
T

IV
E

NOTE:
35" IF NOT LOCATED 
ABOVE LAVS, SINKS 
OR COUNTERS

CENTER ON 
LAV BELOW

SOAP 
DISPENSER

SANITARY PRODUCT 
RECEPTACLE

PAPER 
TOWEL 

DISPENSER

ELECTRIC HAND 
DRYER

TOP AT 2" MIN BELOW 
HORIZONTAL GRAB BAR; 
OPERABLE PARTS 
WITHIN 12" MIN AND 40" 
MAX FROM REAR WALL

WASTE
RECEPTACLE

O
P

E
R

A
B

L
E

 P
A

R
T

4
4

" 
T

O
 H

IG
H

E
S

T

ELEVATOR CALL BUTTONS
AND ELEVATOR SIGNALS

VISIBLE 
SIGNALS

CALL 
BUTTONS

7
2
" 

M
IN

(5
4

" 
M

A
X

 I
N

 E
X

IS
T

. 
C

O
N

S
T

.)

4
8
" 

M
A

X

FIRE EXTINGUISHER 
OR CABINET

T
O

 T
O

P
 O

F
 H

A
N

D
L

E

4
8
"

OR

FIXTURE CLEARANCES

DESCRIPTION

*GBH GRAB BAR HEIGHT

*TPH TOILET TISSUE DISPENSER HEIGHT

*WCC WATER CLOSET CENTER LINE

*WCS WATER CLOSET SEAT HEIGHT

*TSH TOP OF SINK OR COUNTER HEIGHT

*KCH KNEE CLEARANCE HEIGHT

*VBH VERTICAL GRAB BAR HEIGHT

*VBC VERTICAL GRAB BAR CENTERLINE

*HDH HIGH DRINKING FOUNTAIN SPOUT HEIGHT

*LDH LOW DRINKING FOUNTAIN SPOUT HEIGHT

*DSD DRINKING FOUNTAIN SPOUT DEPTH

*URH URINAL RIM HEIGHT

ADULTS (>12 YR)

33" - 36"

18" - 48"

16" - 18"

17" - 19"

34"

27"

39" - 41"

39" - 41"

38" - 43"

36"

5"

R1

ACCESSIBLE

NA

18" - 48"

16" - 18"

17" - 19"

34"

27"

NA

NA

38" - 43"

36"

5"

STANDARD

S

17" 24"

ADA COMPLIANT SIGNAGE

MULTIPLE LINE 
ADA SIGNAGE

O
F

 B
O

T
T

O
M

 L
IN

E
 T

E
X

T

4
8

" 
M

IN
 T

O
 B

O
T

T
O

M

O
F

 T
O

P
 L

IN
E

 T
E

X
T

6
0

" 
M

A
X

 T
O

 B
O

T
T

O
M

CL

CL

REAR WALL GRAB BAR 
OMITTED WITHIN 

AMBULATORY STALLS

A

DOOR 
ACTUATOR 

BUTTON

CL

3
4

" 
- 

4
8

"

DOOR ACTUATOR BUTTON

MATERIALS KEY

WOOD

SAND

STEEL

GRAVEL

GYPSUM BOARD

PLYWOOD

CONCRETE (SECTION)

GRANULAR FILL

EARTH

CMU (SECTION)

BATT INSULATION

BRICK

RIGID INSULATION

OR SHEATHING

SYNTHETIC STUCCO

TAGS AND SYMBOLS

SECTION

INTERIOR / 

EXTERIOR 
ELEVATION

DETAIL CALLOUT

AREA OF DETAIL

LEVEL 1

100'-0"
ELEVATION

WINDOW TYPE

DRAWING 

TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

DETAIL NUMBER

ABBREVIATIONS

SPRAY IN PLACE 
INSULATION

EQUIPMENT TYPE A

MATERIAL TYPE

FLOOR 

MATERIAL TYPE

CASEWORK 

TAG

1
VIEW NAME
1/8" = 1'-0"

FIN#

F FIN#

AL15

CDS
W#

H#
D#

MOD LINE 1
MOD LINE 2

CDS CATALOG NUMBER FROM 
NORTH AMERICAN 
ARCHITECTURAL WOODWORK 
STANDARDS (NAAWS)

(IF "M" IS INCLUDED SEE NOTE 
BELOW FOR DESCRIPTION OF 
MODIFICATION)

NOMINAL DEPTH

NOMINAL HEIGHT

NOMINAL WIDTH

DESCRIPTION OF MODIFICATION 
FROM CDS CATALOG

A1-11

1

1

A1-11
________________________________________________

SECTION NUMBER

SHEET NUMBER

A1-11

ELEVATION NUMBER

SHEET NUMBER

WELD SYMBOL

1/4 2-12
NOTES

COLUMN TYPE

CAP PLATE

BASE PLATE

COLUMN

??? 100' - 0"
SPOT 

ELEVATION

DESCRIPTION

ELEVATION

FRAMING 

TAG

DENOTES 
ANNOTATION IS 
REFERENCING 
ANOTHER VIEW

*REFER TO ANSI FOR WELD 
SYMBOL STANDARDS

18K W8X24 (25) C=1" 15K

REACTION, TYPICAL 
BOTH ENDS

MEMBER SIZE

NUMBER OF STUDS

CAMBER SIZE

C#

CP#

BP#

MOMENT 

CONNECTION 
SYMBOL

FOOTING STEP

BEAM SPLICE 

SYMBOL

PIER TYPE

FOUNDATION 

WALL TYPE

FOOTING TYPE

*REFER TO MOMENT 
CONNECTION DETAILS

"S
"

DIRECTION OF 

INSTALL

M1

P1

F1

FDN1

LEDGE STEP

FOOTING & 

LEDGE STEP

NEW 

CONSTRUCTION 
GRIDS

EXISTING

CONSTRUCTION 
GRIDS

WALL TYPE M12

SW1SHEAR WALL TYPE

SLAB TYPE
SL#

KEYNOTE TAG 3

DOOR NUMBERS 101

F1CEILING, FLOOR, OR 

ROOF ASSEMBLY TYPE

1

1 1

1

B

21

A

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

G1-11

MOUNTING HEIGHTS,

ABBREVIATIONS AND

SYMBOLS

ER

MM/DD/YY

TL

200 31067 G1-11

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

# POUND OR NUMBER

@ AT

ACP ACOUSTICAL CEILING PANEL

ACT ACOUSTICAL CEILING TILE

ADA AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

ADD ADDENDUM

ADDL ADDITIONAL

ADJ ADJACENT

AFF ABOVE FINISH FLOOR

AFG ABOVE FINISHED GRADE

AHU AIR HANDLING UNIT

ALT ALTERNATE

ALUM ALUMINUM

APPROX APPROXIMATELY

ARCH ARCHITECTURAL

AWP ACOUSTICAL WALL PANEL

B BASE

BD BOARD

BL BROADLOOM CARPET

BLDG BUILDING

BO BOTTOM OF OR BY OWNER

BR BRICK

BRG BEARING

BSMT BASEMENT

C CONDUIT

CFS COLD FORMED STEEL

CG CORNER GUARD

CIP CAST IN PLACE

CJ CONTROL JOINT OR CONSTRUCTION JOINT

CL CENTERLINE

CLG CEILING

CLR CLEAR

CM CORRUGATED METAL

CMU CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT

CO CLEANOUT

CONC CONCRETE

CONF CONFERENCE

CONT CONTINUOUS

CPT CARPET

CR CHAIR RAIL

CRK CORK

CT TILE

CURT PRIVACY CURTAIN

CY CUBIC YARD

DEMO DEMOLITION

DF DRINKING FOUNTAIN

DH DOOR HOLDER (MAGNETIC)

DIA DIAMETER

DLS DIMENSIONAL LETTER SIGNAGE

EA EACH

EC ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR

EF EXHAUST FAN

EIFS EXTERIOR INSULATION FINISH SYSTEM

ELEC ELECTRICAL

ELEV ELEVATION

EMERG EMERGENCY

ENCL ENCLOSURE

EPDM ETHYLENE PROPYLENE DIENE MONOMER

EPX EPOXY

EQ EQUAL

EQUIP EQUIPMENT

ETC ETCETERA

EWC ELECTRIC WATER COOLER

EWC ELECTRIC WATER COOLER

EX EXISTING

EXP EXPANSION, EXPOSED

EXT EXTERIOR

F&I FURNISH AND INSTALL

FA FRESH AIR

FAAP FIRE ALARM ANNUNCIATOR PANEL

FACP FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL

FBO FURNISHED BY OTHERS

FD FLOOR DRAIN

FE FIRE EXTINGUISHER

FEC FIRE EXTINGUISHER CABINET

FF FLOOR FINISH

FFE FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION

FRP FIBERGLASS REINFORCED PLASTIC

FRZ FREEZER

FS FLOOR SINK

FT FOOT OR FEET

FTG FOOTING

GA GAUGE

GALV GALVANIZED

GC GENERAL CONTRACTOR

GEN GENERATOR

GFCI GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT INTERRUPT

GL GLAZING

GND GROUND

GYP GYPSUM

HD HUB DRAIN

HDG HOT DIP GALVANIZED

HDW HARDWARE

HM HOLLOW METAL

HORIZ HORIZONTAL

HSS HOLLOW STRUCTURAL SECTION

HT HEIGHT

HVAC HEATING VENTILATION AND AIR CONDITIONING

ID INSIDE DIAMETER

IG ISOLATED GROUND

IMP INSULATED METAL PANEL

INFO INFORMATION

INP IN-PLACE

INSUL INSULATION

INT INTERIOR

J JUNCTION BOX

JAN JANITOR

JBE JOIST BEARING ELEVATION

JST JOIST

KES KITCHEN EQUIPMENT SUPPLIER

kW KILOWATT

LAV LAVATORY

LB POUND

LLH LONG LEG HORIZONTAL

LLV LONG LEG VERTICAL

LN LINEAR

LVT LUXURY VINYL TILE

MATL MATERIAL

MAX MAXIMUM

MB MARKER BOARD

MECH MECHANICAL

MEP MECHANICAL , ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING

MEZZ MEZZANINE

MFR MANUFACTURER

MH MANHOLE

MIN MINIMUM

MISC MISCELLANEOUS

MO MASONRY OPENING

MTD MOUNTED

MTL METAL

MULL MULLION

NA NOT APPLICABLE

NIC NOT IN CONTRACT

NTS NOT TO SCALE

OC ON CENTER

OCEW ON CENTER EACH WAY

OD OUTSIDE DIAMETER

OH OVERHEAD

OHD OVERHEAD DOOR

OL OVERALL LENGTH

OPNG OPENING

ORD OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN

OSB ORIENTED STRAND BOARD

PC PHOTO CELL, POLISHED CONCRETE

PLAM PLASTIC LAMINATE

PLWP PLASTIC LAMINATE WALL PANEL

PNT PAINT

PNT-#E EPOXY PAINT

POLYETH POLYETHYLENE

POLYISO POLYISOCYANURATE

PRV POWER ROOF VENTILATOR

PVC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE

QT QUARRY TILE

QTZ QUARTZ

RA RETURN AIR

RB RESILIENT BASE

RBR RUBBER

RCP REFLECTED CEILING PLAN

RD ROOF DRAIN

REF REFRIGERATOR

REINF REINFORCED

REQD REQUIRED

RES RESINOUS FLOOR

REV REVISION / REVISED

RM ROOM

RO ROUGH OPENING

ROW / R/W RIGHT OF WAY

RP RESIN PANEL

RTE REFER TO ELEVATION

RTU ROOF TOP UNIT

SA SUPPLY AIR

SC SEALED CONCRETE

SF SQUARE FOOT

SIM SIMILAR

SM SURFACE MOUNTED

SPEC SPECIFICATION

SS SOLID SURFACE

SSTL STAINLESS STEEL

STD STANDARD

STN STONE

STOR STORAGE

SUSP SUSPENDED

SV SHEET VINYL

SY SQUARE YARDS

T&G TONGUE AND GROOVE

T&P TEMPERATURE AND PRESSURE

TB TACK BOARD

TBD TO BE DETERMINED

TD TRENCH DRAIN

TEC TECTUM

TEL TELEPHONE

TEMP TEMPERATURE

TER TERRAZZO

TO TOP OF

TOF TOP OF FOOTING

TOL TOP OF LEDGE

TOS TOP OF STEEL

TOW TOP OF WALL

TR TAMPER RESISTANT

TS TUBE STEEL / THRESHOLD / TRANSITION STRIP

TV TELEVISION

TYP TYPICAL

UG UNDERGROUND

UH UNIT HEATER

UNO UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

VCT VINYL COMPOSITE TILE

VERT VERTICAL

VEST VESTIBULE

VF VINYL FLOOR

VIF VERIFY IN FIELD

VTR VENT THROUGH ROOF

VWP VENEER WALL PANEL

W/ WITH

W/O WITHOUT

WC WATER CLOSET

WCG WALL COVERING

WD WOOD

WF WINDOW FILM

WG WALL GUARD

WH WALL HYDRANT

WHTR WATER HEATER

WP WEATHERPROOF

WT WINDOW TREATMENT

WWF WELDED WIRE FABRIC

XFMR TRANSFORMER



DN

DN

CODE DATA PLAN KEY

KB

EXIT

ELEVATOR

FIRE EXTINGUISHER

SEMI-RECESSED FIRE 
EXTINGUISHER CABINET
COLOR: ENSURE TO COORDINATE 

WITH SPEC

FRONTAGE DISTANCE 

KNOX BOX

FIRE DEPARTMENT
CONNECTION

FE-#

FEC-#

CONSTRUCTION CAPABLE OF RESISTING 
THE PASSAGE OF SMOKE

1-HOUR FIRE BARRIER

2-HOUR FIRE BARRIER

3-HOUR FIRE BARRIER

4-HOUR FIRE BARRIER

1/2-HOUR FIRE PARTITION

1-HOUR FIRE PARTITION

2-HOUR FIRE WALL

3-HOUR FIRE WALL

4-HOUR FIRE WALL

1-HOUR SMOKE BARRIER

SMOKE PARTITION

1 1/2-HOUR FIRE BARRIER

FIRE WALLS, FIRE BARRIERS, FIRE PARTITIONS, SMOKE 
BARRIERS AND SMOKE PARTITIONS OR ANY OTHER WALL 
REQUIRED TO HAVE PROTECTED OPENINGS OR 
PENETRATIONS SHALL BE EFFECTIVELY AND PERMANENTLY 
IDENTIFIED WITH SIGNS OR STENCILING. SUCH 
IDENTIFICATION SHALL:
1. BE LOCATED IN ACCESSIBLE CONCEALED FLOOR, FLOOR-

CEILING OR ATTIC SPACES
2. BE LOCATED WITHIN 15 FEET OF THE END OF EACH WALL 

AND AT INTERVALS NOT EXCEEDING 30 FEET MEASURED 
HORIZONTALLY ALONG THE WALL OR PARTITION, AND

3. INCLUDE LETTERING NOT LESS THAN 3 INCHES IN HEIGHT 
WITH A MINIMUM 3/8" STROKE IN A CONTRASTING COLOR 
INCORPORATING THE SUGGESTED WORDING "FIRE 
AND/OR SMOKE BARRIER - PROTECT ALL OPENINGS" OR 
OTHER SIMILAR WORDING.

3-HOUR EXTERIOR WALL

2-HOUR EXTERIOR WALL

1-HOUR EXTERIOR WALL

II-B S-1

14.4" 33.0"

HC HD HG

11,234 SF

SP

500 G 22

Y

COMMENT

ROOM #

ROOM NAME

CONSTRUCTION TYPE

SP=SPRINKLED

NS=NON SPRINKLED

OCC. LOAD FACTOR 
(G=GROSS, N=NET)

OCCUPANCY GROUP

ALARM SYSTEM (Y/N)

AREA (SQUARE FT.)

OCCUPANT LOAD

EXIT WIDTH PROVIDED

EXIT WIDTH REQUIRED

30

150

EGRESS WIDTH INCHES
EGRESS OCCUPANT CAPACITY

COMMON PATH OF TRAVEL

DOOR ACTUATOR BUTTONAB

EGRESS PATH

WALL LEGEND

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN

NEW CONSTRUCTION

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

G1-21

CODE DATA AND CODE DATA

PLAN

ER

MM/DD/YY

TL

200 31067 G1-21

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1/8" = 1'-0"1
CODE DATA PLAN

GENERAL CODE DATA

(insert code data here)

EGRESS PATH SCHEDULE

MARK
TRAVEL

DISTANCE CLEAR WIDTH COMMENTS

CODE DATA PLAN STANDARDS:

1. ALL FIRE RATING WALL TYPE PARAMETERS MUST MATCH THE 
CODE DATA PLAN KEY ABBREVIATIONS.
A. USE THE DYNAMO SCRIPT "WALL FIRE RATINGS" TO 

GENERATE GRAPHICS IN THE ACTIVE PLAN VIEW
2. REMOVE THIS NOTE WHEN VERIFIED.

FIRE SUPPRESSION NOTES

THROUGHOUT AREA OF WORK, PROVIDE A NEW NFPA 13 FIRE 
SUPPRESSION (SPRINKLER) SYSTEM. THE LICENSED 
AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEM DESIGNER / INSTALLER 
SHALL FIELD VERIFY ALL CONDITIONS PRIOR TO BID. THE 
NFPA 13 SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHALL BE DESIGNED, 
INSTALLED, AND TESTED BY A LICENSED AUTOMATIC 
SPRINKLER SYSTEM DESIGNER / INSTALLER AND SHALL MEET 
ALL APPLICABLE CODE REQUIREMENTS. THE LICENSED 
AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEM DESIGNER SHALL PROVIDE 
AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEM DESIGN DOCUMENTS AND 
SHALL SUBMIT THEM TO ALL APPLICABLE JURISDICTIONS AND 
AUTHORITIES AND SHALL PROCURE ALL NECESSARY 
PERMITS. SPRINKLER DESIGNER / INSTALLER SHALL PAY ALL 
NECESSARY PERMITTING FEES.

DESIGN OF NEW NFPA 13 SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHALL BE 
BASED ON, BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:

1. COMPLY WITH NFPA 13 AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE 
CODES.

2. DESIGN SPRINKLER HEAD LAYOUT TO PROVIDE 
ADEQUATE COVERAGE PER CODE REQUIREMENTS.

3. DESIGN SPRINKLER HEAD AND PIPING LAYOUT INCLUDING 
ALL DROPS, ARM-OVERS AND MAIN PIPES TO AVOID 
DIFFUSERS, LIGHT FIXTURES, MECHANICAL WORK, 
PLUMBING WORK, ELECTRICAL WORK, NEW 
CONSTRUCTION WORK AND ALL OTHER WORK AND 
COMPONENTS IN THE CONTRACT.

4. PROVIDE PROPER COVERAGE IN CONCEALED SPACES AS 
REQUIRED PER CODE.

5. ALL SPRINKLER PIPING AND COMPONENTS SHALL BE 
CONCEALED ABOVE CEILINGS AND WITHIN WALLS.

6. ALL SPRINKLER HEADS TO BE INSTALLED IN ACOUSTICAL 
CEILING TILE SHALL BE INSTALLED IN CENTER OF TILE.

(NEW SPRINKLER SYSTEM)



GENERAL ASSEMBLY NOTES:

A. NOT ALL ASSEMBLY TYPES LISTED APPLY TO THIS PROJECT.  REFER TO FLOOR PLANS FOR 
LOCATIONS AND ADDITIONAL NOTES.

B. LIGHT GAUGE STEEL FRAMING MEMBER DESIGNATION SYSTEM: (REFER TO STRUCTURAL NOTES)

600S125-54 (EQUIVALENT TO 6" x 16 GAUGE STUD OR JOIST WITH 1 1/4" FLANGES)

MINIMUM BASE METAL THICKNESS IN MILS.  EXAMPLE - .054 = 54 MILS)
18 = 25 GAUGE 43 = 18 GAUGE
27 = 22 GAUGE 54 = 16 GAUGE
30 = 20 GAUGE (DRYWALL) 68 = 14 GAUGE
33 = 20 GAUGE (STRUCTURAL) 97 = 12 GAUGE

FLANGE WIDTH (1/100 INCHES):  EXAMPLE - 125 = 1.25"

STYLE: S = STUD OR JOIST SECTION (WITH FLANGE STIFFENERS) =
T = TRACK SECTION =
U = CHANNEL SECTION (STUDS WITHOUT FLANGE STIFFENERS) =
F = FURRING CHANNEL =
Z = ZEE SECTION =

MEMBER DEPTH (1/100 INCHES):  EXAMPLE - 600 = 6"

C. IN ALL WET AREAS SUCH AS SHOWERS AND TUBS, INSTALL CEMENT-BASED BACKER BEHIND AREAS 
SCHEDULED TO RECEIVE TILE FINISH.

D. PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF MOISTURE-RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD ON ALL RESTROOM WALLS AND 
OTHER AREAS SCHEDULED TO RECEIVE FRP OR TILE FINISH.

E. ALL PARTITIONS CONTAINING PLUMBING OR HAVING AN EXTERIOR FACE SHALL BE INSULATED.

F. REFERENCE FINISH PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL FINISHES NOT INDICATED ON PARTITION TYPES.

G. INCLUDE PAINTABLE ACOUSTIC SEALANT AT ALL TERMINATIONS AND PENETRATIONS FOR ALL NON 
RATED ASSEMBLIES.  TYPICAL BOTH SIDES OF ASSEMBLY.

H. PROVIDE FIRE-TREATED WOOD OR STEEL BACKING FOR ALL WALL-MOUNTED FINISH CARPENTRY, 
ARCHITECTURAL WOODWORK, TOILET PARTITIONS, ACCESSORIES AND OTHER SIMILAR ITEMS.

I. WOOD FRAMING MEMBERS IN CONTACT WITH CONCRETE OR MASONRY SHALL BE PRESSURE 
TREATED.

J. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DOCUMENTS FOR SHEAR WALL CRITERIA.

K. ALL NON-RATED WALLS TO BE CONSTRUCTED FULL HEIGHT TO THE UNDERSIDE OF FLOOR OR 
ROOF STRUCTURE ABOVE UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

L. PROVIDE DOUBLE TOP PLATES AT ALL WOOD LOAD BEARING WALLS.

M. NON LOAD BEARING METAL STUD WALLS SHALL HAVE A SLOTTED TOP TRACK FOR DEFLECTION. 
FINISHES / SUBSTRATES SHALL NOT BE FASTENED TO THE TOP TRACK.

N. PROVIDE 1" GAP FOR DEFLECTION ALLOWANCE BETWEEN WALL FINISH, SUBSTRATE, AND 
STRUCTURE ABOVE. TYPICAL UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON STRUCTURAL DOCUMENTS.

O. COLD FORMED FRAMING DESIGNED BY FRAMING CONTRACTOR; REFER TO STRUCTURAL NOTES 
FOR COMPONENTS AND CLADDING DESIGN REQUIREMENTS.

ADDITIONAL NOTES FOR FIRE-RATED ASSEMBLIES:

P. ALL ASSEMBLIES NOTED TO BE FIRE-RESISTANCE RATED SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN STRICT 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE REFERENCED FIRE RESISTANCE TEST.  ANY PROPRIETARY PRODUCTS 
REQUIRED BY FIRE RATED ASSEMBLIES AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS ARE APPROVED.

Q. ALTERNATE MATERIALS AND ASSEMBLIES MUST BE APPROVED BY THE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO 
COMMENCING WORK.

R. HIGHER FIRE-RATED ASSEMBLIES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED BEFORE LOWER (OR NON-RATED) 
ASSEMBLIES.

S. ALL FIRE-RATED WALLS TO BE CONSTRUCTED FULL HEIGHT FROM TOP OF UNFINISHED FLOOR TO 
UNDERSIDE OF STRUCTURE ABOVE.

T. INCLUDE SEALANT, MATERIALS, AND/OR ASSEMBLIES AT ALL TERMINATIONS AND PENETRATIONS 
WHICH MAINTAIN THE FIRE-RESISTANCE RATING.  TYPICAL BOTH SIDES OF ASSEMBLY.

U. REFER TO IBC CHAPTER 7, TABLE "MINIMUM EQUIVALENT THICKNESS OF BEARING OR NONBEARING 
CONCRETE MASONRY WALLS" FOR CALCULATED FIRE-RESISTANCE RATING.

CO
NFIRM

 DEFLECTIO
N 

CLEARANCE W
ITH STRUCTURAL

250S125-30 16" 11'-7"

350S125-30 16" 15'-0"

362S125-30 16" 15'-6"

400S125-30 16" 16'-8"

600S125-30 16" 22'-11"

METAL STUDS

5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD

SOUND INSULATION, UNO

PLAN

A1

A2

A3

A4

A6*

WALL TYPE
STUD 

DESIGNATION
SPACING

MAX. HEIGHT
(5 PSF, L/240)

FIRE RATING /
UL DESIGN

NOTES:
1. LEAD LINED GYPSUM BOARD TO BE USED AT WALL TYPES A3* AND A6*

SOUND 
TRANSMISSION 

(STC)

600S125-30 16" 22'-11"A6

362S125-30 16" 15'-6"A3*

COMMENTS

SEE NOTE 1.

SEE NOTE 1.

250S125-30 16"

350S125-30 16"

362S125-30 16"

16"

550S125-30 16"

600S125-30 16"

METAL STUDS

5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD

SOUND INSULATION, UNO

ADJACENT WALL

PLAN

B1

B2

B3

B4

B5

B6

WALL TYPE
STUD 

DESIGNATION
SPACING

MAX. HEIGHT
(5 PSF, L/240)

FIRE RATING /
UL DESIGN

NOTES:

SOUND 
TRANSMISSION 

(STC)
COMMENTS

SEE NOTE 1

1: 5/8" TREATED PLYWOOD SHEATHING TO BE USED INSTEAD OF 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD AT WALL TYPE B6*

600S125-30 16"B6*

400S125-30

250S125-30 16" 11'-7" 1 HOUR / U465

350S125-30 16" 15'-0" 1 HOUR / U465

362S125-30 16" 15'-6" 1 HOUR / U465

400S125-30 16" 16'-8" 1 HOUR / U465

550S125-30 16" 21'-6" 1 HOUR / U465

600S125-30 16" 22'-11" 1 HOUR / U465

METAL STUDS

5/8" GYPSUM BOARD

SOUND INSULATION, UNO

PLAN

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

WALL TYPE
STUD 

DESIGNATION
SPACING

MAX. HEIGHT
(5 PSF, L/240)

FIRE RATING /
UL DESIGN

NOTES:

SOUND 
TRANSMISSION 

(STC)

6"

8"

10"

12"

HORIZONTAL WALL 
REINFORCING

CORE-FILL WITH VERTICAL 
WALL REINFORCING

4"M4

PLAN

M6

M8

M10

M12

WALL TYPE NOMINAL BLOCK SIZE
FIRE RATING /

UL DESIGN

NOTES: 
1. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DOCUMENTS FOR REINFORCEMENT

8" SPLIT FACEM8F

5/8" GLASS MAT GYPSUM 
SHEATHING

AIR BARRIER

MASONRY OR STONE 
VENEER, REFER TO 
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

6" METAL STUDS

FILL CAVITY WITH BATT 
INSULATION, R-13 MIN.

5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD

STUD 
DESIGNATION

SPACING

16"

WALL TYPE
FIRE RATING / 

UL DESIGN

X1 6" METAL STUD

PLAN

NOTES

AIR SPACE

BRICK TIES @ 16" OCEW

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R

RIGID INSULATION, R-10 MIN.

5/8" GLASS MAT GYPSUM 
SHEATHING

AIR BARRIER

MASONRY OR STONE 
VENEER, REFER TO 
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

6" METAL STUDS

FILL CAVITY WITH BATT 
INSULATION, R-13 MIN.

STUD 
DESIGNATION

SPACING

16"

WALL TYPE
FIRE RATING / 

UL DESIGN

X2 6" METAL STUD

PLAN

NOTES

AIR SPACE

BRICK TIES @ 16" OCEW

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R

RIGID INSULATION, R-10  MIN.

NOTES:

STUD 
DESIGNATION

SPACING

6" METAL STUD 16"

WALL TYPE
FIRE RATING / 

UL DESIGN

X3

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R

FINISH, REFER TO EXTERIOR 
ELEVATIONS

PLAN

5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD

FILL CAVITY WITH BATT 
INSULATION, R-13 MIN

AIR BARRIER

VAPOR RETARDER

VERTICAL CI GIRTS SIZING AND 
SPACING DESIGNED BY SUPPLIER

METAL STUDS

5/8" GLASS MAT GYPSUM SHEATHING

RIGID INSULATION, R-10 MIN.

STUD 
DESIGNATION

SPACING

6" METAL STUD 16"

WALL TYPE
FIRE RATING / 

UL DESIGN

NOTES:
1. WEEPS @ 24" OC, 8" MINIMUM ABOVE GRADE
2. WEEP VENTS AT TOP OF WALL CAVITY

METAL STUDS

AIR SPACE

AIR BARRIER

MASONRY VENEER, REFER 
TO EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R

5/8" GLASS MAT GYPSUM SHEATHING

X4

BRICK TIES @ 16" OCEW

PLAN

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE 
SLAB, REFER TO STRUCTURAL 

DOCUMENTS

SECTION

FIRE RATING: --
UL DESIGN: --
SOUND RATING: STC --
IMPACT RATING: IIC --

SUB-GRADE, REFER TO 
GEO-TECHNICAL REPORT 

FOR REQUIREMENTS

VAPOR BARRIER

EPDM ROOF MEMBRANE

VAPOR RETARDER

POLYISOCYANURATE 
INSULATION, R-30 MIN

METAL ROOF DECK AND 
STRUCTURE BELOW, REFER TO 

STRUCTURAL DOCUMENTS SECTION

REFER TO PAVER DETAIL FOR 
INSTALLATION OF COVER BOARD

NOTE:
FASTENERS NOT TO 
EXCEED 1 1/4" BELOW 
TOP OF METAL DECK

PLAN

5/8" TYPE X 
GYPSUM BOARD

METAL STUDS

WALL TYPE
STUD 

DESIGNATION
SPACING KEY NOTES

R3

1. ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

1 3/4" RF 
SHIELDING

362S125-30 16" 15'-6"

MAX. HEIGHT
(5 PSF, L/240)

NOMINAL 
BLOCK SIZE

8" CMU

WALL TYPE
FIRE RATING / 

UL DESIGN

NOTES:
1. WEEPS @ 24" OC, 8" MINIMUM ABOVE GRADE
2. WEEP VENTS AT TOP OF WALL CAVITY

CMU

AIR SPACE

AIR BARRIER

MASONRY VENEER, REFER 
TO EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R

X5

BRICK TIES @ 16" OCEW

PLAN

7/8" FURRING HAT CHANNEL

5/8" GYPSUM BOARD

CONCRETE TOPPING, REFER 
TO STRUCTURAL DOCUMENTS

HOLLOW CORE PLANK, REFER 
TO STRUCTURAL DOCUMENTS

SECTION

FIRE RATING: --
UL DESIGN: --
SOUND RATING: STC --
IMPACT RATING: IIC --

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A1-01

WALL TYPES AND NOTES

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A1-01

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

NOT TO SCALE

WALL TYPE M (NON-RATED MASONRY)

NOT TO SCALE

WALL TYPE A (METAL STUD PARTITION)
NOT TO SCALE

WALL TYPE B (METAL STUD FURRING)
NOT TO SCALE

WALL TYPE C (METAL STUD PARTITION)

1 1/2" = 1'-0"1
EXTERIOR WALL TYPE

1 1/2" = 1'-0"2
EXTERIOR WALL TYPE 1 1/2" = 1'-0"3

EXTERIOR WALL TYPE

1 1/2" = 1'-0"4
EXTERIOR WALL TYPE

1 1/2" = 1'-0"6
SLAB ON GRADE ASSEMBLY SL1

1 1/2" = 1'-0"8
ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLY R1

NOT TO SCALE

WALL TYPE R (RF SHIELDING PARTITION)

1 1/2" = 1'-0"5
EXTERIOR WALL TYPE

1 1/2" = 1'-0"7
FLOOR/CEILING ASSEMBLY SL2



UP

UP

A2-11 4

A2-11

A2-11

A2-11

1

2

3

BB

FFJJMM

11

22

HH AAEE

1

A3-21
________________________________________________

001

IT/MECH.

002

FUTURE

ROOMS

003

TOILET

004

TRAINING

ROOM

UNEXCAVATED

A7-12

3

A7-11

3

ST-10

STAIR 1

ST-10

ST-20

ST-20

STAIR 2

EL-10

ELEV.

EL-10

003
004

A5-11

11

001

EW 7
EW 7

CC

33

44

55

77

GG

66

DD

1
1
"

5
' 
- 

8
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

2
4

' 
- 

8
"

1
3

' 
- 

4
"

1
' 
- 

1
0

"
9

' 
- 

5
"

7
9

' -
 1

0
"

22' - 2"

166' - 6"

11" 22' - 2" 28' - 10" 17' - 10 1/2" 16' - 10 1/2" 28' - 9" 9' - 11" 23' - 0" 6' - 11" 10' - 4" 11"

11"11"4"11"

10' - 11" 26' - 1" 8' - 0"

5
' 
- 

2
"

1
' 
- 

3
"

7
' 
- 

1
0

"
3

9
' 
- 

4
"

6
' 
- 

7
"

8
' 
- 

9
"

4
0

' 
- 

5
"

5
5

' 
- 

9
"

6
"

1
9

' 
- 

6
"

5
' 
- 

2
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

8
"

1
1
"

1
2

' -
 1

1
"

1
5

' -
 7

 2
0

5
/2

5
6

"

3
"

5
' 
- 

5
"

6
' 
- 

1
0

"
4

3
' 
- 

4
"

1
9

' 
- 

6
"

1
0

' 
- 

2
"

11" 20' - 3" 1' - 11"

1' - 0" 10' - 11" 10' - 3"

2
1

' 
- 

4
"

2
1

' -
 0

 5
1
/2

5
6

"

N

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A1-20

BASEMENT PLAN

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A1-20

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1/8" = 1'-0"1
3.00 BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN



DN

DN

A2-11 4

A2-11

A2-11

A2-11

1

2

3

BB

FFJJMM

11

22

HH AAEE

2

A3-22
________________________________________________

EL-11

ELEV.

ST-21

STAIR 2

107

EXAM 1

109

EXAM 3

111

EXAM 5

115

TOILET

117

EXAM 7 118

EXAM 8

120

EXAM 9

121

EXAM 10
143

CONTROL

144

SCAN

135

PROCEDURE/FUTURE

X-RAY

128

STORAGE

130

EXAM 13

131

EXAM 14

132

EXAM 15

126

X-RAY

127

CONTROL

120

DICTAION

129

DICTAION
123

EXAM 10

112

DICTAION

110

EXAM 4

124

EXAM 11

125

EXAM 12

108

EXAM 2

106

REGISTRATION
105

CAST

104

REGISTRATION
139

CAST

167

EXAM 19

173

TOILET

172

TOILET
169

TREATMENT

4

168

TREATMENT

3

167

TREATMENT

2

166

TREATMENT

1

165

FOOD

164

BLOOD

DRAW

163

TOILET

170

MED ROOM

171

DICTAION

159

EXAM 16

160

EXAM 17

161

EXAM 18

162

DICTATION

152

PT

154

NURSE

STATION

101

RECEPTION

119

NURSE

166

SCALE

162

STORAGE

133

CORRIDOR

1

A3-21
________________________________________________

114

STORAGE
137

STORAGE

151

BREAK

ROOM

139

HSKP

150

COMPUTER145

LOCKER

ROOM

142

MRI SUITE

134

PREP ROOM

148

STORAGE

146

TOILET

138

TOILET

147

CORRIDOR

140

IT

A5-11

1

A5-11

2

A5-11

3

A7-12

1

A7-11

1

A5-11

4

A5-11

5

A5-11

6

153

PT TOILET
X1

X5

X1

X1

X1

X1

X1

X1

X1X1

X1

X2

X2

X2
X1

X3

X3

X1
X1

X1

149

TOILET

ST-11

STAIR 1

2

A3-21
________________________________________________

100

VESTIBULE

1

A3-22
________________________________________________

E
W

 3

E
W

 4
E

W
 4

E
W

 3
E

W
 3

E
W

 3

EW 3
EW 3

EW 5

EW 4EW 4
EW 4EW 4EW 3EW 3EW 3EW 3

IW
 1

R1

R1

A3

A3

R1

R1

167' - 6"

10' - 4"41' - 8"27' - 0"65' - 4"22' - 2"1' - 0"

1
0

5
' -

 0
"

8
9

' 
- 

8
"

1
5

' 
- 

4
"

1
4

' 
- 

7
"

1
2

' 
- 

8
"

1
0

' 
- 

4
"

6
4

' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

8
"

1
0

7
' -

 3
"

52' - 0"61' - 8"40' - 0"14' - 7"

A5-11

7
A5-11

8

IW
 4

A5-11

9

IW
 4

A6-12

22

A6-12

23

24

A6-12 25

A6-12

26

A6-13

1

2

3

A6-12

28

A6-134

A6-13

5

A6-13

6

A6-13

7

A6-13

8

A5-11

10

ST-11A

ST-11B

ST-21B

EL-11

100B

101A 101B

106

105

104

172

173

139

164

162161160159

170

171

157

158

107

109

111 112

110

108 125

124

123

115

117 118

141

CORR.

136

CORRIDOR

128

CORR.

122

CORR.

172

CORR.

116

NURSE

113

NURSE
175

120 121

120

126A

126B

129

128

130

131

132

134

135

138 139 140

143

145

144

142

146

162

150
149

148

147B147A

151

153

152B

152A

5
' 
- 

8
"

EW 6EW 6

102

CORR.

103

CORR.

163
156

CORRIDOR

158

CORRIDOR

157

CORR.

155

CORR.

A6-13

17

B3 A6

A6

A6
A6

A6*

A6*

A6*

A6*

A6A6

A6

A6

A6

A6

A6

A6-12

24

3

A3-21
________________________________________________

A5-11

12

EW 3 EW 3

1111

1111
1212

CC

33

44

55

77

GG

GG

168' - 3"

8' - 11" 2' - 0" 11' - 3" 3' - 0" 7' - 11" 28' - 10" 17' - 10 1/2" 16' - 10 1/2" 28' - 9" 32' - 11" 6' - 11" 10' - 4"

5
' 
- 

8
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

2
"

1
9

' 
- 

6
"

1
3

' 
- 

4
"

1
' 
- 

1
0

"
1

9
' 
- 

5
"

3
' 
- 

6
"

9
' 
- 

9
"

1
' 
- 

0
"

2
' 
- 

6
"

8
' 
- 

1
1

"

66

3' - 4" 6' - 0" 3' - 4" 6' - 0" 2' - 8" 6' - 0" 3' - 4" 6' - 0" 3' - 4" 10' - 8" 6' - 0" 8' - 8" 6' - 0" 8' - 8" 6' - 0" 8' - 0" 7' - 8" 5' - 8" 6' - 0" 3' - 4" 6' - 0" 3' - 4" 6' - 4" 3' - 4" 6' - 0" 2' - 8" 6' - 0" 3' - 4"

5
' 
- 

4
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

8
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

4
"

6
' 
- 

4
"

2
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

1
6

' 
- 

8
"

10' - 8" 6' - 0" 3' - 4" 3' - 4" 4' - 0" 6' - 0" 5' - 4" 6' - 0" 4' - 0" 3' - 4" 3' - 4" 6' - 0" 4' - 0"

EW 4EW 4 EW 4EW 4

5
' 
- 

4
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

3
6

' 
- 

4
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

1414

99

OO KK

88

DD

NN LL

1313

1010

X3

X1

X5

X5

A6

A6

5
' 
- 

0
 3

/4
"

A6

A6A6A6

A6

A6

3
0

' 
- 

2
"

3
7

' 
- 

2
"

55' - 6 1/2" 29' - 11"

SHEET NOTES
A. ALL INTERIOR PARTITION WALLS SHALL BE WALL TYPE A3, 

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
B. REFER TO SHEET A1-49 'FINISH SCHEDULES' FOR 

MARKER/TACK BOARD SPECIFICATIONS.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A1-21

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A1-21

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1/8" = 1'-0"1
FIRST FLOOR PLAN



DN

DN

BB

FFJJMM

11

22

HH AAEE

1111

1212

CC

33

44

55

77

GG

66

EL-11

ELEV.

ST-21

STAIR 2

107

EXAM 1

109

EXAM 3

111

EXAM 5

115

TOILET

117

EXAM 7 118

EXAM 8

120

EXAM 9

121

EXAM 10
143

CONTROL

144

SCAN

135

PROCEDURE/FUTURE

X-RAY

128

STORAGE

130

EXAM 13

131

EXAM 14

132

EXAM 15

126

X-RAY

127

CONTROL

120

DICTAION

129

DICTAION
123

EXAM 10

112

DICTAION

110

EXAM 4

124

EXAM 11

125

EXAM 12

108

EXAM 2

106

REGISTRATION
105

CAST

104

REGISTRATION
139

CAST

167

EXAM 19

173

TOILET

172

TOILET

169

TREATMENT

4

168

TREATMENT

3

167

TREATMENT

2 166

TREATMENT

1

165

FOOD

164

BLOOD

DRAW

163

TOILET

170

MED ROOM

171

DICTAION

159

EXAM 16

160

EXAM 17

161

EXAM 18

162

DICTATION

152

PT

154

NURSE

STATION

101

RECEPTION

119

NURSE

166

SCALE

162

STORAGE

133

CORRIDOR

114

STORAGE
137

STORAGE

151

BREAK

ROOM

139

HSKP

150

COMPUTER145

LOCKER

ROOM

142

MRI SUITE

134

PREP ROOM

148

STORAGE

146

TOILET

138

TOILET

147

CORRIDOR

140

IT

153

PT TOILET

149

TOILET

ST-11

STAIR 1

100

VESTIBULE

17' - 3"7' - 5"

11' - 1"

3
' 
- 

4
"

10' - 4"5' - 9"4' - 0"8' - 0"11' - 7"

1
4

' 
- 

1
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

1
9

' 
- 

0
"

8
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

7
"

9
' 
- 

6
"

5
' 
- 

8
"

2
' 
- 

6
"

6
' 
- 

8
"

2
' 
- 

5
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

7
"

5
' 
- 

6
"

9
' 
- 

5
"

9
' 
- 

7
"

9
' 
- 

6
"

ALIGNALIGNALIGNALIGN

ALIGN

ALIGN

9
' 
- 

5
"

2
' 
- 

6
"

7
' 
- 

2
"

9
' 
- 

6
"

3
' 
- 

9
"

5' - 8"7' - 6"7' - 5"8' - 0"11' - 7"5' - 4"11' - 8"11' - 5"

11' - 7 13/16"

9
' 
- 

1
0

"

11' - 5"5' - 5"11' - 8"

11' - 6"11' - 6"11' - 6"5' - 5"12' - 1"5' - 5"9' - 0"11' - 10"8' - 8"

22' - 6"12' - 4"5' - 5"

7' - 10"
6

' 
- 

9
"

8
' 
- 

8
"

1
1

' 
- 

0
"

1
0
"

1
2

' 
- 

6
"

141

CORR.

136

CORRIDOR

128

CORR.

122

CORR.

172

CORR.

116

NURSE

113

NURSE

5
' 
- 

1
0

"

102

CORR.

103

CORR.

156

CORRIDOR

158

CORRIDOR

157

CORR.

155

CORR.

8' - 2" 14' - 8" 14' - 6" 14' - 4" 13' - 10"

9' - 7" 5' - 9 3/8"

8
' 
- 

1
"

1
8

' 
- 

4
"

3
3

' 
- 

1
"

1
8

' -
 1

0
"

11' - 6" 11' - 7" 5' - 4" 11' - 3"

6' - 5" 11' - 6"

9
' 
- 

9
"

9
' 
- 

8
"

9
' 
- 

8
"

1
4

' 
- 

3
"

9
' 
- 

8
"

9
' 
- 

5
"

9
' 
- 

6
"

3
' 
- 

9
"

1414

99

OO KK

88

DD

NN LL

1313

1010

1
0

 7
/8

"

A
L
IG

N

2' - 2"

3' - 0" 4' - 4" 3' - 0"

2' - 1"

3' - 0" 4' - 4" 3' - 0"

2' - 0"

3' - 0" 4' - 4" 3' - 0"

4
5
.0

0
°

45.00°

1
9

' 
- 

8
"

N

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A1-22

FIRST FLOOR DIMENSION

PLAN

Author

06/18/24

Checker

400 31067 A1-22

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1/8" = 1'-0"1
FIRST FLOOR PLAN



2

A3-22
________________________________________________

1

A3-21
________________________________________________

144

SCAN

143

CONTROL

137

STORAGE

121

EXAM 10

142

MRI SUITE

145

LOCKER

ROOM

146

TOILET

150

COMPUTER

ST-11

STAIR 1

149

TOILET

148

STORAGE

147

CORRIDOR

153

PT TOILET

151

BREAK

ROOM

152

PT

162

DICTATION

163

TOILET

164

BLOOD

DRAW

165

FOOD

166

TREATMENT

1

167

TREATMENT

2

168

TREATMENT

3

169

TREATMENT

4

172

TOILET

154

NURSE

STATION

170

MED ROOM

171

DICTAION

161

EXAM 18
160

EXAM 17

159

EXAM 16

139

CAST

167

EXAM 19

166

SCALE
173

TOILET

101

RECEPTION

EL-11

ELEV.

ST-21

STAIR 2

106

REGISTRATION

105

CAST

104

REGISTRATION

133

CORRIDOR

134

PREP ROOM

135

PROCEDURE/FUTURE

X-RAY

140

IT

139

HSKP138

TOILET

128

STORAGE

130

EXAM 13

131

EXAM 14

132

EXAM 15

126

X-RAY

119

NURSE

129

DICTAION

120

EXAM 9

118

EXAM 8

117

EXAM 7115

TOILET

114

STORAGE

120

DICTAION

127

CONTROL

123

EXAM 10

112

DICTAION

110

EXAM 4

124

EXAM 11

125

EXAM 12

108

EXAM 2

111

EXAM 5

109

EXAM 3

107

EXAM 1

100

VESTIBULE

2

A3-21
________________________________________________

1

A3-22
________________________________________________

136

CORRIDOR

141

CORR.

128

CORR.

122

CORR.

116

NURSE

113

NURSE

2' x 2' ACT

12' - 0"

GYP BD

8' - 3"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

GYP BD

8' - 3"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6" 2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

103

CORR.
102

CORR.

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

8' - 6"

BULKHEAD

8' - 6"

BULKHEAD

1
3

' -
 1

0
 3

/1
6

"

3' - 0"3' - 0"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"
8' - 6"

BULKHEAD

156

CORRIDOR

155

CORR.

158

CORRIDOR

157

CORR.

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

GYP BD

8' - 0"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"
2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"
2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

172

CORR.

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"
2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

9' - 4"

GYP BD

8' - 0"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

12' - 0"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

2' x 2' ACT

8' - 6"

3

A3-21
________________________________________________

4
' 
- 

8
"

2
' 
- 

8
 1

/4
"

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A1-31

FIRST FLOOR REFLECTED

CEILING PLAN

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A1-31

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1/8" = 1'-0"1
FIRST FLOOR REFLECTED CEILING PLAN

KEYNOTE LEGEND



DN

DN

INDICATES DIRECTION OF FLOORING 
INSTALLATION PATTERN

INDICATES LOCATION OF CORNER GUARDSOR

C

W

B

F

ROOM #

ROOM NAME

CEILING

WALL

BASE

FLOOR

FINISHES LISTED IN ROOM 
TAG APPLY TO ALL 

ELEMENTS IN ROOM, 
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

THE FOLLOWING SYMBOL 
APPLIES TO FINISHES 

DIFFERENT FROM THOSE 
NOTED IN ROOM TAG:

FIN#

ROOM / FINISH TAG

THE FOLLOWING SYMBOL 
INDICATES: "REFER TO 

ELEVATIONS" FOR 
ADDITIONAL FINISH 

INFORMATION

FIN#

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A1-41

FIRST FLOOR FINISH PLAN

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A1-41

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1/8" = 1'-0"1
FIRST FLOOR FINISH PLAN

KEYNOTE LEGEND



MODEL:  JL-800 CARPET TREAD
MODEL:  JL-TR THIN LINE RECESSED

J.L. INDUSTRIES

FRAME

TYPICAL TRANSITIONS

COVE
FILLER STRIP

TRIM

6
" 

M
IN

TS-X
SCHLUTER - JOLLY
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
SCHLUTER - RENO-U
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
SCHLUTER - RENO-T
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
SCHLUTER - RAMP
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
SCHLUTER - RENO-U
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
SCHLUTER - RONDEC
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
SCHLUTER - SCHIENE
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
SCHLUTER - DILEX-EZ 6 + 9
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
SCHLUTER - QUADEC
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
JOHNSONITE CE-XX-A
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
JOHNSONITE CD-XX-A
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
JOHNSONITE CTA-XX-J
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
JOHNSONITE CTA-XX-P
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
JOHNSONITE CRS-XX-A
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
JOHNSONITE RCN-XX-A
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

TS-X
JOHNSONITE CTA-XX-L
COLOR
USE AT (LOCATION)

SEAM SEAL ALL LVT TO CARPET 
TRANSITIONS

VINYL BASE

QUARRY TILE BASE

TS-X 
SCHLUTER-SYSTEMS DILEX-AHK

EPOXY FLASH COVE BASE

COVE
FILLER STRIP

TRIM

6
" 

M
IN

VINYL FLASH COVE BASE

CERAMIC TILE BASE

TS-X
JOHNSONITE SLN-XX-B
COLOR: BLACK
USE AT STAIRS, CARPET TILE TO 
CARPET TILE TRANSITION

TYPICAL TRANSITIONS (VIEW BELOW) IS FOR REFERENCE ONLY AND SHOULD BE REMOVED FROM SHEET

WIDTH AS REQ'D

WIDTH AS REQ'D

WIDTH AS REQ'D

NO BACKSPLASH 
SCRIBE TO WALL & 
CAULK

WATERFALL
FRONT LIP

WATERFALL
FRONT LIP

COVED & RADIUS 
BACKSPLASH; SCRIBE 
TO WALL & CAULK

SELF EDGED

STYLE "B"

STYLE "A"

STYLE "C"

STYLE "D"

WIDTH AS REQ'D

PVC EDGE

NO BACKSPLASH; 
SCRIBE TO WALL & 
CAULK

WIDTH AS REQ'D

PVC EDGEPVC EDGE

1/2"

PROVIDE 1/2" COUNTERTOP 
OVERHANG AT ALL 
FINISHED ENDS

FINISHED END

PLAM COUNTERTOP
EDGE STYLE AS INDICATED
ON CABINET ELEVATIONS

TYP. COUNTERTOP

OVERHANG

0
1
/2

"
1
"

2
"

1
/4

"

PROJECT NO.

FILE NAME

DRAWN BY

DESIGNED BY

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE

CLIENT PROJECT NO.

TITLE

SHEET

PROJECT

REVIEWED BY

THIS DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF I & S GROUP, 
INC. AND MAY NOT BE USED, COPIED OR DUPLICATED 
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

6/19/2024 3:43:31 PM

OSHKOSH

NEW BUILDING

A1-49 FINISH SCHEDULES

1 1/2" = 1'-0"1
COUNTERTOP STYLES

FINISH NOTES
A. SOME SPECIFIED PRODUCTS AND FINISHES MAY HAVE SUBSTANTIAL LEAD

TIMES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PLACING ORDERS IN A
MANNER TO ENSURE THEIR TIMELY ARRIVAL. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR EXPENSES, INCLUDING DESIGN FEES, RELATED TO ANY
RESELECTION REQUIRED DUE TO FAILURE TO ORDER PRODUCTS IN A TIMELY
MANNER.

B. ALL FINISH WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN COMPLIANCE WITH DRAWINGS
AND SPECIFICATIONS. SHOP DRAWINGS, SAMPLES, AND PRODUCT DATA
SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE ARCHITECT FOR THEIR REVIEW & APPROVAL
PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK.

C. ALL WALLS TO RECEIVE PNT-1 & B-1, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

D. BULKHEADS AND SOFFITS: ALL SIDES AND UNDERSIDES TO BE PAINTED AS
INDICATED ON REFLECTED CEILING PLANS, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

E. REFER TO REFLECTED CEILING PLANS FOR CEILING/SOFFIT FINISHES AND
LOCATIONS.

F. PAINT ALL EXPOSED DUCTWORK, CONDUIT, ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, ETC, TO
MATCH ADJACENT SURFACES, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

G. EXTEND ALL FLOORING UNDER FURNITURE, DESKS AND COUNTERS, UNLESS
NOTED OTHERWISE.

H. ALL FLOORING TRANSITIONS TO BE CENTERED UNDER DOOR IN CLOSED
POSITION, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

I. INSTALL FLOORING PER PATTERNS REFLECTED ON FINISH PLANS. REFER TO
FINISH SCHEDULE FOR ADDITIONAL NOTES.

J. INSTALL DIFFERENT FLOORING TYPES PER MANUFACTURER’S RECOMMENDED
METHODS, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

K. FLOOR TILE AT FLOOR DRAINS TO BE INSTALLED WITH MINIMAL CUTS.

L. INSTALL FIRE TREATED BLOCKING AS REQUIRED IN ALL PARTITIONS TO
RECEIVE COUNTERS, SHELVING, MARKER BOARDS, TV’S, ETC.

M. ALL EXPOSED ENDS OF CASEWORK TO HAVE FINISHED END PANELS.

N. GROMMETS TO BE INCLUDED AT EVERY COUNTER WITH OUTLETS
UNDERNEATH. VERIFY GROMMET LOCATIONS WITH DESIGNER.

O. IN-WALL OR WALL SUPPORT BRACKETS TO BE PAINTED TO MATCH WALL
FINISH, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

P. PLUMBING FIXTURES HAVE BEEN REMOVED FROM FINISH PLAN FOR VIEWING
CLARITY. REFER TO THE RESPECTIVE PLANS AND DOCUMENTS FOR PLUMBING
CRITERIA.

Q. WOOD DOORS, FRAMES, BASE MOLDING TO BE FILLED, STAINED, SEALED AND
SHOP FINISHED TO MATCH ARCHITECT’S SAMPLE. WORK SHOULD BE
PERFORMED IN A DUST FREE ENVIRONMENT.

R. UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, PROVIDE PRODUCTS OF QUALITY SPECIFIED
BY AWI/AWMAC/WI ARCHITECTURAL WOODWORK STANDARDS FOR CUSTOM
GRADE.

S. RTE: REFER TO INTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL FINISH INFORMATION

T. HOLLOW METAL DOORS, FRAMES, AND HANDRAILS TO BE PAINTED PNT-X

U. "E" AT END OF PAINT TAG DESIGNATES TO USE EPOXY PAINT AT THIS
LOCATION

V. COORDINATE ALL BRACKETS WITH OUTLET LOCATIONS UNDER COUNTER

W. LOCKING CASEWORK TO BE KEYED ALIKE PER ROOM UNLESS NOTED.
PROVIDE ONE KEY FOR USER AND ONE MASTER KEY

X. WINDOW TREATMENTS ARE INDICATED ON REFLECTED CEILING PLANS

Y. ALL CONCRETE COLUMNS TO REMAIN UNPAINTED UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

Z. IN THE CASE OF NO FULL HEIGHT CASEWORK, INSTALL UPPER CASEWORK
WITH THE TOP AT 84" AFF.

ZA. CASEWORK TO BE INSTALLED WITH B-X OR PLAM-X FOR THE TOE KICK, U.N.O.

VERIFY IN
FO AND/OR USE.

REMOVE NOTE W
HEN VERIFIED

INTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE
MARK MATERIAL TYPE MANUFACTURER MODEL / SIZE COLOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION COMMENTS

SOLID SURFACE

SS-1 SOLID SURFACE

THIS INTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE IS COORDINATED WITH THE "INTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE_WORKING"
FOR MATERIALS TO APPROPRIATELY POPULATE INTO THIS SCHEDULE, TWO CONDITIONS MUST BE MET:
1. MATERIAL MARK MUST BE INPUT
2. MATERIAL KEYNOTE MUST BE INPUT

MISCELLANEOUS SCHEDULE
MARK MATERIAL TYPE MANUFACTURER MODEL / SIZE COLOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION COMMENTS

CG-1 CORNER GUARD INPRO 160 HIGH IMPACT / 2" WING X 4' H

CURT-1 PRIVACY CURTAIN

HDW-1 COUNTERTOP
BRACKET

A&M HARDWARE

HDW-2 CASEWORK PULL

MB-1 MARKERBOARD

TB-1 TACKBOARD

TOILET
PARTITIONS

SOLID PLASTIC HDPE SCRANTON HINY HIDERS TBD

TS-X TRANSITION SCHLUTER SYSTEMS RENO-U SATIN ANODIZED ALUMINUM XX

TS-X TRANSITION SCHLUTER SYSTEMS RONDEC SATIN ANODIZED ALUMINUM INSTALL AT OUTSIDE CORNERS
AND EXPOSED TILE EDGES. USE
COORDINATING ACCESSORY
PIECES TO COMPLETE INSTALL
AS RECOMMENDED BY
SCHLUTER

TS-X TRANSITION INSTALL AT ALL XX TO XX
FLOORING LOCATIONS

WOOD DOORS WOOD DOORS SPECIES / FLUSH

WT-1 MOTORIZED WINDOW
TREATMENT

LUTRON CONTRACT ROLLER / VARIES SHADE: XX / FASCIA: XX

WT-2 MANUAL WINDOW
TREATMENT

LIGHT HARVESTING
SHADING SOLUTIONS

INC.

LHSS150 CHAIN OPERATED W/
FASCIA / VARIES

SHADE: XX / FASCIA: XX

VERIFY IN
FO AND/OR USE.

REMOVE NOTE W
HEN VERIFIED

ELEVATOR SCHEDULE
MARK MATERIAL TYPE COLOR COMMENTS

AUXILLARY CAR STATIONS N/A

BASE FINISH BRUSHED STAINLESS STEEL #4

BUTTON AND FIXTURE STYLE TRADITIONAL PUSH BUTTON
ILLUMINATION

WHITE

CAB DOOR FINISH BRUSHED STAINLESS STEEL #4

CAB FRONTS FINISH BRUSHED STAINLESS STEEL #4

CAB HEIGHT STANDARD

CAB SILL FINISH BRUSHED STAINLESS STEEL #4

CAB TYPE STEEL SHELL WITH VERTICAL
PANELS

CEILING PANEL FINISH BRUSHED STAINLESS STEEL #4

CEILING TYPE SUSPENDED WITH LED LIGHTS FRAME FINISH- PITCH BLACK

ELEVATOR HALL FIXTURE TRADITIONAL PUSH BUTTON
ILLUMINATION

WHITE

FINISH FLOOR CARPET TILE CPT-1 REFER TO FINISH SCHEDULE

HALL POSITION INDICATOR HALL LANTERN-VERTICAL WITH
STANDARD POSITION INDICATOR

HANDRAIL TYPE 4" FLAT BAR BRUSHED STAINLESS STEEL THREE HANDRAILS

MAIN HOISTWAY DOOR AND FRAME BRUSHED STAINLESS STEEL #4

PANEL ARRANGEMENT VERTICAL 3 VERTICAL SIDE PANELS, 5
VERTICAL REAR PANELS

PANEL TYPE PLASTIC LAMINATE

PROTECTION PADS WITH BUTTONS N/A

REMOVABLE PANELS NO

REVEAL FINISH BRUSHED STAINLESS STEEL #4

RIDING LANTERN TRADITIONAL

SWING TYPES WRAP AROUND

TYPICAL DOOR AND FRAME FINISH BRUSHED STAINLESS STEEL #4

VERIFY INFO AND/OR USE. SET THE SCHEDULE'S VIEW
TEMPLATE TO "Z - Note Blocks" WHEN VERIFIED.

VERIFY IN
FO AND/OR USE.

REMOVE NOTE W
HEN VERIFIED

WALL BOARD SCHEDULE
MARK SIZE (HxW) COMMENTS

DATE



BBFFJJMM

11

22

HH AAEE

2

A3-22
________________________________________________

1

A3-21
________________________________________________

X3

X3

X3

2

A3-21
________________________________________________

1

A3-22
________________________________________________

3

A3-21
________________________________________________

1" / 1'-0"

X3

1111
1212

CC

33

44

55

77

GG

66

1/4" / 1'-0"

1/4" / 1'-0"

1/4" / 1'-0"

OO KK

88

DD

1/4" / 1'-0"

1/4" / 1'-0" 1/4" / 1'-0" 1/4" / 1'-0"1/4" / 1'-0"

1/4" / 1'-0"

1/4" / 1'-0"

NN LL

JJMM

2

A3-21
________________________________________________

3

A3-21
________________________________________________

1111
1212

1414

99

OO KKNN LL

1313

1010

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A1-71

ROOF PLAN

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A1-71

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1/8" = 1'-0"1
ROOF PLAN

1/8" = 1'-0"2
ROOF PLAN



FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

BASEMENT
86' - 0"

EF-01

EF-02

EF-03

EF-04

EF-05

EF-05

UPPER ROOF BEARING
118' - 0"

LOWER ROOF BEARING
116' - 8"

FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

BASEMENT
86' - 0"

UPPER PARAPET
120' - 8"

1

A3-21
________________________________________________

EF-05

EF-05

EF-01

EF-02

EF-03

EF-05

EF-04

EF-05

EF-06

UPPER ROOF BEARING
118' - 0"

EF-04

LOWER ROOF BEARING
116' - 8"

EF-05

EF-04

EF-05

EF-06

EF-03

EF-02

EF-03

EF-03

EF-05

EF-04

EF-05

EF-06

EF-05

EF-04

EF-05 EF-05

EF-04

EF-04

EF-05

EF-05

1

A3-22
________________________________________________

LOWER ROOF BEARING
116' - 8"

FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

BASEMENT
86' - 0"

UPPER PARAPET
120' - 8"EF-05

EF-05

EF-04

EF-01

EF-03

EF-02

EF-05

EF-05

EF-04

EF-06

EF-02

EF-05

EF-05

EF-04

2

A3-21
________________________________________________

UPPER ROOF BEARING
118' - 0"

3

A3-21
________________________________________________

LOWER ROOF BEARING
116' - 8"

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A2-11

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A2-11

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1/8" = 1'-0"1
NORTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"2
WEST ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"3
SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"4
EAST ELEVATION

EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE

MARK MATERIAL TYPE MANUFACTURER MODEL / SIZE COLOR
ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION COMMENTS

EF-01 BRICK VENEER BELDON ALAMO BLEND RUNNING BOND

EF-02 STONE HALQUIST STONE CHILTON
LEDGESTONE

-

EF-03 PRECAST CONCRETE COUNTY MATERIALS - -

EF-04 METAL PANEL - -

EF-05 METAL TRIM - - -

EF-06 CAST STONE PANELS COUNTY MATERIALS ROCK CAST
GP-A

STACKED BOND



FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

TOP OF FOOTING
85' - 4"

AA

BASEMENT
86' - 0"

9
' 
- 

1
0

"
3

' 
- 

4
"

A3-31

1

M
E

T
A

L
 A

C
C

E
N

T
M

A
S

O
N

R
Y

 S
T

O
N

E
 

V
E

N
E

E
R

A3-31

2

FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

TOP OF FOOTING
85' - 4"

MM

BASEMENT
86' - 0"

UPPER PARAPET
120' - 8"

UPPER ROOF BEARING
118' - 0"

LOWER ROOF BEARING
116' - 8"

FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

TOP OF FOOTING
85' - 4"

MM

BASEMENT
86' - 0"

UPPER PARAPET
120' - 8"

UPPER ROOF BEARING
118' - 0"

LOWER ROOF BEARING
116' - 8"

OO KKNN LL

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A3-21

WALL SECTIONS

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A3-21

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1/2" = 1'-0"1
WALL SECTION AT BRICK

1/2" = 1'-0"2
WALL SECTION AT CAST STONE

1/2" = 1'-0"3
SECTION THRU VESTIBULE



FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

TOP OF FOOTING
85' - 4"

BASEMENT
86' - 0"

UPPER PARAPET
120' - 8"

UPPER ROOF BEARING
118' - 0"

11111212

LOWER ROOF BEARING
116' - 8"

FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

TOP OF FOOTING
85' - 4"

BASEMENT
86' - 0"

UPPER PARAPET
120' - 8"

UPPER ROOF BEARING
118' - 0"

11111212

LOWER ROOF BEARING
116' - 8"

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A3-22

WALL SECTIONS

Author

05/09/24

Checker

400 31067 A3-22

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1/2" = 1'-0"1
WALL SECTION AT WINDOW

1/2" = 1'-0"2
WALL SECTION AT WINDOW AT CAST STONE



6 1/4"

125/256"

1
' 
- 

0
"

8
"

6"

PREFINISHED METAL SOFFIT 
SYSTEM WITH ASSOCIATED 
TRIM AS REQUIRED

WOOD NAILER

1 1/2" METAL WALL PANEL 
SYSTEM ON 2 1/2" METAL STUDS

WOOD NAILER

PREFINISHED METAL 
TRIM/FLASHING WITH DRIP

BRICK VENEERSTRUCTURAL BEAM, REFER TO 
STRUCTURAL DOCUMENTS

ROOF CONSTRUCTION, REFER 
TO ROOF PLAN

RUN MEMBRANE UP WALL 
AND OVER TOP OF PARAPET

3/4" PLYWOOD

PREFINISHED METAL COPING

AA

1
 1

/2
"

6
 1

/8
"

7
 5

/8
"

1 3/8"

5"

PRECAST ACCENT BAND

DRIP

RF SHIELDING BY 
RF CONTRACTOR

5/8" GYP BOARD 
ON 2 1/2" METAL 
STUDS

WALL PARTITION -
SEE PLAN FOR 

TYPE

SOUND BATT  
INSULATION

CAULK BOTTOM 
OF WALL 

EACHSIDE

CAULK BOTTOM 
OF WALL

FINISH FLOORING

DEPRESSED 
CONCRETE SLAB

TOP OF FLOOR

2"

SLAB ISOLATION
JOINT (TYP 4 SIDES)

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A3-31

WALL DETAILS

Author

06/12/24

Checker

400 31067 A3-31

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1 1/2" = 1'-0"1
TYPICAL PARAPET DETAIL

1 1/2" = 1'-0"2
PRECAST ACCENT BAND DETAIL

1 1/2" = 1'-0"3
SOUND WALL/RF WALL DETAIL



FL
FLUSH

DOOR TYPES

NL-2
NARROW LITE

1
0
"

5
' 
- 

4
"

1
0
"

NL
NARROW LITE

3
' 
- 

6
"

FG
FULL GLASS

1
0
"

5
' 
- 

4
"

1
0
"

6" 9"

1
0
"

2
' 
- 

8
"

6" 9"

NL-1
NARROW LITE

4
' 
- 

1
0

"

6" 9"

1
0
"

1
' 
- 

4
"

9" 1' - 6" 9"

1
METAL FRAME

FRAME TYPES

2
METAL FRAME W/
MASONRY HEAD

2"

WIDTH

DOOR 2"

2
"

D
O

O
R

 H
E

IG
H

T

2"

WIDTH

DOOR 2"

4
"

D
O

O
R

 H
E

IG
H

T

2
' 
- 

3
"

2
"

2
' 
- 

3
"

2
"

1
' 
- 

8
"

2
"

2
' 
- 

8
"

2
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

2
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

2
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

1
6

' 
- 

8
"

2" 2' - 10 33/64" 2" 2' - 11" 2" 2' - 11" 2" 2' - 11" 2"

12' - 5 33/64"

2" 2' - 10" 2" 2' - 11" 2" 2' - 11" 2" 2' - 9" 2"

IG-2 IG-2

IG-2IG-2IG-2IG-2

S-1 S-1 S-1 S-1

S-1 S-1 S-1 S-1

IG-2IG-2

4

A4-21
________________________________________________

5

A4-21
________________________________________________

2" 3' - 10 3/4" 2" 3' - 10 1/2" 2" 3' - 9 1/2" 2"

12' - 2 3/4"

2
"

2
' 
- 

3
"

2
"

2
' 
- 

3
"

2
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

IG-2 IG-2 IG-2

IG-2IG-2IG-2

S-1 S-1 S-1

S-1
S-1

S-1

SPANDRAL GLASS

IG-2 IG-2 IG-2

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
' 
- 

8
"

2
"

2
' 
- 

8
"

2
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

2
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

2
"

1
6

' 
- 

8
"

4

A4-21
________________________________________________

5

A4-21
________________________________________________

2
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

4
"

1
' 
- 

2
"

2
' 
- 

0
"

2
"

4
' 
- 

1
0

"
2

"
2

' 
- 

0
"

2
"

2
"

1
' 
- 

8
"

2
"

1
2

' 
- 

6
"

IG-1 IG-1

IG-1IG-1

S-1

2" 2' - 9" 2"

2" 5' - 8" 2"

6' - 0"

S-1

6

A4-21
________________________________________________

7

A4-21
________________________________________________

4
' 
- 

1
0

"
2

"
2

' 
- 

0
"

2
"

2
' 
- 

0
"

IG-1IG-1

IG-1 IG-1

2

A4-21
________________________________________________

7

A4-21
________________________________________________

2
"

1
' 
- 

8
"

2
"

2
' 
- 

0
"

1
' 
- 

2
"

2
' 
- 

4
"

D
O

O
R

 H
E

IG
H

T

2" 6' - 0" 2"

6' - 4"

IG-1IG-1

2
"

2
' 
- 

0
"

2
"

IG-1 IG-1

6

A4-21
________________________________________________

2
"

3
' 
- 

8
"

2
"

3
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

2" 1' - 8" 2"

2' - 0"

RF
SHEILDED
WINDOW

2
"

7
' 
- 

8
"

2
"

8
' 
- 

0
"

2"2' - 2"2"

2' - 6"

G-2

2"1' - 5"2"DOOR WIDTH2"1' - 5"2"

9' - 6"

2
"

7
' 
- 

8
"

2
"

8
' 
- 

0
"

G-2 G-2

LEAD LINED
WINDOW

2
"

3
' 
- 

8
"

2
"

3
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

2" 1' - 8" 2"

2' - 0"

2
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

4
"

8
"

2
"

4
' 
- 

1
0

"
2

"
2

' 
- 

0
"

2
"

2" 3' - 0" 2"

3' - 4"

IG-2

IG-2

2

A4-21
________________________________________________

7

A4-21
________________________________________________

3
' 
- 

0
"

2
"

2
' 
- 

8
"

2
"

2" 4' - 3" 2" 4' - 4" 2" 4' - 4" 2" 4' - 3" 2"

18' - 0"

IG-1 IG-1 IG-1 IG-1

3

A4-21
________________________________________________

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A4-11

DOOR SCHEDULE, DOOR AND

FRAME TYPES

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A4-11

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

DOOR SCHEDULE

MARK ROOM NAME WIDTH HEIGHT
DOOR
TYPE DOOR MATERIAL

FRAME
TYPE FRAME MATERIAL

FIRE
RATING

HARDWARE
GROUP COMMENTS

001 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL HOLLOW METAL 1 HOLLOW METAL

002 STAIR 2 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL 60 MIN

003 TOILET 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

004 TRAINING ROOM 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

100B VESTIBULE 6' - 0" 7' - 10" FG1 ALUMINUM

101A CORRIDOR 3' - 0" 7' - 0" NL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

101B CORRIDOR 3' - 0" 7' - 0" NL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

104 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

105 CORRIDOR 4' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

106 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

107 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

108 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

109 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

110 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

111 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

112 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

115 NURSE 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

117 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

118 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

120 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

120 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

121 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

123 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

124 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

125 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

126A CORR. 4' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

126B CORR. 4' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

128 STORAGE 6' - 0" 7' - 0" FL HOLLOW METAL 1 HOLLOW METAL

129 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

130 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

131 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

132 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

134 CORRIDOR 4' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

135 CORRIDOR 4' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

138 CORRIDOR 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

139 CORRIDOR 4' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

139 CORRIDOR 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

140 CORRIDOR 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

142 CORR. 4' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

143 MRI SUITE 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

144 MRI SUITE 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

145 LOCKER ROOM 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

146 LOCKER ROOM 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

147A CORR. 4' - 0" 7' - 0" NL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

147B CORRIDOR 6' - 0" 7' - 0" FL HOLLOW METAL 1 HOLLOW METAL

148 CORRIDOR 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL HOLLOW METAL 1 HOLLOW METAL

149 TOILET 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

150 CORRIDOR 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

151 CORRIDOR 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

152A CORRIDOR 3' - 0" 7' - 0" NL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

152B PT 6' - 0" 7' - 0" FG1 ALUMINUM 1 ALUMINUM

153 PT 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

157 CORRIDOR 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

158 RECEPTION 3' - 0" 7' - 0" NL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

159 CORRIDOR 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

160 CORRIDOR 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

161 CORRIDOR 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

162 CORRIDOR 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

162 STORAGE 7' - 0" 7' - 0" FL HOLLOW METAL 1 HOLLOW METAL

163 TOILET 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

164 CORR. 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

170 NURSE STATION 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

171 CORRIDOR 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

172 RECEPTION 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

172 CORR. 3' - 6" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

173 RECEPTION 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL

175 NURSE 3' - 0" 7' - 0" NL HOLLOW METAL 1 HOLLOW METAL

EL-10 ELEV. 4' - 0" 7' - 0"

EL-11 ELEV. 4' - 0" 7' - 0"

ST-10 STAIR 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL 60 MIN

ST-11A CORRIDOR 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL 60 MIN

ST-11B STAIR 1 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL HOLLOW METAL 1 HOLLOW METAL

ST-20 STAIR 2 3' - 0" 7' - 0" FL WOOD 1 HOLLOW METAL 60 MIN

ST-21B STAIR 2 3' - 0" 7' - 0" NL HOLLOW METAL 1 HOLLOW METAL

GLAZING SCHEDULE
MARK MATERIAL THICKNESS COMMENTS

INSULATED

IG-1 INSULATED GLAZING
UNIT

1" VIRACON #: VE1-2M (CLEAR)

IG-2 INSULATED GLAZING
UNIT, TEMPERED

1" VIRACON #: VE1-2M (CLEAR)

S-1 SPANDRAL GLASS 1"

NON-INSULATED

G-1 GLAZING UNIT 1/4"

G-2 GLAZING UNIT,
TEMPERED

1/4"

OTHER

FPG-1 FIRE PROTECTION
RATED GLAZING UNIT

5/16"

FRG-1 FIRE RESISTANCE
RATED GLAZING UNIT

3/8" = 1'-0"2
EW 1

3/8" = 1'-0"3
EW 2

3/8" = 1'-0"4
EW 3

3/8" = 1'-0"5
EW 4

3/8" = 1'-0"6
EW 5

3/8" = 1'-0"7
IW 1

3/8" = 1'-0"9
IW 2

3/8" = 1'-0"10
IW 3

3/8" = 1'-0"1
IW 4

3/8" = 1'-0"11
EW 6

3/8" = 1'-0"12
EW 7



XRAY

CORR

XRAY

CONTROL

LEAD-LINED 
GYP. BD.

LEAD-LINED 
GYP. BD.

LEAD-LINED 
H.M. FRAME

LEAD-LINED 
H.M. FRAME

LEAD-LINED SOLID-
CORE WOOD DOOR

LEAD-GLASS 
WINDOW

AA

SHIM AND 
CONTINUOUS SEALANT 
AND BACKER ROD, ALL 
AROUND, BOTH SIDES

ALUMINUM 
STOREFRONT SYSTEM

1" CHAMFER AT CORNER, 
BOTH SIDES

VAPOR BARRIER

FLASHING TAPE

METAL PANEL, REFER TO 
ELEVATIONS

PREFINISHED METAL 
FLASHING

SHIM AND CONTINUOUS 
SEALANT AND BACKER ROD 
ALL AROUND, BOTH SIDES

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT 
SYSTEM

SEALANT

RETURN GYPSUM 
BOARD TO FRAME

LOWER ROOF BEARING
116' - 8"

1313

1313

1
 1

/2
"

7
 5

/8
"

CAST STONE 
VENEER

SPRAY APPLIED 
AIR BARRIER

LAP AIR BARRIER UP 
AND OVER TOP OF 
WOOD BLOCKING

BACKER ROD AND 
SEALANT ALL AROUND, 
EACH SIDE

ALUMINUM FRAMED 
STOREFRONT SYSTEM

3"

1 1/2" AT CROSS BRACING

CONTINUOUS 
SEALANT

SOLID SURFACE 
WINDOW SILL, REFER 

TO INTERIORS

(2) LAYERS  3/4" FIRE 
RATED PLYWOOD

FIRE RETARDANT 
WOOD BLOCKING

PRECAST SILL

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A4-21

DOOR AND WINDOW

DETAILS

Author

06/13/24

Checker

400 31067 A4-21

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

3" = 1'-0"1
LEAD-LINED DOR AND WINDOW FRAMES

1 1/2" = 1'-0"2
WINDOW HEAD AT BRICK

1 1/2" = 1'-0"3
WINDOW HEAD AT CIP CONCRETE

1 1/2" = 1'-0"4
WINDOW HEAD AT METAL PANEL

1 1/2" = 1'-0"5
WINDOW HEAD/SILL AT CANOPY

1 1/2" = 1'-0"6
WINDOW HEAD/SILL AT STONE TILE

1 1/2" = 1'-0"7
WINDOW SILL AT CAST STONE



SHEET NOTES
A. ALL INTERIOR PARTITION WALLS SHALL BE WALL TYPE A3, 

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
B. REFER TO SHEET A1-49 'FINISH SCHEDULES' FOR 

MARKER/TACK BOARD SPECIFICATIONS.

173

TOILET

173

8' - 1 63/64"

A6

A3

A3
SD

GB1

MR1

SN1
TP

GB3

GB2

WR3

A6-119

12

11

10

172

TOILET

8
' 
- 

5
 7

/1
6

"

8' - 3 3/16"

172

A3

A6

A3

X1

WR3

GB2
GB3

TP

SN1

SD

MR1

A6-11

13

14

15

16

163

TOILET

8
' 
- 

0
 1

3
/1

6
"

7' - 11 3/16"

A3

A3

A6

A6
A6-1117

18

19

20

A6-12 25

MR1

SD

GB1

SN1
TP

GB3

GB2

WR3

163

146

TOILET

149

TOILET

146

149

R1A6
B3

A3

A3

A3

A3

WR3

GB2
GB3

TP
SN1

GB1

SD
MR1

SD
GB1

MR1

SN1
TP

GB3
GB2

WR3

8
' 
- 

4
 3

/1
6

"
8

' 
- 

2
"

8' - 0"

A6-12

1

2

3

4

A6-12

5

6

7

8

138

TOILET

138

SD
MR1

GB1

SN1
TP

GB3
GB2

WR3

7' - 10 13/16"

5
' 
- 

6
"

1
' 
- 

6
"

A3

A6

A3

A3

A6-12

9

10

11

12

115

TOILET

115

7' - 3 7/16"

9
' 
- 

1
0

"

X1

X1

A3

A3

A3

SD
MR1

GB1

GB2
GB3

TP SN1

WR3

A6-1213

14

15

16

A6-11

7

101

RECEPTION

A6-11

8

6 4

53' - 0 1/8" 13' - 2" 3' - 0 33/256"

4
' 
- 

4
 3

/1
6

"

24' - 2 1/256"

2' - 8 7/8" 2' - 8 7/8"

2
' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

1
 1

/4
"

4
' - 6

 1
/2

5
6

" 4
' 
- 

6
 1

/2
5

6
"

+
/- 6

" +
/-

 6
"

TYP.

2' - 0"

11.64°

8' - 2 7/8" 7' - 8 63/256" 8' - 2 113/128"

1' - 6"

2
' 
- 

7
"

8' - 8 1/2" 6' - 9 1/4" 8' - 8 1/2"

MATERIAL 
TRANSITION JOINT

GRANITE TRANSACTION 
TOP SS2

GRANITE TOP SS2

LAMINATE PL5 TOP

LAMINATE PL5 TOP

GRANITE TOP SS2

GRANITE TRANSACTION 
TOP SS2

MATERIAL 
TRANSACTION TOP 
SS2

GRANITE TOP SS2

WOOD PANELS WITH VERTICAL 
GRAIN OVER 5/8" PLYWOOD ON 

3 5/8" METAL STUD FRAMING

154

NURSE

STATION

A6-11

1

2

A6-11

3

A6-21

15

3
' -

 1
1

 2
5

5
/2

5
6

"

3
' -

 3
 4

7
/1

2
8

"

1' - 6"

1
3
5
.0

0
°

135.00°

A6-12

17

127

CONTROL

18

IW
 4

IW
 4

5
' -

 0
 4

7
/1

2
8

"

2' - 2 23/128"3' - 0 27/64"

A6*

A6*

A3*

A3*

A3*

153

PT TOILET

153

7' - 8"

8
' 
- 

1
"

A3

A3

A3

A6

GB2
GB3

TP

SN1

GB1

MR1

SD

WR3

A6-13

9

10

11

12

003

TOILET

A3

A3

A3

A3

003

MR1
GB1

SN1
TP

GB3

GB2

1
' 
- 

1
 1

3
/1

6
"

7
' 
- 

1
0

"

8' - 0"

WR3

A6-13

13

14

15

16

MM

EW 1

E
W

 2

IW 2

IW
 3

3

A3-21
________________________________________________

IW
 2

100

VESTIBULE

101

RECEPTION

X3

X3

X3

A3

A3

A3

X1

2
' 
- 

3
"

1' - 9"

3
"

9"

135.00°

1
3
5
.0

0
°

1212

1
4

' 
- 

7
"

1414

99

2
5

' 
- 

8
"

OO

2' - 8"

1' - 4" 1' - 4"

2
' 
- 

8
"

1
' 
- 

4
"

1
' 
- 

4
"

X4

X4

X4

X4

KK

2' - 8"

1' - 4" 1' - 4"

2
' 
- 

8
"

1
' 
- 

4
"

1
' 
- 

4
"

X4

X4

X4

X4

25' - 2"

NN LL

1313

1010

1
' 
- 

2
"

1
2

' 
- 

3
"

1
' 
- 

2
"

14' - 7"

1' - 2" 12' - 3" 1' - 2"

X3

2' - 8"
1' - 4" 1' - 4"

X4

X4

X4

X4

1
' 
- 

4
"

1
' 
- 

4
"

2
' 
- 

8
"

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A5-11

ENLARGED FLOOR PLANS

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A5-11

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

KEYNOTE LEGEND

RESTROOM ACCESSORY SCHEDULE

MARK DESCRIPTION COMMENTS
PROVIDED

BY
INSTALLED

BY

GB1 HORIZONTAL GRAB BAR

GB2 HORIZONTAL GRAB BAR

GB3 VERTICAL GRAB BAR

MR1 MIRROR

PT1 PAPER TOWEL DISPENSER - SHEET

SD SOAP DISPENSER

SN1 SANITARY NAPKIN DISPOSAL - SURFACE MOUNTED

TP TOILET TISSUE DISPENSER - DOUBLE

WR3 PAPER TOWEL / WASTE - SURFACE MOUNTED

1/4" = 1'-0"1
TOILET ROOM 173

1/4" = 1'-0"2
TOILET ROOM 172

1/4" = 1'-0"3
TOILET ROOM 163

1/4" = 1'-0"4
TOILET ROOM 146, 149

1/4" = 1'-0"5
TOILET ROOM 138

1/4" = 1'-0"6
TOILET ROOM 115

1/4" = 1'-0"7
RECEPTION 101

1/4" = 1'-0"8
NURSE STATION 154

1/4" = 1'-0"9
CONTROL 127

1/4" = 1'-0"10
PT TOILET 153

1/4" = 1'-0"11
TOILET 003

1/4" = 1'-0"12
VESTIBULE 100



EQ EQ EQ EQ

2
' 
- 

6
"

3
' 
- 

8
"

A3 A3

16

A6-21
________________________________________________

18
30

24
230

18
30

24
230

18
30

24
230

18
30

24
230

18
30

24
230

BLANKET 
WARMER

26' - 11 1/2"

3
' 
- 

0
"

36
36

24
222

36
36

24
222

36
36

24
222

36
36

24
222

36
36

24
222

36
36

24
222

36
36

24
222

36
36

24
222

36
36

24
222

32' - 6"

3
' 
- 

8
"

16

A6-21
________________________________________________

2
' 
- 

6
"

3
' 
- 

6
"

GRANITE TOP

24
36

24
254

36
36

24
222

36
36

24
222

36
36

24
222

24
36

24
254

13' - 0"

2
' 
- 

1
0

 1
/2

"
1

 1
/2

"
4

' 
- 

1
"

1
"

1
' 
- 

1
"

WOOD BASE - STAIN WOOD PANELS WITH VERTICAL 
GRAIN - STAIN

BLACK REVEAL

NOTE: ALL CABINETS TO RECEIVE VERTICAL GRAIN

14

A6-21
________________________________________________

2
' 
- 

6
"

3
' 
- 

6
"

GRANITE TOP

3
' 
- 

6
"

2
' 
- 

6
"

WOOD PANEL 
WITH VERTICAL 

GRAIN STAIN (TYP)

1" BLACK REVEAL (TYP) WOOD PANEL WITH 
HORIZONTAL GRAIN 
STAIN (TYP)

1" BLACK REVEAL 
EACH SIDE (TYP)

FROSTED GLASS GRANITE COUNTER

6" WOOD BASE STAIN
GRANITE COUNTER

ACCESSIBLE 
COUNTER

CHECK-IN INFORMATION CHECK-IN

11

A6-21
________________________________________________

CWT5 (TYP)

13

A6-21
________________________________________________

18
30

24
230

18
30

18
211

18
30

24
230

18
30

18
211

18
30

24
230

18
30

18
211

2
' 
- 

6
"

3
' 
- 

6
"

13

A6-21
________________________________________________

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A6-11

INTERIOR ELEVATIONS

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A6-11

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

KEYNOTE LEGEND

3/8" = 1'-0"1
NURSE STATION - NORTH INTERIOR

3/8" = 1'-0"2
NURSE STATION - SOUTH INTERIOR

3/8" = 1'-0"3
NURSE STATION - SOUTH EXTERIOR

3/8" = 1'-0"4
RECEPTION - EAST INTERIOR

3/8" = 1'-0"5
RECEPTION - SOUTH INTERIOR

3/8" = 1'-0"6
RECEPTION - WEST INTERIOR

3/8" = 1'-0"7
RECEPTION - SOUTH EXTERIOR

3/8" = 1'-0"8
RECEPTION - NORTH INTERIOR

3/8" = 1'-0"9
TOILET 173 - WEST

3/8" = 1'-0"10
TOILET 173 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"11
TOILET 173 - EAST

3/8" = 1'-0"12
TOILET 173 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"13
TOILET 172 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"14
TOILET 172 - WEST

3/8" = 1'-0"15
TOILET 172 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"16
TOILET 172 - EAST

3/8" = 1'-0"17
TOILET 163 - WEST

3/8" = 1'-0"18
TOILET 163 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"19
TOILET 163 - EAST

3/8" = 1'-0"20
TOILET 163 - SOUTH



P. LAM COUNTER TOP

VINYL BASE

P. LAM COUNTER TOP

VINYL BASE

36
36

24
152

36
36

24
222

36
36

24
222

18
36

24
211

311
18

24
1436

24
14

302
36

24
14

302
36

24
14

302
24

24
14

302

13' - 3 185/256" +/-

EQEQ

3
' 
- 

0
"

2
' 
- 

6
"

P-LAM COUNTER
P-LAM COUNTER

P-LAM BRACE

12

A6-21
________________________________________________

3
' 
- 

0
"

2
' 
- 

0
" P-LAM COUNTER

PENCIL DRAWER

24
24

14
302

24
24

14
302

24
24

14
302

18
34

18
211

27
34

18
152

REF.

24
34

24
222

24
34

24
152

15
34

18
211

2
' 
- 

2
"

24
24

14
302 311

15
24

14

ICE MACHINE 
BY OWNER

FILLER FILLER

FILLER

12

A6-21
________________________________________________

11' - 11 1/8" +/-

EQEQ

3
' 
- 

0
"

2
' 
- 

6
"

P. LAM COUNTER

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A6-12

INTERIOR ELEVATIONS

Author

05/10/24

Checker

400 31067 A6-12

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

3/8" = 1'-0"1
TOILET 146 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"2
TOILET 146 - WEST

3/8" = 1'-0"3
TOILET 146 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"4
TOILET 146 - EAST

3/8" = 1'-0"5
TOILET 149 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"6
TOILET 149 - EAST

3/8" = 1'-0"7
TOILET 149 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"8
TOILET 149 - WEST

3/8" = 1'-0"9
TOILET 138 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"10
TOILET 138 - WEST

3/8" = 1'-0"11
TOILET 138 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"12
TOILET 138 - EAST

3/8" = 1'-0"13
TOILET 115 - WEST

3/8" = 1'-0"14
TOILET 115 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"15
TOILET 115 - EAST

3/8" = 1'-0"16
TOILET 115 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"17
CONTROL 127 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"18
CONTROL 127 - EAST

3/8" = 1'-0"22
BREAK ROOM 151 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"23
DICTATION 162 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"24
DICTATION 162 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"25
BLOOD DRAW 164 - EAST

3/8" = 1'-0"26
FOOD 165 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"28
DICTATION 171 - NORTH



36
24

14
302

36
24

14
302

36
24

14
302

36
24

14
302

36
24

14
302

36
34

24
222

36
34

24
222

36
34

24
222

36
34

24
222

36
34

24
222

REF.

OPEN

36
24

14
302

36
24

14
302

36
34

24
222

36
34

24
152

24
36

24
152

18
36

24
254

36
24

14
302

1" 2' - 11"

SD

PT1

2
' 
- 

6
"

311
18

24
14 36

24
14

302

18
36

24
254

36
36

24
152412

36
84

24

PT1SD

24
34

24
222

36
34

24
222

36
34

24
222

36
34

24
152

36
34

24
222

24
34

24
222

24
24

14
302

36
24

14
302

36
24

14
302

36
24

14
302

36
24

14
302

24
24

14
302

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A6-13

INTERIOR ELEVATIONS

Author

05/10/24

Checker

400 31067 A6-13

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

3/8" = 1'-0"1
MED ROOM 170 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"2
MED ROOM 170 - WEST

3/8" = 1'-0"3
MED ROOM 170 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"4
TYPICAL EXAM CASEWORK

3/8" = 1'-0"5
CAST 105 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"6
STORAGE 114 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"7
NURSE 119 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"8
STORAGE 137 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"9
PT TOILET 157 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"10
PT TOILET 157 - WEST

3/8" = 1'-0"11
PT TOILET 157 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"12
PT TOILET 157 - EAST

3/8" = 1'-0"13
TOILET 003 - SOUTH

3/8" = 1'-0"14
TOILET 003 - WEST

3/8" = 1'-0"15
TOILET 003 - NORTH

3/8" = 1'-0"16
TOILET 003 - EAST

3/8" = 1'-0"17
PT 152 - SOUTH



1" FROSTED GLASS

1X1 WOOD STOP

2" WOOD CAP

WOOD BLOCKING

METAL STUD FRAMING

5/8" GYPSUM 
BOARD EACH SIDE

WOOD PANEL

1
1

 1
/2

"

1' - 6" P-LAM COUNTER TOP

1" P-LAM ON HIGH 
DENSITY FIBER BOARD

4" X 3/4" P-LAM WALL 
MOUNTING BRACKET 
W/ HIDDEN FASTENERS

55

FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

1' - 4"
1"

1"1
' 
- 

0
"

1
' 
- 

6
"

4' - 4"

3
' 
- 

6
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

6"

2' - 1"

2
' 
- 

6
"

WOOD BASE - STAIN

WOOD PANEL WITH 
VERTICAL GRAIN - STAIN

PL5 LAMINATE 
WORKSURFACE

2X WOOD CAP - STAIN 1

1X1 WOOD STOP - STAIN

FROSTED GLASS

BLACK REVEAL

GRANITE COUNTER

WALL FABRIC

WOOD BASE - STAIN

WOOD PANEL WITH 
HORIZONTAL GRAIN -

STAIN

CWT5

VINYL BASE

NOTE: SEE 
ELEVATIONS FOR 
HORIZONTAL BLACK 
REVEAL SIZES.

1"
WOOD PANEL

REVEAL - PAINT 
BLACK

WALL ASSEMBLY

66

3
"

5
"

6
"

2
' 
- 

1
"

1
"

1
' 
- 

1
1

"
1

' 
- 

2
"

R
 0' - 3" TY

P
.

PARTITION BELOW

UPPER P. LAM COUNTER

LOWER P. LAM OCUNTER 
AND BASE CABINET

FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

11 1/2"

1
' 
- 

2
"

2
' 
- 

6
"

3
' 
- 

8
"

2' - 2"

BASE CABINET

2' - 0"

VINYL BASE - REFER TO INTERIORS

5/8" GYPSUM BOARD ON 
METAL STUDS

PARTITION BEYOND

COUNTER TOP WITH 3/4" PARTICLE 
BOARD. WITH P. LAM FINISH SURFACE

P. LAM FINISH SURFACE

WOOD BLOCKING

TRANSACTION TOP 3/4" PARTICLE 
BOARD WITH P. LAM FINISH SURFACE

TACK BOARD

RIGID VINYL WALL PROTECTION 
ENDS  AT CORNER

5
' 
- 

6
"

4' - 0"

(5) P-LAM 
SHELVES 1" 
THICK

ADJUSTABLE 
PEGS

4/3" P-LAM 
FRAME

3/4" P-LAM 
BOTTOM SHELF

P-LAM 
TOE KICK

FRONT ELEVATION

2' - 0"

SECTION

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A6-21

INTERIOR DETAILS

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A6-21

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1 1/2" = 1'-0"11
RECEPTION WALL CAP

1 1/2" = 1'-0"12
KNEE BRACE DETAIL

3/4" = 1'-0"13
RECEPTION COUNTER SECTION

1 1/2" = 1'-0"14
TYPICAL VERTICAL BLACK REVEAL

1 1/2" = 1'-0"15
NURSE COUNTER CORNER/END RETURN

1 1/2" = 1'-0"16
NURSE COUNTER SECTION

1/2" = 1'-0"17
SCAN ROOM 112 MRI COIL CABINET



DN

UP

2

A7-11
________________________________________________

ST-11

STAIR 1

X5

X5

B3

M8

FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

TOP OF FOOTING
85' - 4"

BASEMENT
86' - 0"

(1
2

) 
R

IS
E

R
S

 @
 7

" 
=

 7
'-
0

"

3344

LOWER ROOF BEARING
116' - 8"

2

A7-11
________________________________________________

B3

B3

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A7-11

ENLARGED VERTICAL

CIRCULATION - STAIR A

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A7-11

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1/4" = 1'-0"1
FIRST FLOOR - STAIR A

1/2" = 1'-0"2
SECTION THRU STAIR A

1/4" = 1'-0"3
BASEMENT - STAIR A



DN

ST-21

STAIR 2

2

A7-12
________________________________________________

X5

X2

X2

X2
M8 B1*

M8

B1*

A6

L
A

N
D

IN
G

4
' 
- 

0
"

(1
1

) 
T

R
E

A
D

S
 @

 1
1

" 
=

 1
0

'-
1

"
8

' 
- 

4
 1

/4
"

11' - 2 105/256"

M
F

R

P
E

R
P

E
R

 M
F

R

M
F

R

P
E

R

11 3/8"

CLEAR

3'-8" MIN.

FIRST FLOOR
100' - 0"

TOP OF FOOTING
85' - 4"

BASEMENT
86' - 0"

UPPER PARAPET
120' - 8"

3
' 
- 

6
"

2
' -

 8
 7

5
/1

2
8

"
3

' 
- 

0
"

5' - 8 3/4"

(1
2

) 
R

IS
E

R
S

 @
 7

" 
=

 7
'-
0

"

1
4

' 
- 

0
"

UPPER ROOF BEARING
118' - 0"

5577

LOWER ROOF BEARING
116' - 8"

66

2

A7-12
________________________________________________

ST-20

STAIR 2

B3B3

CLEAR

4' - 0"

7
' 
- 

4
"

M
F

G

P
E

R
P

E
R

 M
F

G

M
F

G

P
E

R

9' - 6 1/2"

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

4
3
6

1
 T

o
u
c
h

s
to

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

O
n
e

id
a
 W

I 
5
4

1
5
5

(9
2
0

)-
6
0
9
-4

6
6
3

COPYRIGHT 2019 L.A.D. LLCC

to
m

@
le

m
k
u
ila

rc
h
d
e
s
ig

n
s
.c

o
m

A7-12

ENLARGED VERTICAL

CIRCULATION - STAIR B

Author

MM/DD/YY

Checker

400 31067 A7-12

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

O
S

M
S

 C
L
IN

IC
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

O
S

H
K

O
S

H
, 
W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
ta
tu
s
:

1/4" = 1'-0"1
FIRST FLOOR - STAIR B

1/2" = 1'-0"2
SECTION THRU STAIR B

1/4" = 1'-0"3
BASEMENT - STAIR B



CONTROL JOINT PLACEMENT 
GUIDELINES

1. SPACE JOINTS (IN FEET) NO MORE THAN 2-3 TIMES THE 
SLAB THICKNESS (IN INCHES).  FOR EXAMPLE, A 4" SLAB 
SHOULD HAVE JOINTS 8' TO 12' APART.

2. CUT JOINTS 25% OF THE DEPTH OF SLAB, MIN.
3. CUT JOINTS USING GROOVING TOOLS IN FRESH CONCRETE 

OR SAW CUTTING JOINTS AS SOON AS THE CONCRETE IS 
HARD ENOUGH THAT THE EDGES ABUTTING THE CUT 
DON'T CHIP FROM THE SAW BLADE.

4. IN HOT WEATHER, CONCRETE MIGHT CRACK IF JOINTS ARE 
NOT CUT WITHIN 6-12 HOURS AFTER FINISHING CONCRETE.  
PLAN ALTERNATE JOINT CUTTING EQUIPMENT 
ACCORDINGLY.

5. WHERE POSSIBLE, PLACE JOINTS UNDER PROPOSED NON-
LOAD-BEARING WALL LOCATIONS OR UNDER CARPET 
AREAS.

6. MINIMIZE RE-ENTRANT CORNERS AND AVOID WHERE 
POSSIBLE.

RE-ENTRANT 
CORNERS

EXAMPLE CONTROL JOINT PLAN

CONTROL 
JOINTS

EXAMPLE PILASTER JOINT PLAN

JOINT AT 
BOXOUT

FOUNDATION WALL CORNER FOUNDATION

EXAMPLE MULTIPLE DOCK LEVELER JOINT PLAN

DOCK 

LEVELER

SAWCUTS

SEPARATE 

PLACEMENT

SEPARATE 

PLACEMENT

DOWELED 
CONSTRUCTION 
JOINTS

LINTEL SCHEDULE
TYPE CONFIGURATION REMARKS

L1 a. 8" WIDE x 1'-4" 
DEEP BOND BEAM 
W/ (2) #5 CONT.

• GROUT FULL (1) COURSE 
ABOVE BOND BEAM.  
EXTEND REINFORCING 8" 
BEYOND SPAN

• TYPICAL AT OPENINGS IN 8" 
CMU WALLS LESS THAN 
4'-0" IN WIDTH, UNLESS 
NOTED OTHERWISE.

• GROUT FULL (2) COURSES 
ABOVE BOND BEAM.  
EXTEND REINFORCING 8" 
BEYOND SPAN

• TYPICAL AT OPENINGS IN 8" 
CMU WALLS LESS THAN 
8'-0" IN WIDTH BUT 
GREATER THAN 4'-0" 
WIDTH, UNLESS NOTED 
OTHERWISE.

a. 8" WIDE x 2'-0" 
DEEP BOND BEAM 
W/ (2) #5 CONT.

• GROUT FULL (2) COURSES 
ABOVE BOND BEAM.  
EXTEND REINFORCING 8" 
BEYOND SPAN

• TYPICAL AT OPENINGS IN 
8" CMU WALLS WITH BRICK 
FACADE LESS THAN 4'-0" 
WIDTH. 

b

a

a. W8x24
b. PL1/4"x0'-7 5/8"
c. #5 x 2'-0" A706 DOWEL 

BARS TO MATCH 
SPACING OF WALL 
VERTICAL 
REINFORCING

• END BEARING CONDITIONS 
ARE NOT STANDARD, SEE 
TYPICAL STEEL BEAM TO 
BEAM CONNECTION AND 
BEAM SLIP CONNECTION 
DETAILS

c

a

b 1/4 3-12

1/4

VE
R
IF

Y
 IN

FO
 A

N
D
/O

R
 U

SE
.

R
E
M

O
VE

 N
O
TE W

H
E
N
 V

ER
IF

IE
D

MATERIAL

a

L2

L3

L5

1/4

NOTES:

1. MINIMUM BEARING FOR ALL LINTELS SHALL BE 8" EACH END UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
2. CMU WALLS SHALL BE GROUTED SOLID THREE COURSES BELOW LINTEL BEARING POINT AS MINIMUM.
3. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL & MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR SIZE AND LOCATION OF WALL OPENINGS.
4. GALVANIZE ALL STEEL LINTELS AT EXTERIOR WALLS.
5. FOR MASONRY LINTELS GROUT ALL CORES SOLID, CONTINUE VERTICAL WALL REINFORCEMENTS (AND 

SPACING) AT ALL LINTELS.
6. SOLID MASONRY " BOND BEAM" LINTELS AND ITS GROUTED COURSES SHALL NOT BE PENETRATED 

UNLESS APPROVED BY ENGINEER. 
7. BRICK SHALL NOT OVERHANG THE EDGE OF LINTELS GREATER THAN 1/3 THE WIDTH OF BRICK (1 3/16" 

FOR STANDARD 3 5/8" WIDTH BRICK.)
8. FOR LINTELS REQUIRED AT OPENINGS DIFFERENT THAN ABOVE, CONTACT STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.
9. FOR ALL LINTELS IN EXISTING WALLS, REMOVE EXISTING CMU/BRICK AS REQUIRED FOR LINTEL 

INSTALLATION. SHORE EXISTING CMU/BRICK PATCH CMU/BRICK AS REQUIRED.

a

a. 8" BOND BEAM WITH (2) 
#5 CONT. AT OPENING 
LOCATIONS

b. L6x4x5/16 LOOSE 
LINTEL GALVANIZED

a b

a. 6" STUD WALL W/ BOX 
HEADERS AT 
OPENING LOCATIONS

b. L6x4x5/16 LOOSE 
LINTEL GALVANIZED

• TYPICAL AT OPENINGS IN 
LIGHT GAUGE WALLS WITH 
BRICK FACADE LESS THAN 
8' - 0" WIDTH.

a b

a. 6" STUD WALL W/ BOX 
HEADERS AT OPENING 
LOCATIONS

b. L6x4x5/16 LLV LOOSE 
LINTEL GALVANIZED

• TYPICAL AT OPENINGS IN 
LIGHT GAUGE WALLS WITH 
BRICK FACADE LESS THAN 
8' - 0" WIDTH. EXTEND 
ANGLE 8" BEYOND SPAN

a. 6" STUD WALL W/ BOX 
HEADERS AT OPENING 
LOCATIONS

a

L10

L11

L12

1
' 
- 

4
"

3
" 

M
A

X
.

2
' 
- 

0
"

3
" 

M
A

X
.

Sd

Ld

Sd MINOR

SNOW DRIFT LEGEND

CAP  PLATE LEGEND

CP1
• 1/2" STEEL CAP PLATE WITH (4) 3/4" 

DIA A325 BOLTS WITH NUT

CP2
• 3/4" STEEL CAP PLATE WITH (4) 3/4" 

DIA A325 BOLTS WITH NUT

1' - 2"

8
"

1 1/2"

E
Q

E
Q

EQ EQ

1
 1

/2
"

1' - 2"

8
"

3"

EQ EQ

E
Q

E
Q

1' - 2"

1 1/2"

8
"

EQ EQ

E
Q

E
Q

CP3
• 3/4" STEEL CAP PLATE WITH (4) 3/4" 

DIA A325 BOLTS WITH NUT

CP4
• 1/2" STEEL CAP PLATE

1/2" TYPICAL

CL

C L

CL

C L

CL

C L

CL

C L

1
 1

/2
"

1
 1

/2
"

1/4 3 1/2"
4 SIDES

1/4 3 1/2"
4 SIDES

1/4 3 1/2"
4 SIDES

1/4 3 1/2"
4 SIDES

VE
R
IF

Y
 D

E
TA

IL
 IN

FO
 A

N
D
/O

R
 U

S
E W

IT
H

S
TR

U
C
TU

R
A
L 

E
N
G
IN

E
ER

 O
R
 P

R
O
JE

C
T M

A
N
A
G
E
R
.

R
E
M

O
V
E N

O
TE

 F
R
O
M

 T
H
IS

 D
E
TA

IL
 W

H
E
N
 V

ER
IF

IE
D

BASE  PLATE LEGEND
1' - 2"

1
' 
- 

2
"

1 1/2"
BP1
• 3/4" STEEL BASE PLATE  
• (4) 3/4" DIA ASTM F1554 ANCHOR 

BOLTS WITH NUT
• 12" EMBED
• 5" PROJECTION

• SET BASEPLATE ON 1 1/2" NON-
SHRINK GROUT

• PL1/4x2x2 PLATE WASHERS

1/4

E
Q

E
Q

EQ EQ

1' - 2"

8
"

1 1/2"

1/4

E
Q

E
Q

EQ EQ

1
 1

/2
"

1' - 2"

8
"

3"

1/4EQ EQ

E
Q

E
Q

1' - 2"

1 1/2"

8
"

1/41' - 2"

E
Q

E
Q

C L

CL

BP2
• 1" STEEL BASE PLATE  
• (4) 3/4" DIA ASTM F1554 ANCHOR 

BOLTS WITH NUT
• 12" EMBED
• 5" PROJECTION

• SET BASEPLATE ON 1 1/2" NON-
SHRINK GROUT

• PL1/4x2x2 PLATE WASHERS

BP3
• 1" STEEL BASE PLATE  
• (4) 3/4" DIA ASTM F1554 ANCHOR 

BOLTS WITH NUT
• 12" EMBED
• 5" PROJECTION

• SET BASEPLATE ON 1 1/2" NON-
SHRINK GROUT

• PL1/4x2x2 PLATE WASHERS

BP4
• 1" STEEL BASE PLATE  
• (4) 3/4" DIA ASTM F1554 ANCHOR 

BOLTS WITH NUT
• 12" EMBED
• 5" PROJECTION

• SET BASEPLATE ON 1 1/2" NON-
SHRINK GROUT

• PL1/4x2x2 PLATE WASHERS

CL

C L

CL

C L

CL

C L

1
 1

/2
"

1
 1

/2
"

1
 1

/2
"

VE
R
IF

Y
 D

E
TA

IL
 IN

FO
 A

N
D
/O

R
 U

S
E W

IT
H

S
TR

U
C
TU

R
A
L 

E
N
G
IN

E
ER

 O
R
 P

R
O
JE

C
T M

A
N
A
G
E
R
.

R
E
M

O
V
E N

O
TE

 F
R
O
M

 T
H
IS

 D
E
TA

IL
 W

H
E
N
 V

ER
IF

IE
D

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

IO
N

ANCHOR BOLT
(ASTM F1554 GR36)

HEADED ANCHOR BOLT

E
M

B
E

D
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

IO
N

T.O. FOUNDATION,
REFER TO PLANS

ANCHOR ROD
(ASTM F1554 GR36)

ANCHOR ROD W/ PLATE WASHER

M
IN

1
 1

2
7

/1
2

8
"

HEAVY HEX
NUT & PLATE WASHER, 
TYPICAL OF (2)

HEAVY HEX
NUT & PLATE WASHER, 
TYPICAL OF (2)

T.O. FOUNDATION,
REFER TO PLANS

(2) HEAVY HEX NUTS W/ 
4"X4"X3/8" PLATE WASHER

VE
R
IF

Y
 D

E
TA

IL
 IN

FO
 A

N
D
/O

R
 U

S
E W

IT
H

S
TR

U
C
TU

R
A
L 

E
N
G
IN

E
ER

 O
R
 P

R
O
JE

C
T M

A
N
A
G
E
R
.

R
E
M

O
V
E N

O
TE

 F
R
O
M

 T
H
IS

 D
E
TA

IL
 W

H
E
N
 V

ER
IF

IE
D

E
M

B
E

D

0
1
/2

"
1
"

2
"

1
/4

"

PROJECT NO.

FILE NAME

DRAWN BY

DESIGNED BY

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE

CLIENT PROJECT NO.

TITLE

SHEET

PROJECT

REVIEWED BY

THIS DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF I & S GROUP, 
INC. AND MAY NOT BE USED, COPIED OR DUPLICATED 
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

6/19/2024 3:41:00 PM

S1-05

STRUCTURAL

SCHEDULES

31067 Arch R24

Author

Designer

MM/DD/YY

Checker

OSHKOSH WISCONSIN

500 31067 S1-05

24-31067

NEW BUILDING

OSMS CLINIC

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

S1-05 STRUCTURAL SCHEDULES

FOUNDATION WALL SCHEDULE
MARK WIDTH REINFORCEMENT COMMENTS

FDN1 1' - 2"

FDN2 1' - 0"

FDN3 1' - 4"

FDN4 0' - 8"

FOOTING SCHEDULE
MARK LENGTH WIDTH THICKNESS REINFORCEMENT COMMENTS

VARIES VARIES 1' - 0"

WF1 3' - 0" 1' - 0"

WF2 2' - 0" 1' - 0"

COLUMN SCHEDULE
MARK TYPE DESCRIPTION

C1 HSS5x5x3/8

SNOW DRIFT SCHEDULE

MARK
DRIFT LOAD

Sd (PSF)

DRIFT LOAD
Sd (PSF) -

MINOR Ld (FT)
BALANCED

SNOW LOAD

SLAB SCHEDULE
MARK THICKNESS REINFORCEMENT COMMENTS

SL1 4"

SL2 5"

SL3 12" SLAB BELOW MRI ROOM

SL4 4" 4" BONDED CONCRETE TOPPING OVER
8" HOLLOW CORE PRECAST PLANK.

CMU WALL SCHEDULE
MARK WIDTH REINFORCEMENT COMMENTS

M8 8"

X2 8"

X5 8"

1 1/2" = 1'-0"2
ANCHOR BOLT DETAIL

NOTES:
1. INTERSECTING SNOWDRIFT LOADS SHALL BE CONSIDERED TO 

OCCUR CONCURRENTLY, EXCEPT THAT THE TWO DRIFT LOADS 
NEED NOT BE SUPERIMPOSED AS DESCRIBED IN ASCE 7-16 
SECTION 7.7.3.

REVISION SCHEDULE

DATE DESCRIPTION BY



BB

FF

FF

JJ

JJ

MM

MM

11 11

22 22

HH

HH

AA

AA

EE

EE

1111

1111
1212

1212

CC

CC

33 33

44

55 55

77 77

22' - 2" 28' - 10" 17' - 10 1/2" 16' - 10 1/2" 28' - 9" 9' - 11" 23' - 0" 6' - 11" 10' - 4"

GG

66

1414

99

OO KK

88

DD

NN LL

1313

1010

1
' 
- 

0
"

3
0

' 
- 

2
"

2
' 
- 

6
"

1
5

' 
- 

2
"

1
9

' 
- 

6
"

5
' 
- 

2
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

8
"

8
' 
- 

1
1

"
2

' 
- 

6
"

1
0

' 
- 

9
"

3
' 
- 

6
"

2
1

' 
- 

3
"

1
3

' 
- 

4
"

2
4

' 
- 

8
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

8
"

8' - 11" 2' - 0" 11' - 3" 3' - 0" 7' - 11" 28' - 10" 34' - 9" 28' - 9" 32' - 11" 17' - 3"

C L
O

P
N

'G
C L

O
P

N
'G

CL OPN'G

1
4

' 
- 

7
"

1
2

' 
- 

8
"

1
0

' 
- 

4
"

6
4

' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

8
"

N

0
1
/2

"
1
"

2
"

1
/4

"

PROJECT NO.

FILE NAME

DRAWN BY

DESIGNED BY

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE

CLIENT PROJECT NO.

TITLE

SHEET

PROJECT

REVIEWED BY

THIS DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF I & S GROUP, 
INC. AND MAY NOT BE USED, COPIED OR DUPLICATED 
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

6/19/2024 3:41:02 PM

S1-11

FOUNDATION

PLAN

31067 Arch R24

MDS

Designer

MM/DD/YY

Checker

OSHKOSH WISCONSIN

500 31067 S1-11

24-31067

NEW BUILDING

OSMS CLINIC

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

S1-11 FOUNDATION PLAN

1/8" = 1'-0"1
FOUNDATION PLAN

REVISION SCHEDULE

DATE DESCRIPTION BY



BB

FF

FF

JJ

JJ

MM

MM

11 11

22 22

HH

HH

AA

AA

EE

EE

1111 1111

1212 1212

CC

CC

33 33

44

55 55

77 77

GG

ELEVATOR PIT DRAIN TILE -
TO SUMP LOCATION?

66

1414

99

OO KK

88

DD

NN LL

1313

1010

BASEMENT PERIMETER 
DRAIN TILE - TO SUMP 

LOCATION

0
1
/2

"
1
"

2
"

1
/4

"

PROJECT NO.

FILE NAME

DRAWN BY

DESIGNED BY

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE

CLIENT PROJECT NO.

TITLE

SHEET

PROJECT

REVIEWED BY

THIS DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF I & S GROUP, 
INC. AND MAY NOT BE USED, COPIED OR DUPLICATED 
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

6/19/2024 3:41:03 PM

S1-21

DRAIN TILE PLAN

31067 Arch R24

Author

Designer

MM/DD/YY

Checker

OSHKOSH WISCONSIN

500 31067 S1-21

24-31067

NEW BUILDING

OSMS CLINIC

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

S1-21 DRAIN TILE PLAN

1/8" = 1'-0"1
DRAIN TILE PLAN

REVISION SCHEDULE

DATE DESCRIPTION BY



BB

FF

FF

JJ

JJ

MM

MM

11 11

22 22

HH

HH

AA

AA

EE

EE

1111 1111

1212 1212

CC

CC

33 33

44

55 55

77 77

GG

SL2

TO SLAB 90' - 0"

SL2

TO SLAB 90' - 0"

UNEXCAVATED

SL1

TO SLAB 86' - 0"

UNEXCAVATED

UNEXCAVATED

UNEXCAVATED

UNEXCAVATED

UNEXCAVATED

UNEXCAVATED

SL1

SL1

TO SLAB 86' - 0"

TO SLAB 86' - 0"

SL1

TO SLAB 86' - 0"

66

1414

99

OO KK

88

DD

NN LL

1313

1010

N

0
1
/2

"
1
"

2
"

1
/4

"

PROJECT NO.

FILE NAME

DRAWN BY

DESIGNED BY

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE

CLIENT PROJECT NO.

TITLE

SHEET

PROJECT

REVIEWED BY

THIS DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF I & S GROUP, 
INC. AND MAY NOT BE USED, COPIED OR DUPLICATED 
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

6/19/2024 3:41:04 PM

S1-31

BASEMENT SLAB

PLAN

31067 Arch R24

Author

Designer

MM/DD/YY

Checker

OSHKOSH WISCONSIN

500 31067 S1-31

24-31067

NEW BUILDING

OSMS CLINIC

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

S1-31 BASEMENT SLAB PLAN

SHEET NOTES
A. REFER TO FOUNDATION DETAILS FOR TYPICAL 

CONSTRUCTION JOINT AND CONTROL JOINT DETAILS.

1/8" = 1'-0"1
BASEMENT SLAB PLAN

REVISION SCHEDULE

DATE DESCRIPTION BY



BB

FF

FF

JJ

JJ

MM

MM

11 11

22 22

HH

HH

AA

AA

EE

EE

1111 1111

1212 1212

CC

CC

33 33

44

55 55

77
77

GG

66

1414

99

OO KK

88

DD

NN LL

1313

1010

S2-11

9

S2-11

8

S2-11

10

SL2

SL1

TO SLAB 100' - 0"

SL1

TO SLAB 100' - 0"

EL-11

ELEV.

SL2

SL2

OPEN TO 
BELOW

OPEN TO 
BELOW

SL3SL1

TO SLAB 100' - 0" TO SLAB 100' - 0"

SL2

S
L

4

T
O

 S
L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"

S
L

4

T
O

 S
L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"

T
O

 S
L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"
T

O
 S

L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"

S
L

4
S

L
4

T
O

 S
L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"
T

O
 S

L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"

T
O

 S
L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"
T

O
 S

L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"

S
L

4
S

L
4

S
L

4
S

L
4

SL4

TO SLAB 100' - 0"

N

0
1
/2

"
1
"

2
"

1
/4

"

PROJECT NO.

FILE NAME

DRAWN BY

DESIGNED BY

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE

CLIENT PROJECT NO.

TITLE

SHEET

PROJECT

REVIEWED BY

THIS DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF I & S GROUP, 
INC. AND MAY NOT BE USED, COPIED OR DUPLICATED 
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

6/19/2024 3:41:06 PM

S1-32

FIRST FLOOR

SLAB PLAN

31067 Arch R24

Author

Designer

06/17/24

Checker

OSHKOSH WISCONSIN

500 31067 S1-32

24-31067

NEW BUILDING

OSMS CLINIC

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

S1-32 FIRST FLOOR SLAB PLAN

SHEET NOTES
A. REFER TO FOUNDATION DETAILS FOR TYPICAL 

CONSTRUCTION JOINT AND CONTROL JOINT DETAILS.

REVISION SCHEDULE

DATE DESCRIPTION BY

1/8" = 1'-0"1
FIRST FLOOR SLAB PLAN



UP

UP

BELOW BEAMABOVE BEAM IN PLANE OR BEYOND

CONTINUOUS

COLUMN GRAPHICS LEGEND

STRUCTURAL BEAM

BELOW BEAMABOVE BEAM IN PLANE OR BEYOND

CONTINUOUS

COLUMN GRAPHICS LEGEND

STRUCTURAL BEAMVE
R
IF

Y
 IN

FO
 A

N
D
/O

R
 U

SE
.

R
E
M

O
VE

 N
O
TE W

H
E
N
 V

ER
IF

IE
D

BB

FF

FF

JJ

JJ

MM

MM

11 11

22 22

HH

HH

AA

AA

EE

EE

1111
1111

1212 1212

CC

CC

33 33

44

55 55

77

77

GG

66

1414

99

OO KK

88

DD

NN LL

1313

1010

SL4

TO SLAB 100' - 0"

PRECAST BRG 99' - 0"

W10x45

TOS 99' - 0"

W18x50 W18x50 W18x50 W18x50 W18x50

W18x50 W18x50

REFERENCE                FOR
FIRST FLOOR SLAB INFO

1/ S1-32

REFERENCE                FOR
FIRST FLOOR SLAB INFO

1/ S1-32

S
L

4

T
O

 S
L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"

S
L

4

T
O

 S
L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"

T
O

 S
L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"
T

O
 S

L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"

S
L

4
S

L
4

T
O

 S
L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"
T

O
 S

L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"

T
O

 S
L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"
T

O
 S

L
A

B
 1

0
0

' -
 0

"

S
L

4
S

L
4

S
L

4
S

L
4

N

0
1
/2

"
1
"

2
"

1
/4

"

PROJECT NO.

FILE NAME

DRAWN BY

DESIGNED BY

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE

CLIENT PROJECT NO.

TITLE

SHEET

PROJECT

REVIEWED BY

THIS DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF I & S GROUP, 
INC. AND MAY NOT BE USED, COPIED OR DUPLICATED 
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

6/19/2024 3:41:06 PM

S3-21

FIRST FLOOR

FRAMING PLAN

31067 Arch R24

Author

Designer

MM/DD/YY

Checker

OSHKOSH WISCONSIN

500 31067 S3-21

24-31067

NEW BUILDING

OSMS CLINIC

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

S3-21 FIRST FLOOR FRAMING PLAN

1/8" = 1'-0"1
FIRST FLOOR FRAMING

REVISION SCHEDULE

DATE DESCRIPTION BY



BELOW BEAMABOVE BEAM IN PLANE OR BEYOND

CONTINUOUS

COLUMN GRAPHICS LEGEND

STRUCTURAL BEAM

BELOW BEAMABOVE BEAM IN PLANE OR BEYOND

CONTINUOUS

COLUMN GRAPHICS LEGEND

STRUCTURAL BEAMVE
R
IF

Y
 IN

FO
 A

N
D
/O

R
 U

SE
.

R
E
M

O
VE

 N
O
TE W

H
E
N
 V

ER
IF

IE
D

BB

FF

FF

JJ

JJ

MM

MM

11 11

22 22

HH

HH

AA

AA

EE

EE

1111 1111

1212 1212

CC

CC

33 33

44

55 55

77

77

22' - 2" 28' - 10" 34' - 9" 28' - 9" 32' - 11" 17' - 3"

6' - 11" 10' - 4"

1
' 
- 

0
"

3
2

' 
- 

8
"

1
5

' 
- 

2
"

1
9

' 
- 

6
"

5
' 
- 

2
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

8
"

1
5

' 
- 

2
"

2
4

' 
- 

8
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

8
"

63' - 7"

39' - 10"

66

1414

99

OO KK

88

DD

NN LL

1313

1010

N

0
1
/2

"
1
"

2
"

1
/4

"

PROJECT NO.

FILE NAME

DRAWN BY

DESIGNED BY

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE

CLIENT PROJECT NO.

TITLE

SHEET

PROJECT

REVIEWED BY

THIS DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF I & S GROUP, 
INC. AND MAY NOT BE USED, COPIED OR DUPLICATED 
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

6/19/2024 3:41:07 PM

S4-11

LOW ROOF

FRAMING PLAN

31067 Arch R24

Author

Designer

MM/DD/YY

Checker

OSHKOSH WISCONSIN

500 31067 S4-11

24-31067

NEW BUILDING

OSMS CLINIC

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  
P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

S4-11 LOW ROOF FRAMING PLAN

1/8" = 1'-0"1
LOW ROOF FRAMING PLAN

REVISION SCHEDULE

DATE DESCRIPTION BY



W W W W W

W

SS SS

SS SS SS SS SS

W

SHEETREVISIONS
REVISED BY:DATE:

VERT. SCALE:
HORIZ. SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO.

CHECKED BY:
DATE: SOUTH OAKWOOD ROAD

WATER MAIN EXTENSION
ALGOMA SANITARY DISTRICT

1

CDV

9/20/2023

JW

ALGOT23001

   CONSTRUCTION  DETAILSPROJECT OVERVIEW MAP

Feet
0 50 100

41 S OAKWOOD ST 73 S OAKWOOD RD 79 S OAKWOOD RD 87 OAKWOOD RD 95 S
OAKWOOD RD

127 S
OAKWOOD RD

151 S
OAKWOOD RD

165 S
OAKWOOD RD

OSMS FUTURE
BUILDING

CONNECT TO EXISTING
WATER MAIN

1 - HYDRANT ASSEMBLY 1 - HYDRANT ASSEMBLY
1 - 1" SERVICE 1 - 1" SERVICE

1 - 4" SERVICE 1 - HYDRANT ASSEMBLY
EXISTING STORM SEWER

EXISTING SANITARY
SEWER

6" HDPE DIRECTIONAL
DRILLED WATER MAIN

BORING PIT

PROPERTY LINE (TYP)

140 S
OAKWOOD RD

126 S
OAKWOOD RD

110 S
OAKWOOD RD

110 S
OAKWOOD RD

54 S OAKWOOD
RD

54 S OAKWOOD RD44 S OAKWOOD
RD

36 S OAKWOOD RD

181 S
OAKWOOD RD

SOUTH OAKWOOD RD
SOUTH OAKWOOD RD

W
IT

ZE
L 

AV
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\ALGOT\23003 - SOUTH OAKWOOD RD WATER MAIN EXTENSION\CAD\C3D\AERIALS.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NAME :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE :

AutoCAD SHX Text
Friday, June 1, 2018



SS

SS SS
SS

W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W

SS SS SS SS SS SS

SS

SS SS
W

W

SHEETREVISIONS
REVISED BY:DATE:

VERT. SCALE:
HORIZ. SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO.

CHECKED BY:
DATE: SOUTH OAKWOOD ROAD

WATER MAIN EXTENSION
ALGOMA SANITARY DISTRICT

2

CDV

9/20/2023

JW

ALGOT23001

   CONSTRUCTION  DETAILSPROJECT OVERVIEW MAP

0 20

1- 8" x 6" TEE
1- CONNECT TO EXISTING WATER MAIN

BORING PIT

400-FT RADIUS BEND
IN WATER MAIN

1- HYDRANT
ASSEMBLY

1- 6" GATE VALVE & BOX

41 S OAKWOOD RD 73 S OAKWOOD RD 79 S OAKWOOD RD

54 S OAKWOOD RD54 S OAKWOOD RD44 S OAKWOOD RD

36 S OAKWOOD RD

SOUTH OAKWOOD RD

SOUTH OAKWOOD RD

1 - 8" GATE VALVE & BOX
1 - 8" PIPE SLEEVE

1 - 6" GATE VALVE & BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\ALGOT\23003 - SOUTH OAKWOOD RD WATER MAIN EXTENSION\CAD\C3D\AERIALS.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NAME :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE :

AutoCAD SHX Text
Friday, June 1, 2018



W W W W

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

W

W

W

SHEETREVISIONS
REVISED BY:DATE:

VERT. SCALE:
HORIZ. SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NO.

CHECKED BY:
DATE: SOUTH OAKWOOD ROAD

WATER MAIN EXTENSION
ALGOMA SANITARY DISTRICT

3

CDV

9/20/2023

JW

ALGOT23001

   CONSTRUCTION  DETAILSPROJECT OVERVIEW MAP

Feet
0 20 40

6" HDPE DIRECTIONAL
DRILLED WATER MAIN

1- 6" GATE VALVE & BOX

1- 6" GATE VALVE & BOX

1- HYDRANT ASSEMBLY1- 4" WATER SERVICE
1- 4" CURB STOP & BOX

1- 4" CORP STOP

1- 1" WATER SERVICE
1- 1" CURB STOP & BOX
1- 1" CORP STOP

1- 1" WATER SERVICE
1- 1" CURB STOP & BOX
1- 1" CORP STOP

1- HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

400-FT RADIUS BEND
IN WATER MAIN

87 OAKWOOD DR 95 S OAKWOOD DR 127 S
OAKWOOD DR

151 S
OAKWOOD DR

165 S
OAKWOOD DR

79 OAKWOOD DR

140 S OAKWOOD DR126 S OAKWOOD DR110 S OAKWOOD DR110 S OAKWOOD DR FUTURE OSMS
DEVELOPMENT

FUTURE OSMS
DEVELOPMENT

FUTURE OSMS
DEVELOPMENT

181 S
OAKWOOD DR

SOUTH OAKWOOD RD
SOUTH OAKWOOD RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\ALGOT\23003 - SOUTH OAKWOOD RD WATER MAIN EXTENSION\CAD\C3D\AERIALS.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NAME :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE :

AutoCAD SHX Text
Friday, June 1, 2018



ALGOT23003 

Algoma Sanitary Disctrict South Oakwood Street Water Main Extension 

Preliminary Project Cost Estimate 

Item No. Description Unit Est. Quantity Avg Unit Cost 

0 1 45 00.0 1 Quality Control L.S. 1.00 $7,900.00 

0 1 5 5  25.0 1 Maintenance of traffic L.S. 1.00 $25 ,000.00 

0 1 5 7  33.0 1 Application of Water MGal 60.00 $45.00 

0 1  7 1 13.0 1 Mobilization L.S. 1.00 $22,000.00 

24 41 33.0 3 Remove C+G LF 7 5.00 $15.00 

31 25 10.0 3 Inlet Protection Each 14.00 $80.00 

32 11 26.0 1 Crushed Aggregate Base Course C.Y. 3.00 $40.00 

32 12 18.0 1 Hot Mix Asphalt Pavement Ton 4.00 $150.00 

32 16 30.0 1 30 -lnch Concrete Curb and Gutter Type D L.F . 7 5.00 $6 5.00 

32 9 2  12.0 1 Turf Establishment S.Y. 100.00 $7. 50 

33 1100.0 1 6-lnch HDPE Directional Drilling L.F. 1, 200.00 $150 .00 

33 1100.0 2 Fittings LB. 200.00 $22.00 

33 1100.0 4 6 -lnch Gate Valve and Box Each 5.00 $2, 800.00 

34 1100.0 5 Full Hydrant Assembly w/ Valve and Hyd Lead Each 3.00 $7,500.00 

34 1100.0 6 1-lnch Corporation Stops Each 2.00 $450.00 

34 1100.0 7 1-lnch Curb Stops and Boxes Each 2.00 $600.00 

34 1100.0 8 1-lnch Water Service Pipe L.F. 120.00 $31.00 

35 1100.09 4-lnch Corporation Stops Each 1.00 $700.00 

35 1100. 10 4-lnch Curb Stops and Boxes Each 1.00 $900.00 

35 1100. 11 4-lnch Water Service Pipe L.F. 50.00 $60.00 

33 1100. 13 Connect to Existing 8 Inch Water Main 
-

"" Each 1.00 $8,000 .00 

33 1100. 14 San Dist Connection Charge to Water System Each 1.00 $4,500.00 

33 3100.0 1 6-lnch Sewer Lateral Pipe L.F. 24.00 $70.00 

33 3100.0 2 6 -lnch Sewer Riser Pipe L.F. 10.00 $5 2.00 

33 3100.0 3 8 -lnch x 6-lnch Wye Lateral Connection Each 1.00 $600.00 

33 3100.0 4 Tracer Wire Access Box Each 1.00 $250.00 

33 3100.0 5 Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer Each 1.00 $2,000.00 

33 3100.0 6 San Dist Connection Charge to Sanitary Sewer System Acre 1. 8 7 $3,000.00 

SUBTOTAL 

Contingency 10 % 

Engineering 

Adminlegal 2% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Interest r $

Town Costs

Developer Costs

TOTAL $ 

Estimated Cost 

·---.--•-

-

7,900.00 

25,000.00 f\ 
2,700.00 

22,000.00 

1,125.00 

1,120.09 

120.ob

600.0Q 

4,875.00 

750.00 

180,000.00 

4,400.00 

14,000.00 

-' I 22,500.oq 

900.oq

1,200.00 

3,720.00 

700.00 

900.00. 
.I 3,000.00, 

8,000.00 

4,500.00 

1,680.00 

520.00 

600.0Q 

2so.o& 

2,000.00 

5,610.00 

320,670.00 

32,100.00, 

58,100.00 

�400.0QJ 

12,000.0Q, 

429,270.00 

) 

u 

i-

Developer 
Costs 

Divided 
between Town 
and Developer

V

Town
Costs

Exhibit 2.c.



WAIVER OF SPECIAL CHARGE / SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 

 

RE: That Developer Agreement (TID #1) between the Town of Algoma, OSMS Real Estate, LLC 

and the Algoma Sanitary District.  

AFFECTING:  

 

INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

Developer hereby attests that by the execution of this document, Developer agrees to 

waive all rights for objection for the Town of Algoma to place such fees and costs as an 

assessment against said the Real Estate, if Developer defaults on the payment of any amounts 

due as required by the Developer’s Agreement, including without limitation, any levying of 

special charges or special assessments against the benefited properties pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 

66.0627 or Wis. Stats. § 66.0701, if appropriate.  

 

 

Dated this ________ day of _______________________________, 2024. 

 

DEVELOPER: 

OSMS REAL ESTATE, LLC, 

a Wisconsin limited liability company 

      By: ____________________________________ 

      Name:  Sandy Fragale 

      Title:  

 

 

 

 



GUARANTY OF OBLIGATIONS OF DEVELOPER 

 

 The undersigned (“Guarantor”) hereby guarantees the performance of all of Developer’s 

obligations under the terms of that Developer Agreement (“Agreement”) of even date herewith 

between the Town of Algoma, Algoma Sanitary District and OSMS Real Estate, LLC, a 

Wisconsin limited liability company (“Developer”) and to which this Guaranty is attached.  The 

obligations guaranteed shall include, without limitation, the punctual payment of all sums due 

pursuant to the Agreement.  The undersigned agrees that any party may enforce the obligations 

of the Developer under the Agreement against the undersigned, without first proceeding against 

Developer or any other guarantor, and further agrees that an enforcing party may take or omit to 

take any action pursuant to the terms of the Agreement or any extension or modification thereof, 

with or without notice to the Guarantor without affecting or releasing the liability of the 

Guarantor. 

 

 The Guarantor hereby waives notice of default, demand for payment or any other formal 

prerequisite to the commencement of an action under this Guaranty.  This Guaranty shall remain 

in full force and effect for the full term of the Developer Agreement, including any extensions 

and shall be binding upon the Guarantor and its successors and assigns. 

 

 The undersigned Guarantor, because it is an affiliate and tenant of Developer, will be 

directly benefitted by the Developer Agreement.  Guarantor expressly acknowledges that said 

benefits constitute adequate and sufficient consideration for this Guaranty and agrees not to 

contest the validity of this Guaranty on the basis of the nature of the relationship between the 

parties or the consideration for this Guaranty. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Guaranty this _____ day of 

_______________, 2024. 

 

    Orthopedic & Sports Medicine Specialists of Green Bay, S.C. 

        

By: ________________________________ 

 

    Print Name:  ________________________ 

 

    Title:  ______________________________ 
 



May 15, 2024 

PROJECT PLAN 

Town of Algoma, 

Wisconsin 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 

SEHLERS 
[a PUBLIC FINANCE ADVISORS 

  

  

Prepared by: 

Ehlers 

N19W24400 Riverwood Drive, 

Suite 100 

Waukesha, WI 53188 

  

BUILDING COMMUNITIES. IT’S WHAT WE DO.

 

 

 



KEY DATES 
Organizational Joint Review Board Meeting Held: April 10, 2024 

Public Hearing Held: April 10, 2024 

Consideration by Plan Commission: April 10, 2024 

Consideration by Town Board: May 15, 2024 

Approval by the Joint Review Board: June 5, 2024 

IAN =) =O) oe OO) BS 
EXC CUTIVE SUIMIMAPY.............ccccccccccscscscssessecsrsssecsessesssesseseesascaeseeseaecatseeseascauseeseaesatsaeseascauseeseassaesenseasenees 3 

Preliminary Map of Proposed District BOUNAPY ................ccccccccsceseeeesesssscstesessescseeesssseatenees 6 

Map Showing Existing Uses and Conditions ...............ccccccccceccssecsssesesssecsrecessesessuesessesessneseees 8 

Preliminary Parcel List And AnalySiS ...............ccccccccccccsscccsscecsssescseccsssecsssevessesesseeesuecessesssnesens 10 

EqualiZed Value TeSt ..0.......cccccccccccsscscsscsssecsecsssssscsecsessescsecsesescescsesescsssaesesessssesessaeseseetsseseserseaesegs 13 

Statement Listing the Kind, Number and Location of All Proposed Public Works or 

Improvements Within the District... cc cccsccssscccseccsseecceeecsseecssuecerescsseecestesensesesstesens 14 

Map Showing Proposed Improvements and USES... ccccccccssceceseessssescsseesesnesenreseseeeens 20 

Detailed List of Estimated Project Costs .o...icccccccccsccssessesseseeccsecsressresssesssessseseseseaess 22 

Economic Feasibility Study, Description of the Methods of Financing Estimated 

Project Costs and the Time When Related Costs or Monetary Obligations are to be 

Ta kel dd -\o ee 23 

Estimate of Property to Be Devoted to Retail Business..................cccccceceeesetteteeeeneees 27 

Proposed Changes of Zoning Ordinances, Master Plan, Map, Building Codes and 

TOWN OPFCINANCES............cccccccccscsescsesscssscessecseeeeeeeeecsescsescsescsescstscsescsescseecsseceeessaessaessatseaeseneecsesenseeeeeneeens 27 

Statement of the Proposed Method for the Relocation of any Persons to be 

DYE 0) F- (o Jo ee 27 

How Creation of the Tax Incremental District Promotes the Orderly Development 

OF THE TOWD ........cccccccccssccsccsesssscsecsessesceccsessescatcsessascaecansseseaeaessaseeseneseascatcaeseaseseneseaseateaeseaseatentseneeateateenss 28 

List of Estimated Non-Project Costs... cccccccccsccssccsseccsesessscssscssscsscsuscusssuesssesssesseeseeess 28 

Legal Opinion Advising Whether the Plan is Complete and Complies with Wis. Stat. 

S$ G6.TIOS (4) CE) onc cccccccccscsscsecsecsessssessecsecsecassessassessecaecatsasenseesseseesaesaesaseeseuseeseeeaseessasensansasceesasensansaneateaees 29 

Calculation of the Share of Projected Tax Increments Estimated to be Paid by the 

Owners of Property in the Overlying Taxing Jurisdictions .......... ccc seee sees eereeeeees 31 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 2

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



SECTION 1: 

Executive Summary 
  

DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT 

Tax Incremental District (“TID”) No. 1 (“District”) is a proposed In Need of 

Rehabilitation or Conservation District comprising approximately 11 acres 

located along the Oakwood Road corridor. The District will be created to 

extend water service to facilitate development of a medical building (“Project”) 

by OSMS Real Estate (“Developer”). The District is also being created to assist 

with long-term redevelopment of property owned by the Town of Algoma. No 

plans are in place at the time of District creation to redevelopment sites owned 

by the Town of Algoma. The District provides a financial tool to aid in the 

redevelopment of these sites subject to approval of the Town. 

AUTHORITY 

Towns with a population of at least 3,500 and equalized valuation of at least 

$500 million are permitted by Wis. Stat. § 60.23(32) to create a tax incremental 

district in the same manner as a city or village using the procedures set forth in 

Wis. Stat. § 66.1105. To exercise this authority, certain conditions related to 

provision of sanitary sewer service must be met. Those conditions are: 

1. The boundaries of the proposed district must be within a sewer service area; 

and 

2. Sewer service, provided by a wastewater treatment facility that complies 

with Wis. Stat. Chapter 283, must either currently extend to, or be provided 

to, the proposed district before the use or operation of any improvements 

to real property in the proposed district begins. 

Additionally, a town must specify that one of the following will apply to the 

district: 

a. That at least 51% of the value of public infrastructure improvements within 

the district will be financed by a private developer, or other private entity, 

in return for the town’s agreement to repay the developer or other entity for 

those costs solely through the payment of cash grants. 

b. That the town expects all project costs to be paid within 90% percent of the 

proposed tax incremental district's life. 

c. That expenditures may be made only within the first half of the proposed 

tax incremental district's life, except that expenditures may be made after 

this period if the expenditures are approved by a unanimous vote of the joint 

review board. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 3

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 3 

 

 

 

 

 



The Town meets the population (6,939) and valuation requirements 

($1,018,843,800) and development within the proposed District will be 

provided with the required sewer service (by Algoma Sanitary District #1). The 

Town expects all project costs to be paid within 90% percent of the District's 

life. 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST EXPENDITURES 

The Town anticipates making total expenditures of approximately $2,100,000 

(“Project Costs”) to undertake the projects listed in this Project Plan (“Plan”). 

The Project Plan allows the projects to be District eligible expenditures. 

Separate approval of these projects by the Town Board will be required. 

INCREMENTAL VALUATION 

The Town projects that new land and improvements value of approximately 

$5.5 million will occur from the OSMS project. Additional incremental value 

could result from redevelopment on Town of Algoma parcels. Creation of this 

additional value will be made possible by the Project Costs made within the 

District. A table detailing assumptions as to the develooment timing and 

associated values is included in the Economic Feasibility Study located within 

this Plan. 

EXPECTED TERMINATION OF DISTRICT 

Based on the Economic Feasibility Study located within Section 9 of this Plan, 

the Town anticipates that the District will generate sufficient tax increment to 

pay all Project Costs within 21 years of its allowable 27 year maximum life. 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 

As required by Wis. Stat. § 60.1105, and as documented in this Plan and the 

exhibits contained and referenced herein, the following findings are made: 

1. That “but for” the creation of this District, the develooment projected to 

occur as detailed in this Plan: 1) would not occur; or 2) would not occur in 

the manner, at the values, or within the timeframe desired by the Town. In 

reaching this determination, the Town has considered: 

e The investment needed to provide the public water infrastructure 

necessary to allow for the OSMS project to proceed. 

2. The economic benefits of the District, as measured by increased 

employment, business and personal income, and property value, are 

sufficient to compensate for the cost of the improvements. In making this 

determination, the Town has considered the following information: 

e The construction of a medical facility will provide additional health 

care services within the Town and diversify the tax base. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 4

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 4 

 

• 

 

• 



e That the Developer is likely to purchase goods and services from local 

suppliers in construction of the Project, and induced effects of 

employee households spending locally for goods and services from 

retailers, restaurants and service companies. 

. The benefits of the proposal outweigh the anticipated tax increments to be 

paid by the owners of property in the overlying taxing jurisdictions. As 

required by Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(4)(i)4., a calculation of the share of 

projected tax increments estimated to be paid by the owners of property in 

the overlying taxing jurisdictions has been prepared and can be found in this 

Plan. However, because the Project would not occur without the use of tax 

incremental financing, these tax increments would not be paid but for 

creation of the District. Accordingly, the Town finds that the benefits 

expected to be realized as set forth in this Plan outweigh the value of the 

tax increments to be invested in the Project. 

. Not less than 50% by area of the real property within the District is in need 

of rehabilitation or conservation work as defined by Wis. Stat. 

§66.1337(2m)(a). 

. Based on the foregoing finding, the District is designated as a district in need 

of rehabilitation or conservation. 

. The Project Costs relate directly to the rehabilitation or conservation of 

property and improvements in the District, consistent with the purpose for 

which the District is created. 

. Improvements to be made in the District are likely to significantly enhance 

the value of substantially all of the other real property in the District. 

. The equalized value of taxable property in the District, plus the incremental 

value of all existing tax incremental districts within the Town does not 

exceed 12% of the total equalized value of taxable property within the Town. 

. The Town estimates that less than 35% of the territory within the District will 

be devoted to retail business at the end of the District’s maximum 

expenditure period, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(5)(b). 

10. The Plan for the District is feasible and is in conformity with the Master Plan 

of the Town. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 5

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 5 

• 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SECTION 2: 

Preliminary Map of Proposed District Boundary 
  

Map Found on Following Page. 

To the extent District boundaries include wetlands identified on a map 

prepared under Wis. Stat. § 23.32, the wetlands are excluded from the District. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 6

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 6 



  

      

  

  

    

  

  

  

    

    

              

  
  

  

  

   

     

  

    
  

  
  

  

    

  

  

    

  

  

  

    

    

      

                

    

    

    

    

    

    
  

  
  

  

  

  
  

      

  

    

  

   

  

      
  

       

  
  

     

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    
  

  

  

    

  

  
                       

  

            

  

cnaus: 

sown hues emesniwa 
enue wis onztza? wins cnaiais penn er ae 

—~ exon 

eee i oe 8° | sssomcasos 
MANOR DR ~ | 

——] 

a1 wie | 
wacsxcce | 

meer | metas exeiz06 oozizar mains | ores | oxic 3 % oziceoi01 cans S 
2 § esse i] }____| 4 % sncran 
wi neato om 
> ean | 3 
a 2 

< 2 r) < Pe BY] scree 
= 0020223 z= # 3 ——} = 5 | z = ay 

wea | ome | wom | caw | cu | accra | iano 3\3 E ene 2, fe 
3|e sexo F |ocns0e al8 = ‘eo 

acon 
encaas7o1 | xnewue AVE 

oncazez 1 ees 

de were coztse7 

carewson | caverns versie | more owas vezaacer | wane | cacrewx | coscotons exaence | ORE 
cucseca cnai09 

‘own of Ngoma cozts13 acta vxzis08 

en soz (002023904 
oncior were 

oaaaaaais 002023904 oxcowre 
cent ais 

buad EEE 
ovat 002023901 

seafs9 cwwecese wisi wena =) cots pas | ee || | Ss z ; 
wot eect — oreesn36 002023904 e sonia 

soesezoce | soesesnooxe See, 2220] eaten exis & metas? 

£3 ———S a 
ocean e 5 E scesecoms | cusssscmn meso wae 002023904 ir 

Be) eae? 23 oxmsia aime 
S| rosso esemuccnon | egeseseozon eoescococco |__| 
Es coca? 
Gis woman Brace | | evan | anmm | | mm | is = os tie 

g\2 BE 
a snsconecnn cas: wens 002023905 =/o ymamne oie 

002141406 onztsas com = 2/8 
a 3\ = 

sneer sneserrcomn | sco:z0cn0 ssene _ ” 3/8 

ees? Hows 
fowin of Algom: cE sessseacoco Mor Algom _ 0021415 w403 ex 

| © [city of Oshkosh = 

wei nese. srezen.o coomsess ane onsrasé a weiss 

ceat036 ( ) 
a 002025924 seaeesses oct 

a 

secon cncrsccma cowsanae | soesscosose 

onesrzcoa 
‘s0ss4010020 RADDISON AVE   

Town of Algoma TID # 

  

Proposed District Boundary 

CJ Proposed TID Boundary 

L_] Parcels in need of rehabilitation 

[| Parcels 

= Road Right of Way (ROW) 

Town of Algoma 

City of Oshkosh 

an 

Source: Winnebago County 2024 

This data was created for use by the Kast Central Wisconsin Regional 
Commission Geographic Information System. Any other use/application of this 
information is the resp onsibility of the user and sich use/application is at thelr 
‘own risk. East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission disclaims all 

ity regarding fitness of the inf om for any uve other than for Bast 
‘Ceutral Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission business. 
    

PREPARED FEBRUARY 2024 BY: 
Een 
Regional Plane Corussion 

SoECWREC     

  

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan 

Prepared by Ehlers 

Town of Algoma 

Page | 7 

SaMheauzahT Algerie raph:

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 7 



SECTION 3: 

Map Showing Existing Uses and Conditions 
  

Map Found on Following Page. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 8

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 8 

 



  

Town of Algoma TID #1 

Existing Uses and Conditions 

Existing Land Use 

i || Single Family Residential 

if] Multi-Family: 

eal Commercial 

= Public / Institutional Facilities 

[| Transportation: 

Utiliies/Com munications 

Non-Irrigated Cropland 

= Recreational Facilities 

LC] General Woodlands 

LL] Open Other Land 

(| ‘Water 

Other Boundaries 
CI] Proposed TID Boundary 

[| Parcels 

} Municipa Boundary 

fa Road Right of Way (ROW) 

  

  

  

Some; Bue data - Winndhago County 2024 imagay - Winrehago County 
20M, eisting nd. use- ECWRREC 

  

Tanadean Cormeniar Iteccatun Spite ay chearthennaiea ne 

rik, Eat Corsa Micersic Regina Hsing Corme toda a ounawk. a 
ng fess of the infcmatin for any use other than for East an 

  

    

bahatpun i ceriedvdee 

ECW RBC           

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 9

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 9 



Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 10 

 

 

1) Estimated based on values as of January 1, 2023. Actual base value will be as of January 1, 2024.

2) Calculation based on assessment ratio of .7581.



At least 50% of the TID area must meet the criteria of “Rehabilitation or 

Conservation work”. Rehabilitation or conservation work includes any of the 

following as defined in Wis. Stat. $ 66.1337(2m)(a): 

(b) 

1. Carrying out plans for a program of voluntary or 

compulsory repair and rehabilitation of buildings or other 

improvements. 

2. Acquisition of real property and demolition, removal or 

rehabilitation of buildings and improvements on the 

property where necessary to eliminate unhealthful, 

unsanitary or unsafe conditions, lessen density, reduce 

traffic hazards, eliminate obsolete or other uses 

detrimental to the public welfare, to otherwise remove or 

prevent the spread of blight or deterioration, or to provide 

land for needed public facilities. 

3. Installation, construction or reconstruction of streets, 

utilities, parks, playgrounds, and other improvements 

necessary for carrying out the objectives of the urban 

renewal project. 

4. The disposition, for uses in accordance with the objectives 

of the urban renewal project, of any property acquired in 

the area of the project. The disposition shall be in the 

manner prescribed in this section for the disposition of 

property in a redevelopment project area. 

"Urban renewal project” includes undertakings and activities for 

the elimination and for the prevention of the development or 

spread of slums or blighted, deteriorated or deteriorating areas 

and may involve any work or undertaking for this purpose 

constituting a redevelopment project or any rehabilitation or 

conservation work, or any combination of the undertaking or 

work. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 11

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 11 



The parcels within the District owned by the Town of Algoma are suitable for 

carrying out plans for a program of voluntary or compulsory repair and 

rehabilitation of buildings or other improvements. To promote redevelopment, 

the structures require demolition and site remediation will be required. 

No plans are in place at the time of District creation to redevelopment sites 

owned by the Town of Algoma. The District provides a financial tool to aid in 

the redevelopment of these sites subject to approval of the Town. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 12

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 12 

 

  



Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 13 

  

Valuation Test Compliance Calculation

Town of Algoma, Wisconsin
Tax Increment District No.1



SECTION 6: 

Statement Listing the Kind, Number and Location of All 

Proposed Public Works or Improvements Within the 

District 
  

Project Costs are any expenditure made, estimated to be made, or monetary 

obligations incurred or estimated to be incurred as outlined in this Plan. Project 

Costs will be diminished by any income, special assessments or other revenues, 

including user fees or charges, other than tax increments, received or 

reasonably expected to be received in connection with the implementation of 

the Plan. If Project Costs incurred benefit territory outside the District, a 

proportionate share of the cost is not a Project Cost. Costs identified in this 

Plan are preliminary estimates made prior to design considerations and are 

subject to change after planning, design and construction is completed. 

With all Project Costs, the costs of engineering, design, survey, inspection, 

materials, construction, restoring property to its original condition, apparatus 

necessary for public works, legal and other consultant fees, testing, 

environmental studies, permits, updating Town ordinances and _ plans, 

judgments or claims for damages and other expenses are included as Project 

Costs. 

The following is a list of public works and other tax incremental financing 

eligible Project Costs that the Town expects to make, or may need to make, in 

conjunction with the implementation of the District’s Plan. The map found in 

Section 7 of this Plan along with the Detailed List of Project Costs found in 

Section 8 provide additional information as to the kind, number and location of 

potential Project Costs. 

Property, Right-of-Way and Easement Acquisition 

Property Acquisition for Development   

To promote and facilitate develooment the Town may acquire property within 

the District. The cost of property acquired, and any costs associated with the 

transaction, are eligible Project Costs. Following acquisition, other Project 

Costs within the categories detailed in this Section may be incurred to make 

the property suitable for development. Any revenue received by the Town 

from the sale of property acquired pursuant to the execution of this Plan will 

be used to reduce the total project costs of the District. If total Project Costs 

incurred by the Town to acquire property and make it suitable for development 

exceed the revenues or other consideration received from the sale or lease of 

that property, the net amount shall be considered “real property assembly 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 14

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 14 



costs” as defined in Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(2)(f)1.c., and subject to recovery as an 

eligible Project Cost. 

Property Acquisition for Conservancy 
  

To promote the objectives of this Plan, the Town may acquire property within 

the District that it will designate for conservancy. These conservancy objectives 

include: preserving historic resources or sensitive natural features; protection 

of scenic and historic views; maintaining habitat for wildlife; maintaining 

adequate open space; reduction of erosion and sedimentation by preserving 

existing vegetation; and providing adequate areas for management of 

stormwater. The cost of property acquired for conservancy, and any costs 

associated with the transaction, are eligible Project Costs. 

Acquisition of Rights-of-Way   

The Town may need to acquire property to allow for installation of streets, 

driveways, sidewalks, utilities, stormwater management practices and other 

public infrastructure. Costs incurred by the Town to identify, negotiate and 

acquire rights-of-way are eligible Project Costs. 

Acquisition of Easements 
  

The Town may need to acquire temporary or permanent easements to allow 

for installation and maintenance of streets, driveways, sidewalks, utilities, 

stormwater management practices and other public infrastructure. Costs 

incurred by the Town to identify, negotiate and acquire easement rights are 

eligible Project Costs. 

Relocation Costs 
  

If relocation expenses are incurred in conjunction with the acquisition of 

property, those expenses are eligible Project Costs. These costs may include, 

but are not limited to: preparation of a relocation plan; allocations of staff time; 

legal fees; publication of notices; obtaining appraisals; and payment of 

relocation benefits as required by Wis. Stat. Chapter 32 and Wis. Admin. Code 

ADM 92. 

Site Preparation Activities 

Environmental Audits and Remediation 
  

If it becomes necessary to evaluate any land or improvement within the District, 

any cost incurred by the Town related to environmental audits, testing, and 

remediation are eligible Project Costs. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 15

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 15 

. 



Demolition 

To make sites suitable for development, the Town may incur costs related to 

demolition and removal of structures or other land improvements, to include 

abandonment of wells or other existing utility services. 

Site Grading   

Land within the District may require grading to make it suitable for 

development, to provide access, and to control stormwater runoff. The Town 

may need to remove and dispose of excess material, or bring in fill material to 

provide for proper site elevations. Expenses incurred by the Town for site 

grading are eligible Project Costs. 

Utilities 

Sanitary Sewer System [Improvements   

To allow development to occur, the Town may need to construct, alter, rebuild 

or expand sanitary sewer infrastructure within the District. Eligible Project 

Costs include, but are not limited to, construction, alteration, rebuilding or 

expansion of: collection mains; manholes and cleanouts; service laterals; force 

mains; interceptor sewers; pumping stations; lift stations; wastewater treatment 

facilities; and all related appurtenances. To the extent sanitary sewer projects 

undertaken within the District provide direct benefit to land outside of the 

District, the Town will make an allocation of costs based on such benefit. Those 

costs corresponding to the benefit allocated to land within the District, and 

necessitated by the implementation of the Project Plan, are eligible Project 

Costs. Implementation of the Project Plan may also require that the Town 

construct, alter, rebuild or expand sanitary sewer infrastructure located outside 

of the District. That portion of the costs of sanitary sewer system projects 

undertaken outside the District which are necessitated by the implementation 

of the Project Plan are eligible Project Costs. 

Water System Improvements 
  

To allow development to occur, the Town may need to construct, alter, rebuild 

or expand water system infrastructure within the District. Eligible Project Costs 

include, but are not limited to, construction, alteration, rebuilding or expansion 

of: distribution mains; manholes and valves; hydrants; service laterals; pumping 

stations; wells; water treatment facilities; storage tanks and reservoirs; and all 

related appurtenances. To the extent water system projects undertaken within 

the District provide direct benefit to land outside of the District, the Town will 

make an allocation of costs based on such benefit. Those costs corresponding 

to the benefit allocated to land within the District, and necessitated by the 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 16

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 16 



implementation of the Project Plan, are eligible Project Costs. Implementation 

of the Project Plan may also require that the Town construct, alter, rebuild or 

expand water system infrastructure located outside of the District. That 

portion of the costs of water system projects undertaken outside the District 

which are necessitated by the implementation of the Project Plan are eligible 

Project Costs. 

Stormwater Management System Improvements 
  

Development within the District will cause stormwater runoff. To manage this 

stormwater runoff, the Town may need to construct, alter, rebuild or expand 

stormwater management infrastructure within the District. Eligible Project 

Costs include, but are not limited to, construction, alteration, rebuilding or 

expansion of: stormwater collection mains; inlets, manholes and valves; service 

laterals; ditches; culvert pipes; box culverts; bridges; stabilization of stream and 

river banks; and infiltration, filtration and detention Best Management Practices 

(BMP’s). To the extent stormwater management system projects undertaken 

within the District provide direct benefit to land outside of the District, the 

Town will make an allocation of costs based on such benefit. Those costs 

corresponding to the benefit allocated to land within the District, and 

necessitated by the implementation of the Project Plan, are eligible Project 

Costs. Implementation of the Project Plan may also require that the Town 

construct, alter, rebuild or expand stormwater management infrastructure 

located outside of the District. That portion of the costs of stormwater 

management system projects undertaken outside the District which are 

necessitated by the implementation of the Project Plan are eligible Project 

Costs. 

Electric Service   

To create sites suitable for development, the Town may incur costs to provide, 

relocate or upgrade electric services. Relocation may require abandonment and 

removal of existing poles or towers, installation of new poles or towers, or 

burying of overhead electric lines. Costs incurred by the Town to undertake 

this work are eligible Project Costs. 

Gas Service 

To create sites suitable for development, the Town may incur costs to provide, 

relocate or upgrade gas mains and services. Costs incurred by the Town to 

undertake this work are eligible Project Costs. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 17

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 17 



Communications Infrastructure   

To create sites suitable for develooment, the Town may incur costs to provide, 

relocate or upgrade infrastructure required for voice and data communications, 

including, but not limited to: telephone lines, cable lines and fiber optic cable. 

Costs incurred by the Town to undertake this work are eligible Project Costs. 

Streets and Streetscape 

Street Improvements   

To allow development to occur, the Town may need to construct or reconstruct 

streets, highways, alleys, access drives and parking areas. Eligible Project Costs 

include, but are not limited to: excavation; removal or placement of fill; 

construction of road base; asphalt or concrete paving or repaving; installation 

of curb and gutter; installation of sidewalks and bicycle lanes; installation of 

culverts, box culverts and bridges; rail crossings and signals; utility relocation, 

to include burying overhead utility lines; street lighting; installation of traffic 

control signage and traffic signals; pavement marking; right-of-way restoration; 

installation of retaining walls; and installation of fences, berms, and landscaping. 

Streetscaping and Landscaping   

To attract development consistent with the objectives of this Plan, the Town 

may install amenities to enhance development sites, rights-of-way and other 

public spaces. These amenities include, but are not limited to: landscaping; 

lighting of streets, sidewalks, parking areas and public areas; installation of 

planters, benches, clocks, tree rings, trash receptacles and similar items; and 

installation of brick or other decorative walks, terraces and street crossings. 

These and any other similar amenities installed by the Town are eligible Project 

Costs. 

Community Development 

Cash Grants (Development Incentives)   

The Town may enter into agreements with property owners, lessees, or 

developers of land located within the District for sharing costs to encourage 

the desired kind of improvements and assure tax base is generated sufficient 

to recover Project Costs. No cash grants will be provided until the Town 

executes a developer agreement with the recipient of the cash grant. Any 

payments of cash grants made by the Town are eligible Project Costs. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 18

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 18 



Miscellaneous 

Professional Service and Organizational Costs 
  

The costs of professional services rendered, and other costs incurred, in relation 

to the creation, administration and termination of the District, and the 

undertaking of the projects contained within this Plan, are eligible Project Costs. 

Professional services include but are not limited to: architectural; 

environmental; planning; engineering; legal; audit; financial; and the costs of 

informing the public with respect to the creation of the District and the 

implementation of the Plan. 

Administrative Costs 
  

The Town may charge to the District as eligible Project Costs reasonable 

allocations of administrative costs, including, but not limited to, employee 

salaries. Costs allocated will bear a direct connection to the time spent by Town 

employees relating to the implementation of the Plan. 

Financing Costs   

Interest expense, debt issuance expenses, redemption premiums, and any other 

fees and costs incurred in conjunction with obtaining financing for projects 

undertaken under this Plan are eligible Project Costs. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 19

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 19 

 

  



SECTION 7: 

Map Showing Proposed Improvements and Uses 
  

Map Found on Following Page. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 20

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 20 



  

  

  

    

    

ec MAST oe ire ee ae ip. ——— 

        

  

Town of Algoma TID #1 

Proposed Improvements 

CJ Proposed TID Boundary 

[| Tax Parcel Boundary 

] Municipal Boundary 

Cc] Road Right of Way (ROW) 

   

The Town expects to pay development incentives to 
qualifying development projects within the TID and will 
incur administrative and other professional service 
expenses in the implernentation of the Project Plan. 

I—~a— 

  

Source: Base data - Winnebago Coundy 2024 

‘This data was avatel for use hy the East Central Wisconsin Regional Fanning: 
uission. Geographic Information System. oer fication. 

Shertaien tne ee anaa ofthe toa and tahoe ation 3s at ther 
ovnxsk. East Central Wiscorsin Regional Hanning json disdaims all 
ability regariing fiiness of the infaamation for any use other than for East     

PREEARED FEBRUARY 2(24 BY: 
Leet cratot viasecie 
‘sah al Phat ira Ceri vdeo 
ECWRPC 

  

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan 

Prepared by Ehlers 

Town of Algoma 

Page | 21 

 
Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 21 



SECTION 8: 

Detailed List of Estimated Project Costs 
  

The following list identifies the Project Costs that the Town currently expects 

to incur in implementing the District’s Plan. All projects identified and related 

costs reflect the best estimates available as of the date of preparation of this 

Plan. All costs are preliminary estimates and may increase or decrease. Certain 

Project Costs listed may become unnecessary, and other Project Costs not 

currently identified may need to be made. (Section 6 details the general 

categories of eligible Project Costs). Changes in Project Cost totals or the types 

of Project Costs to be incurred will not require that this Plan be amended. This 

Plan is not meant to be a budget nor an appropriation of funds for specific 

Project Costs, but a framework within which to manage Project Costs. 

The Project Plan is not a commitment by the Town to complete these projects. 

Specific infrastructure projects will require authorization by the Town Board. 

Any development incentive offered will require approval of a development 

agreement by the Town Board. 

Est. Cost   
Non- 

Project 

Project ID Project Name/Type Phase | Future phases Ongoing 1/2 Mile Costs Totals   

Water Line Improvements 450,000 450,000 

O
©
M
~
N
D
A
U
N
 

BP
 
W
N
n
N
 

PR
 

Total Projects 

Notes: 

Storm Water Improvements? 

Town Hall site and parking preparation’ 

Small parking lot site preparation’ 

Utility extensions into town hall parcel’ 

Developer Incentives 

Interest on long-term debt 

Financing Costs 

Ongoing Planning & Administrative Costs 

15,000 

465,000 

60,000 

100,000 

35,000 

250,000 
500,000 
500,000 
50,000 

1,495,000 

60,000 

100,000 

35,000 

250,000 

500,000 

500,000 

65,000 

140,000 140,000 

140,000 0 0 2,100,000 
  

1. These projects can be financed by the Town or financed by a developer and reimbursed through a developer incentive. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan 

Prepared by Ehlers 

Town of Algoma 

Page | 22

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 22 

 

 

 

  



SECTION 9: 

Economic Feasibility Study, Description of the Methods 

of Financing Estimated Project Costs and the Time When 

Related Costs or Monetary Obligations are to be Incurred 
  

This Section includes a forecast of the valuation increases expected within the 

District, the associated tax increment collections, a summary of how Project 

Costs would be financed, and a projected cash flow demonstrating that the 

District is economically feasible. 

Key Assumptions 
  

Estimated valuations and timing for construction of the initial develooment and 

potential future development are included in Table 1. Assuming the Town’s 

current equalized TID Interim tax rate of $15.23 per thousand of equalized value 

declining by 1.00% per year, and no economic appreciation or depreciation, the 

District would generate $2,563,780 in incremental tax revenue over the term of 

the District as shown in Table 2. 

Based on the Project Cost expenditures as included within the cash flow 

exhibit (Table 3), the District is projected to accumulate sufficient funds by 

the year 2046 to pay off all Project cost liabilities and obligations. The 

projected closure is based on the various assumptions noted in this Plan and 

will vary dependent on actual Project Costs incurred and the actual amount of 

tax increments collected. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 23

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 23 

 

 

  



Table 1 - Development Assumptions 

Ao) ame) mall <e)ent- Pm Uciae) aciial 

Tax Increment District No.1 

Development Assumptions 

  

  

                      

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

Construction OSMS Project (Proposed Town Hall Development Construction 
. . Annual Total 

Year Project) (Illustration Only) Year 

Total Value Total Value 

1 2024 0 2024 1 

2 2025 5,500,000 5,500,000 2025 2 

3 2026 0 2026 3 

4 2027 0 2027 4 

5 2028 0 2028 5 

6 2029 0 2029 6 

7 2030 2,500,000 2,500,000 2030 7 

8 2031 0 2031 8 

9 2032 0 2032 9 

10 2033 0 2033 10 

11 2034 0 2034 11 

12 2035 0 2035 12 

13 2036 0 2036 13 

14 2037 0 2037 14 

15 2038 0 2038 15 

16 2039 0 2039 16 

17 2040 0 2040 17 

18 2041 0 2041 18 

19 2042 0 2042 19 

20 2043 0 2043 20 

21 2044 0 2044 21 

22 2045 0 2045 22 

23 2046 0 2046 23 

24 2047 0 2047 24 

25 2048 0 2048 25 

26 2049 0 2049 26 

27 2050 0 2050 27 

Totals 5,500,000 2,500,000 8,000,000 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 24

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 24 

 

  



Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 25 

 

Type of District Base Value 1,389,800

District Creation Date Economic Change Factor

Valuation Date Jan 1, 2024 Apply to Base Value

Max Life (Years) Base Tax Rate $15.23

Expenditure Period/Termination 22 5/1/2046 Rate Adjustment Factor -1.00%

Revenue Periods/Final Year 27 2052

Extension Eligibility/Years Yes 3

Eligible Recipient District

Construction 

Year Value Added

Valuation 

Year

Economic 

Change

Total 

Increment Revenue Year Tax Rate Tax Increment

1 2024 0 2025 0 0 2026 $15.08 0

2 2025 5,500,000 2026 0 5,500,000 2027 $14.93 82,118

3 2026 0 2027 0 5,500,000 2028 $14.78 81,297

4 2027 0 2028 0 5,500,000 2029 $14.63 80,484

5 2028 0 2029 0 5,500,000 2030 $14.49 79,679

6 2029 0 2030 0 5,500,000 2031 $14.34 78,883

7 2030 2,500,000 2031 0 8,000,000 2032 $14.20 113,591

8 2031 0 2032 0 8,000,000 2033 $14.06 112,455

9 2032 0 2033 0 8,000,000 2034 $13.92 111,330

10 2033 0 2034 0 8,000,000 2035 $13.78 110,217

11 2034 0 2035 0 8,000,000 2036 $13.64 109,115

12 2035 0 2036 0 8,000,000 2037 $13.50 108,024

13 2036 0 2037 0 8,000,000 2038 $13.37 106,944

14 2037 0 2038 0 8,000,000 2039 $13.23 105,874

15 2038 0 2039 0 8,000,000 2040 $13.10 104,815

16 2039 0 2040 0 8,000,000 2041 $12.97 103,767

17 2040 0 2041 0 8,000,000 2042 $12.84 102,730

18 2041 0 2042 0 8,000,000 2043 $12.71 101,702

19 2042 0 2043 0 8,000,000 2044 $12.59 100,685

20 2043 0 2044 0 8,000,000 2045 $12.46 99,678

21 2044 0 2045 0 8,000,000 2046 $12.34 98,682

22 2045 0 2046 0 8,000,000 2047 $12.21 97,695

23 2046 0 2047 0 8,000,000 2048 $12.09 96,718

24 2047 0 2048 0 8,000,000 2049 $11.97 95,751

25 2048 0 2049 0 8,000,000 2050 $11.85 94,793

26 2049 0 2050 0 8,000,000 2051 $11.73 93,845

27 2050 0 2051 0 8,000,000 2052 $11.61 92,907

Totals 8,000,000 0 Future Value of Increment 2,563,780

Notes:

Rehabilitation

May 1, 2024

27

Yes

Town of Algoma, Wisconsin

Tax Increment District No.1

Tax Increment Projection Worksheet



Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 26 

G.O. Notes Potential 

$567,416 Development

Dated Date:  Issue Incentives

Year Principal Interest Total (Town sites) Year

2024 567,416 567,416 0 25,000 450,000 15,000 490,000 77,416 77,416 846,584 2024

2025 0 31,208 31,208 5,000 36,208 (36,208) 41,208 815,376 2025

2026 0 0 31,208 31,208 5,000 36,208 (36,208) 5,000 784,168 2026

2027 82,118 82,118 31,208 31,208 5,000 36,208 45,911 50,911 752,960 2027

2028 81,297 81,297 44,010 31,293 75,303 5,000 80,303 994 51,904 677,657 2028

2029 80,484 80,484 46,505 28,788 75,293 5,000 80,293 191 52,095 602,363 2029

2030 79,679 79,679 49,063 26,230 75,293 5,000 80,293 (614) 51,482 1,472,071 2030

2031 78,883 78,883 51,762 23,531 75,293 25,000 5,000 105,293 (26,410) 25,072 1,396,778 2031

2032 113,591 113,591 54,563 20,741 75,303 25,000 5,000 105,303 8,288 33,359 1,296,474 2032

2033 112,455 112,455 57,609 17,684 75,293 25,000 5,000 105,293 7,162 40,521 1,196,182 2033

2034 111,330 111,330 60,778 14,515 75,293 25,000 5,000 105,293 6,038 46,559 1,095,889 2034

2035 110,217 110,217 64,121 11,172 75,293 25,000 5,000 105,293 4,925 51,483 845,000 2035

2036 109,115 109,115 67,637 7,666 75,303 25,000 5,000 105,303 3,812 55,295 820,000 2036

2037 108,024 108,024 71,367 3,925 75,293 25,000 5,000 105,293 2,731 58,026 795,000 2037

2038 106,944 106,944 0 70,000 5,000 75,000 31,944 89,970 770,000 2038

2039 105,874 105,874 0 100,000 5,000 105,000 874 90,844 700,000 2039

2040 104,815 104,815 0 100,000 5,000 105,000 (185) 90,659 600,000 2040

2041 103,767 103,767 0 100,000 5,000 105,000 (1,233) 89,427 500,000 2041

2042 102,730 102,730 0 100,000 5,000 105,000 (2,270) 87,156 400,000 2042

2043 101,702 101,702 0 100,000 5,000 105,000 (3,298) 83,859 300,000 2043

2044 100,685 100,685 0 100,000 5,000 105,000 (4,315) 79,544 200,000 2044

2045 99,678 99,678 0 100,000 5,000 105,000 (5,322) 74,222 100,000 2045

2046 98,682 98,682 0 5,000 5,000 93,682 167,904 0 2046

2047 97,695 97,695 0 5,000 5,000 92,695 260,599 0 2047

2048 96,718 96,718 0 5,000 5,000 91,718 352,317 0 2048

2049 95,751 95,751 0 5,000 5,000 90,751 443,067 0 2049

2050 94,793 94,793 0 5,000 5,000 89,793 532,860 0 2050

2051 93,845 93,845 0 5,000 5,000 88,845 621,706 0 2051

2052 92,907 92,907 0 5,000 5,000 87,907 709,612 0 2052

TOTAL 2,563,780 567,416 3,131,196 567,416 279,168 846,584 945,000 25,000 450,000 15,000 140,000 2,421,584 TOTAL

Notes:

LEGEND:

END OF EXP. PERIOD

Financing 

Costs

Liabilities 

Outstanding

Town of Algoma, Wisconsin
Tax Increment District No.1

Cash Flow Projection

Tax 

Increments Debt Proceeds

Ongoing 

Planning & 

Administration

Projected ExpendituresProjected Revenues

Total 

Revenues

Balances

Creation 

Costs

Initial Capital 

Outlay

G.O. Notes

$567,416

06/01/24 Total 

Expenditures

PROJECTED CLOSURE YEAR

Annual Cumulative



SECTION 10: 

Estimate of Property to Be Devoted to Retail Business 
  

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 66.1105(5)(b), the Town estimates that less than 35% 

of the territory within the District will be devoted to retail business at the end 

of the District’s maximum expenditure period. 

SECTION 11: 

Proposed Changes of Zoning Ordinances, Master Plan, 

Map, Building Codes and Town Ordinances 
  

Zoning Ordinances 

The proposed Plan is in general conformance with the Town’s current zoning 

ordinances. Individual properties may require rezoning at the time of 

development. 

Master (Comprehensive) Plan and Map 

The proposed Plan is in general conformance with the Town’s Comprehensive 

Plan identifying the areas targeted for redevelopment and development as 

appropriate for commercial uses. 

Building Codes and Ordinances 

Development within the District will be required to conform to State Building 

Codes and will be subject to the Town's permitting and inspection procedures. 

The proposed Plan conforms to all relevant State and local ordinances, plans, 

and codes. No changes to the existing regulations are proposed or needed. 

SECTION 12: 

Statement of the Proposed Method for the Relocation of 

any Persons to be Displaced 
  

Should implementation of this Plan require relocation of individuals or business 

operations, relocations will be handled in compliance with Wis. Stat. Chapter 

32 and Wis. Admin. Code ADM 92. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 27

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 27 

 

 

 



SECTION 13: 

How Creation of the Tax Incremental District Promotes 

the Orderly Development of the Town 
  

Creation of the District and the implementation of the projects in its Plan will 

promote the orderly development of the Town by rehabilitating property, 

providing necessary public infrastructure improvements, and _ providing 

appropriate financial incentives for private development projects if needed. 

Through use of tax increment financing, the Town can attract new investment 

that results in increased tax base. Development will occur in an orderly fashion 

in accordance with approved plans so that the Projects will be compatible with 

adjacent land uses 

SECTION 14: 

List of Estimated Non-Project Costs 
  

Non-project costs are public works projects which only partly benefit the 

District. Costs incurred that do not benefit the District may not be paid with tax 

increments. Examples of non-project costs are: 

e A public improvement made within the District that also benefits 

property outside the District. That portion of the total Project Costs 

allocable to properties outside of the District would be a non-project 

cost. 

e A public improvement made outside the District that only partially 

benefits property within the District. That portion of the total Project 

Costs allocable to properties outside of the District would be a non- 

project cost. 

e Projects undertaken within the District as part of the implementation of 

this Project Plan, the costs of which are paid fully or in part by impact 

fees, grants, soecial assessments, or revenues other than tax increments. 

No improvements to be made within the District will benefit property outside 

the District. Furthermore, there will be no improvements made outside the 

District that will only partially benefit the District. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 28

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 28 

 

• 

• 

• 



SECTION 15: 

Legal Opinion Advising Whether the Plan is Complete 

and Complies with Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(4)(f) 
  

Legal Opinion Found on Following Page. 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 29

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 29 



  
  

  

Emily Z. Dunh Marcia A. Vandeh 
eee DUNNOMLAWLLC mee" 

Town Chairman 

Town of Algoma 

15 N Oakwood Road 

Oshkosh, Wisconsin 54904 April 2, 2024 

RE: Project Plan for Tax Incremental District No. 1 

Dear Town Chairman: 

Wisconsin Statute 66.1105(4)(f) requires that a project plan for a tax 

incremental financing district include an opinion provided by the Town 

Attorney advising as to whether the plan is complete and complies with 

Wisconsin Statute 66.1105. 

As Town Attorney for the Town of Algoma, | have been asked to review the 

above-referenced project plan for compliance with the applicable statutory 

requirements. Based upon my review, in my opinion, the Project Plan for the 

Town of Algoma Tax Incremental District No. lis complete and complies with 

the provisions of Wisconsin Statute 66.1105. 

aa 
Emily Z. Dunham 
Town Attorney 

  

  

1930A Algoma Blvd *« Oshkosh WI 54901 » 920-215-4050 * dunhamlawlic.com 

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan Town of Algoma 

Prepared by Ehlers Page | 30

Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 30 



Tax Incremental District No. 1 Project Plan  Town of Algoma 
Prepared by Ehlers  Page | 31 

Revenue 

Year County

Algoma 

Sanitary District Town School District

Technical 

College Total

Revenue 

Year

2026 0 0 0 0 0 0 2026

2027 21,439 1,014 7,822 47,914 3,930 82,118 2027

2028 21,225 1,004 7,743 47,435 3,891 81,297 2028

2029 21,013 994 7,666 46,960 3,852 80,484 2029

2030 20,802 984 7,589 46,491 3,813 79,679 2030

2031 20,594 974 7,513 46,026 3,775 78,883 2031

2032 29,656 1,402 10,819 66,277 5,436 113,591 2032

2033 29,359 1,388 10,711 65,614 5,382 112,455 2033

2034 29,066 1,375 10,604 64,958 5,328 111,330 2034

2035 28,775 1,361 10,498 64,309 5,275 110,217 2035

2036 28,487 1,347 10,393 63,665 5,222 109,115 2036

2037 28,202 1,334 10,289 63,029 5,170 108,024 2037

2038 27,920 1,320 10,186 62,398 5,118 106,944 2038

2039 27,641 1,307 10,084 61,775 5,067 105,874 2039

2040 27,365 1,294 9,983 61,157 5,016 104,815 2040

2041 27,091 1,281 9,884 60,545 4,966 103,767 2041

2042 26,820 1,268 9,785 59,940 4,917 102,730 2042

2043 26,552 1,256 9,687 59,340 4,867 101,702 2043

2044 26,287 1,243 9,590 58,747 4,819 100,685 2044

2045 26,024 1,231 9,494 58,159 4,771 99,678 2045

2046 25,763 1,218 9,399 57,578 4,723 98,682 2046

2047 25,506 1,206 9,305 57,002 4,676 97,695 2047

2048 25,251 1,194 9,212 56,432 4,629 96,718 2048

2049 24,998 1,182 9,120 55,868 4,583 95,751 2049

2050 24,748 1,170 9,029 55,309 4,537 94,793 2050

2051 24,501 1,159 8,938 54,756 4,491 93,845 2051

2052 24,256 1,147 8,849 54,208 4,446 92,907 2052

669,342 31,653 244,192 1,495,892 122,701 2,563,780

Estimated portion of taxes that owners of taxable property in each taxing jurisdiction overlaying 

district would pay by jurisdiction.

Town of Algoma, Wisconsin

Tax Increment District No.1



LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 

INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

Tax Parcel Numbers:  


	09-18-2024 Town Board
	8-21-2024 Town Board
	7a August2024FDReport
	Grants
	Trucks and Equipment
	Vehicles
	Truck Committee
	New Members
	First Drill: August 5th, 2024
	Second Drill: August 19th, 2024
	Upcoming Events

	Incidents
	Overall Incident Summary


	8 Admin Report packet 9.18.24
	Admin Report 9.18.24
	Admin report 9.18.24
	2025 Budget Calendar Revised 8.21.24

	DRAFT watermark 08-09-2024_Leonard Pt Road_Donner CSM_draft-Sheet 1

	11 Monthly Balances August
	11 Budget
	12a Ord 2024-02 Citations amendments packet 9.18.24
	Memo Ord 2024-2 Citations
	Ordinance No. 2024 - 02
	Current Code 15-3 and 15-4
	Memo - Citation Ordinace 8-16-24

	12b EMS 2025 Service packet 9.18.24
	Memo EMS Service 2025 9.18.24
	8.29.24 EMS 2025 Rates letter
	9.12.24 EMS meeting follow-up materials
	9.12.24 EMS meeting follow-up materials
	Materials From Today_s Meeting Regarding EMS email 9.12.24
	2025 EMS Services Per Capita Worksheet
	Council Workshop 8.27.24 EMS Service

	2025 Per Capita Worksheet-With SAFER Grant
	Projected 2026 Per Capita Worksheet
	Projected 2026 Per Capita Worksheet if SAFER grant is awarded


	12c 2024-25 Snow Removal contracts 9.18.24 
	Memo Foust snow removal 9.18.24
	TN of Algoma Snow Proposal
	Tn Algoma Private Roads

	12d Joint powers agreement(1)
	12e OSMS Development Agreement packet 9.18.24
	Memo OSMS Dev Agreement Final 9.18.24
	Agreement and exhibits binder
	Memo OSMS Dev Agreement Final 9.18.24
	Final Developer Agreement Town of Algoma TID #1
	Exhibit 1.b. Memorandum of DA 9.5.24
	Exhibit 1.d. Facility Plans 6.19.24
	31067 arch
	G1-10 - TITLE SHEET, SHEET INDEX, PROJECT GENERAL NOTES
	G1-11 - MOUNTING HEIGHTS, ABBREVIATIONS AND SYMBOLS
	G1-21 - CODE DATA AND CODE DATA PLAN
	A1-01 - WALL TYPES AND NOTES
	A1-20 - BASEMENT PLAN
	A1-21 - FIRST FLOOR PLAN
	A1-22 - FIRST FLOOR DIMENSION PLAN
	A1-31 - FIRST FLOOR REFLECTED CEILING PLAN
	A1-41 - FIRST FLOOR FINISH PLAN
	A1-49 - FINISH SCHEDULES
	A1-71 - ROOF PLAN
	A2-11 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	A3-21 - WALL SECTIONS
	A3-22 - WALL SECTIONS
	A3-31 - WALL DETAILS
	A4-11 - DOOR SCHEDULE, DOOR AND FRAME TYPES
	A4-21 - DOOR AND WINDOW DETAILS
	A5-11 - ENLARGED FLOOR PLANS
	A6-11 - INTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	A6-12 - INTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	A6-13 - INTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	A6-21 - INTERIOR DETAILS
	A7-11 - ENLARGED VERTICAL CIRCULATION - STAIR A
	A7-12 - ENLARGED VERTICAL CIRCULATION - STAIR B

	31067 struc

	Exhibit 1.j. Water Improvements
	Sheets and Views
	Aerials - OVERVIEW
	Aerials - WATERMAIN2
	Aerials - WATERMAIN3


	Exhibit 2.c. Town Costs and Developer Costs
	Exhibit 2.d. Waiver of Special Assessment
	Exhibit 2.e. Corporate Guaranty of Developer
	Exhibit R.1 Algoma TID #1 Project plan 5.15.24
	Exhibit R.2. Legal Description of Property





